
Annual Report
2023



Table of Contents

1 Company Overview � 07
National Agricultural Development Company������������� 08

Nadec’s Holdings in Other Food 
Companies in the Kingdom�����������������������������������������18

Performance Highlights��������������������������������������������� 20

Chairman’s Message�������������������������������������������������� 24

Historical Background������������������������������������������������ 26

Vision, Mission & Values�������������������������������������������� 28

Geographical Presence of the Company��������������������� 30

Year 2023G in Brief ��������������������������������������������������� 32

Awards and Recognitions ������������������������������������������ 36

Investment in Nadec�������������������������������������������������� 38

Shareholder Information�������������������������������������������� 40

2 Strategic Report� 43
"New Dawn" Company Strategy��������������������������������� 44

CEO Message������������������������������������������������������������� 48

Market Overview������������������������������������������������������� 50

Operational Departments������������������������������������������� 54

Nadec Internal Communication ��������������������������������� 82

Financial Performance����������������������������������������������� 84

Chief Financial Officer's Message������������������������������ 92

Risk Management Approach��������������������������������������� 94

3 Environmental and Social 
Sustainability and Governance� 103
Food Security and Alignment 
with the Kingdom’s Vision 2030��������������������������������104

Sustainability Management��������������������������������������106

Sustainability Approach��������������������������������������������108

Environmental Protection����������������������������������������� 112

Environmental, Social, and 
Governance (ESG) Management���������������������������������114

4 Governance, Transparency 
and Disclosure� 129
Nadec Organizational and Administrative Structure��130

Employees����������������������������������������������������������������152

Investor Relations�����������������������������������������������������156

Board of Directors�����������������������������������������������������166

Committees and Their Main Functions����������������������168

Executive Management���������������������������������������������182

Remunerations���������������������������������������������������������184

Transactions with Related Parties 
and Competing Businesses��������������������������������������� 192

Governance��������������������������������������������������������������194

Internal Audit����������������������������������������������������������� 204

5 Financial Statement� 209



National Agricultural 
Development Company

Nadec’s Holdings in Other Food 
Companies in the Kingdom

Performance Highlights

Chairman’s Message

Historical Background

Vision, Mission & Values

Geographical Presence 
of the Company

Year 2023G in Brief 

Awards and Recognitions 

Investment in Nadec

Shareholder Information



High Quality 
Food Products at 
Affordable Prices
Since its inception, Nadec has been 
providing healthy and safe food prod-
ucts at affordable prices to all con-
sumer segments. Listed as the first 
agricultural company on  the Saudi 
Stock Exchange, Nadec has been able 
to enjoy a leadership position in the 
industry.

Facilities to Accelerate 
Future Growth
Nadec has world-class facilities 
and self-sufficient farms with out-
standing livestock breeding capa-
bilities to accelerate future growth. 
It has made many successes and ac-
complishments that have enabled 
it to sustain the growth and devel-
opment of its production capacity.

Capital for the Purpose 
of Promoting Food 
Sustainability
Since the company’s establishment, 
the Board of the Directors of Nadec 
has been keen to provide all neces-
sary resources to achieve the goal of 
food sustainability. This proactive-
ness has resulted in increasing the 
company's capital to approximate-
ly SAR 3,016,400,000, divided into 
301,640,000 ordinary shares with a 
nominal value of approximately SAR 
10 per share, all of which are fully 
paid.    

Nadec has four (4) agricultural proj-
ects in Wadi Al-Dawasir, Haradh, Hai-
land Al-Jouf, and all of them are lo-
cated in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. 
The company is in engaged in the 
operation of dairy farms, agricultural 
and dairy product manufacturing and 
food production. Nadec's agricultural 
products include crops, fruits, olive 
oil, vegetables, dairy products, juices 
and red meat.

Nadec is renowned for its innova-
tive and professional operating en-
vironment, thanks to the continuous 
development of its technical infra-
structure and investment in the lat-
est global digital technologies. The 
company is also characterized by its 
constant monitoring of market devel-
opments and its growing demands. In 
addition, the company is committed 
to researching the best methodolo-
gies and business practices through 
which it guarantees the development 

of products that meet the desires and 
requirements of its partners and cus-
tomers, as well as the highest global 
levels of quality and efficiency in the 
industry.

Human capital is one of Nadec’s most 
important assets, and it has imple-
mented an ambitious strategy to at-
tract the best talents with impressive 
skills, academic achievements, and 
technical qualifications among young 
Saudi men and women. The company 
supports and empowers them through 
carrying out development programs 
and courses, and leaves no stone un-
turned to retain them through the pro-
vision of a competitive, attractive and 
motivating work environment. Nadec 
offers a comprehensive professional 
corporate culture, which is reflected 
in the enthusiasm of all employees 
to recognize the directions of senior 
management in order to achieve the 
strategic objectives of the company.

National Agricultural 
Development Company

As part of the company’s development 
direction, Nadec has launched its am-
bitious strategy for the next five years, 
through which it is working to enter 
new activities, expand its geographi-
cal footprint, strengthen its innovation 
capabilities and product development, 
invest in infrastructure, and introduce 
state-of-the-art technologies to the 
food and beverage industry. In addi-
tion, the company focuses on effi-
ciency, cost management, achieving 
sustainable high quality, adopting 
clean and green energy sources, and 
strengthening its capital structure in 
line with its corporate's strategy and 
financing needs. Nadec’s goal is to 
make its products the preferred choice 
through its leadership position in the 
dairy, juice, food and agricultural prod-
uct markets in the Kingdom of Saudi 
Arabia, the Gulf States, Africa, and the 
Middle East, as well as to strengthen 
the strength its main operating sectors 
and increase its food revenues.

Nadec’s road to success 
goes back more than four 
decades, during which it 
has achieved many great 
accomplishments that have 
made it one of the most 
prominent companies in the 
fields of agriculture, live-
stock production and food 
manufacturing in the King-
dom of Saudi Arabia and 
the wider region. Listed on 
the Saudi Stock Exchange 
“Tadawul” in 1993, Nadec 
has made great strides in 
consolidating its leadership 
position in the agricultural 
products and food manufac-
turing sectors.

Nadec
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The company achieved outstand-
ing financial performance omit this 
from 2021G to 2023G. Nadec’s rev-
enue reached SAR 2.272 billion in 
2021G, of which the dairy and food 
manufacturing segment recorded 
revenue of SAR 2.170 billion, re-
flecting the success of marketing 
and quality strategies in attracting 
customer interest. Revenue from 
the agricultural segment amounted 
to  SAR 102 million.

Nadec continued its business suc-
cess in 2022G, increasing its reve-
nue to SAR 2.694 billion. Revenue 
from the dairy and food manufac-
turing segment recognized reve-
nue of SAR 2.637 billion. Although 
revenue from the agricultural seg-
ment declined to SAR 60.2 million, 
Nadec’s overall performance re-
mained strong and sustainable.

In 2023G, Nadec contin-
ued to achieve positive 
results with total reve-
nue of SAR 3.197 billion. 
Revenue from the dairy 
and food manufactur-
ing segment  increased 
to SAR 3.080 billion, 
while revenue from the 
agricultural segment in-
creased to SAR 117 mil-
lion. This performance 
reflects Nadec’s contin-
ued excellence in meet-
ing market needs and 
achieving sustainable 
growth.

It is worth noting that the increase in 
revenues is attributed to several fac-
tors, including, but not limited to, the 
successful expansion strategy in rela-
tion to the provision of food and dairy 
products and the continued focus on 
innovation and meeting customer 
expectations and needs. This steady 
growth in revenue also reflects the 
company’s ability to adapt to market 
challenges and achieve positive re-
sults in a changing business environ-
ment.

Furthermore, the revenue growth in 
the dairy and food manufacturing 
and agricultural segments demon-
strates that the company is achiev-
ing remarkable balance in its prod-
uct portfolio, resulting in increased 
revenue diversity and sustainability. 
The steady growth in revenue also 
reflects the company’s efforts to in-
novate and improve its operations, 
thereby strengthening its position as 
a leader in the food and dairy prod-
ucts industry.

Revenues of Operating Segments

Nadec Revenues
 (SAR billion)

Revenue from 
the agricultural 

segment
  (SAR million)

Revenue from the 
dairy and food 
manufacturing 

segment
  (SAR billion)

2021

2022

2023
2.3

3.2
2.7

2021

2022

2023
2.2

3.0
2.6

2021

2022

2023
102

117
60.2

2021

2022

2023
2.3

3.2
2.7

2021

2022

2023
2.2

3.0
2.6

2021

2022

2023
102

117
60.2

2021

2022

2023
2.3

3.2
2.7

2021

2022

2023
2.2

3.0
2.6

2021

2022

2023
102

117
60.2
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Main company activities 

Agricultural activity and food 
processing – four major projects

Nadec has successfully established itself as a leader in the field of 
agricultural and food processing operations. 

Nadec’s activities include plant and animal agriculture and food production. It cul-
tivates grains, vegetables, fruits, and fodder and produces raw milk and its by-prod-
ucts and fruit juices. The company has four agricultural projects in the Kingdom, 
which are located in Wadi Al-Dawasir, Hail, Haradh and Al-Jouf.

 The company has reclaimed agricultural lands, and operated and established systems 
to irrigate these projects, in addition to drilling water wells, maintaining and repairing 
these systems by rehabilitating irrigation channels and main water storage towers, 
and maintaining wells in order to expand the cultivation of strategic agricultural crops 
such as wheat or provide their approved high-quality seeds and sell them to farmers. 

Food Processing

Nadec offers a diverse selection of innovative food products, including dairy products, 
fresh juices & nectar juices, various agricultural products, and red meat products. 
Our production processes adhere meticulously to operational standards, encompass-
ing manufacturing, storage, and preservation, which is supported by intelligent and 
specialized marketing systems. These practices not only enhance the quality of our 
products but also bolster our market presence in the dairy, juice, and food sectors, 
fostering continual growth and development for the company.

Company Projects

DescriptionTotal Area
Opening 

Date
LocationProject

Cattle farms, Production of 
wheat, and food processing

375,250,000 sms1981GAl Ahsa GovernorateHaradh 

Cultivation of wheat, potato, 
onions and dates

269,210,750 sms1982G
Wadi Al Dawasir 

Governerate
Wadi Al 
Dawasir

Cultivation of wheat, 
potatoes, and onions

193,082,300 sms1985G
AL Shinan 

Governorate
Hail

Production of wheat, 
vegetables and olives

72,000,000 sms1987GTabarjal GovernorateAl-Jouf

Nadec owns one 
of the largest 

olive farms in the 
world

5 million 
organic olive 

trees

A herd of 

94 thousand 
cows

Highlights of a successful 2023

SAR 3.197Billion

Revenue in one year
SAR 503 million

Rise in Nadec
revenue

11.06%
of company revenue
Cheese and butter products

4.61%
of company revenue
Calf products
and red meats

3.66%
of company revenue
Agricultural products

2.15%
of company revenue
Olive products

7.35%
of company revenue
Fresh juice products

26.02%
of company revenue
Long Life dairy products

45.16%
of company revenue
Dairy products and
by-products

Nadec
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Dairy Segment Achievements
Promising results

1. Dairy Segment:
Nadec’s model farms efficiently produce high-quality raw milk all year round, ensuring a daily supply of 
healthy raw milk is delivered to the manufacturing units and rationalizing expenses without compromising 
the quality of dairy products. The dairy segment produces three types: Fresh dairy products, long-life dairy 
products, and cheese and butter products.

Fresh Dairy Products:

Total revenue recognized by the 
company from fresh dairy products 
and their by-products amounted to 
approximately SAR 1,072.2 million, 
SAR 1,243.1 million and SAR 1,443.5 
million in 2021G, 2022G and 2023G, 
respectively.  Revenues from this 
segment accounted for 47.18%, 
46.14% and 45.16% of the compa-
ny’s total revenue for the same pre-
vious periods, respectively.   

Long-life Dairy Products:

For the fiscal years ended Decem-
ber 31, 2021G, 2022G and 2023G the 
company recognized total revenue 
from long-life dairy products es-
timated at SAR 450.8 million, SAR 
622.6 million and SAR 832 million, 
respectively. These revenues repre-
sent 19.84%, 23.11% and 26.02% of 
the company's total revenues for 
the same period, respectively.

Cheese and Butter Products: 

For the fiscal years ended on De-
cember 31 2021G, 2022G and 
2023G,  the company’s total reve-
nue from cheese and butter prod-
ucts was approximately SAR 270 
million, SAR 260.5 million and SAR 
353.6 million, respectively. These 
revenues represent 11.90%, 13.38% 
and 11.06% of the company's total 
revenues for the same period, re-
spectively. 

25
types of
cooked 

cheeses

7
types of Greek 

yoghurt

23
types of

spreadable & 
cream products

16
types of full fat/low 

fat dairy products

28
types of dairy 
products and 
by-products

7
types of high 
level protein 

products

8
types of full fat/low 
fat/fat free yoghurt 

products

Nadec
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21
types of agricultural 
crops products

29
types of calf products 
and red meats

5
types of 
organic 
olive oil

2.	Juice Segment - Superior taste enriched with vitamins 
Nadec produces fresh and natural juices in a variety of flavors, which are processed using modern technol-
ogies. The company’s juice products contain antioxidants and vitamins to promote consumer health. This 
segment comprises two main products: fresh juices and nectars. For the years ended on December 31 2021G, 
2022G and 2023G, the company recognized revenues from the juice segment of approximately SAR 238.4 
million, SAR 237.2 million, and SAR 234.9 million, respectively, representing 10.49%, 8.80% and 7.4% of the 
company’s total revenues for those years.

3.	Food Products Segment   
Nadec produces a variety of food products on its farms using mod-
ern irrigation systems and organic fertilizers. Food products are pro-
cessed using high-quality ingredients and innovative technologies 
to meet market standards and customer preferences. The company's 
food products include olives, agricultural products, calf products 
and red meats. 

Olive Products  

In 2021G, 2022G and 2023G, the company recognized revenues from 
olive products of approximately SAR 66.4 million, SAR 70.5 million 
and SAR 83.3 million, respectively. Revenues from this segment ac-
counted for 2.84%, 2.47% and 2.47% of the company’s total revenues 
for the same periods, respectively.

Revenue Development of Nadec 
Juices Over the Past Three Years

SAR 238.4 million
10.49% of total company total revenue in 2021G

SAR 237.2
8.80% of total company revenue in 2022G

SAR 234.9 million
7.35% of total company revenue in 2023G..

Nadec products 
demonstrate our leadership

36
varieties of fresh 
juices and nectars

Agricultural Products

The company recognized revenues from 
agricultural products of SAR 102.3 mil-
lion, SAR 56.7 million and 116.9 million 
for the years 2021G, 2022G and 2023G, 
respectively. Revenues from this seg-
ment represented approximately 4.5%, 
2.1% and 3.66% of the company's total 
revenue for the same periods, respec-
tively.  

Calf products and red meats

The company’s total revenues from calf 
products and red meats for the years 
2021G, 2022G and 2023G amounted to 
approximately SAR 82.84 million, SAR 
114.1 million and SAR 147.5 million, re-
spectively. The revenue contribution 
of this segment to the company's to-
tal revenue  for the same periods was 
3.63%, 4.23% and 4.61%, respectively. 

Nadec
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Nadec’s Holdings in Other Food 
Companies in the Kingdom

Arabian Milling and Food
Industries Company
(previously: Second

Milling Company)

Nadec
Ownership

in other
food

companies

Nadec Shareholding
 Percentage

14.87%

Nadec Shareholding
Percentage 

51%

United Dairy
Farms Company
Nadec Shareholding Percentage 

8.26%

National
Company
for Seed

Production
(Seeds)

Nadec Shareholding
 Percentage

13.99%
National Seeds
Company for
Agricultural
Production

R&D and Quality

Throughout its long history in food processing and 
agricultural production, Nadec has been committed 
to achieving customer satisfaction by offering a wide 
range of products, in line with the company’s strate-
gic plan and a series of research and development 
(R&D) activities until the product reaches the cus-
tomer. 

Nadec is committed to world-class standards, hav-
ing implemented all the quality and food safety sys-
tems recognized locally, regionally and globally. As 
a result, the company, has obtained the ISO 22000 
certificate for food safety, the ISO 9001 certificate for 
quality control and management, and the SASO Qual-
ity Mark. 

Nadec is constantly working to ensure the quality 
of its products through its Quality Control Depart-
ment. It carries out more than 13,000 tests every day 
to follow up on quality management and ensure the 
personnel involved, and the skills and techniques re-
quired to maintain the company’s leading position in 
the agricultural, dairy, food and industrial processing 
sectors. 

Nadec utilizes the latest technological systems and 
the most efficient operating methods. It also contin-
ues to focus on the development of new systems and 
work programs and the adoption of the latest tech-
nology to increase and improve the level of opera-
tional efficiency, reduce operating costs, and diversi-
fy and expand its product offerings. 

Nadec
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Performance Highlights

Sales  
  (SAR billion)

Herd of cows
 (thousands)

Quality tests   
 (thousands)

Daily production of 
dairy and juice products

 (million liters)

Assets  
  (SAR billion))

Number of 
warehouses

2021

2022

2023

2.3

3.2
2.7

2021

2022

20231.4

1.5
1.4

2021

2022

20233.9

5.1
3.8

2021

2022

2023

88

94

89

2021

2022

2023
38

38
38

2021

2022

202314.5

19.9

16.6
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Company Revenues by Main Product Type in 2023G

7.35%
Fresh juice products

3.66%
Agricultural products

4.61%
Calf products

and red meats

11.06%
Cheese and butter products

2.15%
Olive Products

26.02%
Long Life
dairy products

45.16%
Fresh dairy
products and by-products

Company Revenues by Main Product Type in 2023G
Change %20222023Figures are in (Millions) SAR

20.91,246.01,506.1Fresh dairy products and by-products

-1.0237.2234.9Fresh juice products

33.8622.6833.2Long-life dairy products

-6.2376.8353.6Cheese and butter products

13.660.468.6Olive products

106.256.7116.9Agricultural products

-11.594.583.6Calf products and red meats* 

18.72,694.23,196.9Total Revenue

Certain amounts from the previous years been reclassified to conform to the presentation in the current year.
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Mr. Abdulaziz bin Saleh Al-Rebdi

We look to the future with 
determination and optimism

I am pleased to update you on Nadec’s latest progress in the 
food and dairy sectors and the steps we have taken during 
2023G. We ended this year with a strategy that will shape 
the future of our company.

At a time of accelerating technological advances and chang-
ing consumer trends, we at Nadec believe that innovation 
and excellence are two essential factors of success for any 
organization. Therefore, we have developed a solid strategy 
and opened a new door for creativity and uniqueness.

Our strategy is aligned with the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia's 
vision 2030, and as a result, we have launched a number of 
initiatives aligned with the Kingdom's vision 2030 which re-
late to enhancing food security and achieving self-sufficien-
cy, preserving food supplies, and addressing the challenges 
of climate change and water scarcity, in order to contribute 
to the improvement of food security indicators.

The alignment of our strategy with the vision of food se-
curity for the Kingdom is reflected in Nadec’s direction to 
leverage this ambitious vision in enhancing local produc-
tion, investing in increasing the number of local food prod-
ucts launched by Nadec, and striving to enhance the use 
of sustainable technology in our products. Accordingly, we 
have sought to develop advanced agricultural technologies 
and use R&D to raise production efficiency, improve the 
quality and diversity of food supplies and sources, and seek 
diversified and sustainable food sources in a manner that 
can reduce dependency on specific imports and reduce the 
impact of fluctuations in the global market.

The company has embarked on improving the management 
of water resources, increasing the sustainability water use 
in agriculture, and adopting effective irrigation technolo-
gies, which can play a major role in enhancing food security, 
taking into account the improvement of the environmental 
landscape, which is embraced by the Kingdom’s vision in 
terms of working to improve the environment and biodiver-
sity. This will contribute to the preservation of the ecosys-
tems that play a vital role in food production.

Our integrated strategy at Nadec is also in line with the 
Kingdom’s Vision 2030 in terms of providing high-quality 
products and excellent nutritional value, taking into account 
the unique needs of consumers. We strive to achieve the 
perfect balance between innovation and tradition, preserv-
ing the essence of our food heritage while offering modern 
products that meet the needs of the new generation.

Our products are distinguished by their delicious taste and 
high quality, making them an ideal choice for any occasion. 
We are fully aware of our responsibility to provide healthy 
and safe products for all members of the family, and we 
measure our success by our customers’ satisfaction. By de-
veloping the company’s various segments and departments, 
we ensure the sustainability of our work and the improve-

ment of our services. In fact, we invest heavily in training 
and developing our workforce to ensure the highest level 
of performance and professionalism. In this challenging and 
rapidly changing modern world, we are committed to con-
tinuous improvement and meeting customer expectations 
by working efficiently at all levels.  We believe in the im-
portance of protecting the environment and improving sus-
tainability by using modern technology and environmental-
ly friendly practices to minimize our environmental impact 
and achieve a balance between growth and environmental 
preservation. We also believe that innovation and R&D are 
essential to our continued success, and we always look-
ing to develop new products and advanced technologies 
to meet our customers’ changing needs and improve their 
quality of life.

At Nadec, we excel at maintaining close communication 
with our community and our customers. We are commit-
ted to supporting community initiatives and improving the 
communities we serve. We will continue to improve quality 
standards and transparency in all aspects of our business. 
We aim to build trust-based relationships with our custom-
ers and ensure their complete satisfaction.

Additionally, we employ advanced systems to manage our 
production operations that utilize Industrial Internet of 
Things (IIoT) technology to help monitor and improve the 
efficiency of production chains and reduce waste. We use 
RFID technology and global positioning systems (GPS) 
to track the movement of products throughout the supply 
chain. This increases the transparency of our operations 
and helps ensure product quality and safety. We constant-
ly collect and analyze huge amounts of data using artificial 
intelligence technologies, which helps us improve demand 
forecasting and warehousing and distribution operations. 
We use advanced technologies in packing and packaging 
processes, which helps extend product shelf life and im-
prove storage efficiency. We also provide applications and 
digital platforms to improve our interaction with customers, 
who can track the origin of products and interact with us 
instantly.

At Nadec, we use smart energy consumption technologies 
in our factories and production units to reduce our environ-
mental footprint. In addition to product innovation, we use 
technology to develop new products based on market needs 
and nutritional trends. This helps us offer a diverse and inno-
vative range of products. We also aim to achieve maximum 
efficiency and quality in the food chain, and we are always 
committed to improving the sustainability of the food chain 
and meeting consumer expectations in a sustainable way.

In conclusion, I would like to express my sincere gratitude to 
our colleagues for their dedication and commitment, as well 
as to each and every one of our shareholders and partners 
for their continued efforts in realizing our common vision 
and goals.
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1981
Nadec commences 
business with 
capital of SAR 400 
million  

1982
Inauguration 
of Wadi 
Al-Dawasir 
Agricultural 
Project 

1985
Launch of Hail 
Agricultural 
Project 

1986
Commencement 
of packaging 
operations for 
milk and dairy 
products  

1995
Inauguration of 
the second factory 
for fresh milk and 
dairy products

2009
Expansion of the 
second dairy 
factory for the 
production of fresh 
juices  

2007
Expansion of the 
second dairy 
factory for cheese 
production  

2006
Start of productive 
diversification and 
intensification of 
olive production 

2016
Nadec opens a 
special factory 
for plastic 
packaging in 
Nadec city

2015
Establishment of 
the company's 
largest dairy farm 
(Farm No. 7) in 
Haradh Agricultural 
Project  

2020
• Signing of a 

memorandum of 
understanding 
with Pure Harvest 
to cooperate in 
the construction 
and operation of 
high-tech 
greenhouses 

 
• Issuance of a royal 

decree granting 
Nadec ownership of 
the land parcels it 
was using in Wadi 
Al-Dawasir and Hail 

2019
Signing of a solar 
power purchase 
agreement with 
ENGIE for the 
provision of 
124,000 barrels of 
fuel per year  

2022
• Commencement of 

the production of 
high-quality tomatoes 
using smart 
greenhouse 
technology 

• Inauguration of the 
olive oil factory in 
Al-Jouf 

• Conversion of all 
company operational 
and marketing 
processes to 
automation 

2021
Commencement of 
commercial work on 
the solar energy 
project in Haradh 
Industrial Zone in 
cooperation with 
ENGIE  

2023
• Launch of the "New 

Dawn" strategy

• Company capital 
went up by SAR 2 
billion through the 
issuance of shares

• Signing of 
agreements with 
SIRC, Elion 
Resources, Pure 
Harvest and the 
United Feed 
Company

1984
Inauguration of 
the first factory 
for fresh milk and 
dairy products 

1987
Launch of 
Al-Jouf 
Agricultural 
Olive Project  

1993
Listing of the 
company on the 
Saudi Stock 
Exchange

Historical Background
42 Years of Achievement 
and Leading the Sustainable Food Market
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Vision, Mission & Values

Care:

Since our goal is to provide food prod-
ucts of the highest quality, we strive to 
achieve a high level of care by provid-
ing distinct nutritional services and the 
levels that our customers require in all 
the food products they need. We also 
take great care to ensure the quality of 
the food product, which stems from a 
framework that underscores the char-
acteristics of excellence at the level of 
production and operational capacity 
through which we seek to achieve the 
aspirations of our customers.

Responsibility:   

The value of responsibility is a key 
pillar of our strategic plan. We under-
stand that our success is measured 
not only by the quality of our prod-
ucts, but also by our responsibility to 
society and the environment. We are 
committed to providing high-quality 
food products that meet the expec-
tations of our customers, while also 
making every effort to improve our en-
vironmental impact. In addition, we 
apply sustainable practices in all as-
pects of our business, from the supply 
chain to packing and packaging.

We are also committed to promoting 
the principles of social justice and 
community involvement. We strive to 
support local initiatives and provide 
fair and sustainable employment. 
For us, responsibility simply means 
being positive and active in society 
and the world, and we always strive 
to achieve balance between posting a 
profit and our social & environmental 
impact.

Drive:

The value of drive is a key pillar of our 
strategic plan. We understand that 
passion and commitment are main 
drivers of success. We believe that 
a motivated and committed team is 
the foundation for the success of any 
business initiative. Therefore, we work 
hard to encourage inspiration and pro-
vide a stimulating environment that 
fosters team spirit and creativity.

We understand that the power of moti-
vation is reflected in the quality of our 
products and services. Therefore, we 
always strive to provide opportunities 
to develop and enhance the personal 
and professional skills of our team. 
Moreover, we encourage the sharing of 
ideas and innovation that contributes 
to the continuous improvement and 
development of our products.

In short, we are driven to inspire our 
team to reach their full potential, to 
innovate and to excel in every aspect 
of our business. We understand that 
success comes from an inspired and 
motivated team, and we strive to real-
ize this in every detail of our strategic 
plan.

Excellence:

We, at Nadec, have made the pursuit of 
excellence a core value of our strategy.  
We believe that achieving the highest 
levels of quality and innovation forms the 
foundation of our success. We continu-
ously seek to achieve distinction in every 
aspect of our operations, from raw materi-
als selection to product distribution.

In our quest for excellence, we see inno-
vation and development as an essential 
part of our identity. We invest in research 
and development to provide unique and 
innovative products that meet the expec-
tations of our customers and are com-
pelling in the food products market. We 
pride ourselves on constantly striving to 
improve our operations and develop our 
production methods in order to reach 
new levels of efficiency and quality.

In an ever-changing world, we recog-
nize that excellence is necessary to 
meet customer expectations and stay 
ahead of the competition. Therefore, 
in creating value for our customers, we 
consider innovation and uniqueness, 
as well as the achievement of lasting 
customer satisfaction, to be key ob-
jectives in our quest for excellence.

Cooperation:

For us, the value of collaboration 
is a key pillar of our strategic plan 
launched under the title "New Dawn". 
We recognize that teamwork is the se-
cret to achieving our goals effectively 
at Nadec. We believe that close co-
operation within the team, and with 
our partners and customers helps us 
achieve sustainable success. And in a 
world where change is constant, we 
understand that cooperation is the 
best way for innovation and sustain-
ability. We foster a culture of mutual 
respect and exchange of ideas within 
the team. We also encourage active 
participation to ensure that everyone 
contributes their maximum potential.

We value our partnerships with suppli-
ers and business partners and therefore 
do everything possible to build rela-
tionships based on trust and integrity. 
Through close cooperation, we seek  to 
realize integration in the supply chain 
and improve all aspects of our opera-
tions. Simply put, at Nadec, coopera-
tion means working together to achieve 
our common goals, which helps to so-
lidify our position as an innovative and 
responsible food products company.

Nadec
Values
Nadec’s values are the main 
pillars of its business; they 
include the principles that 
shape our corporate culture 
and are aligned with all our 
practices, directions and pol-
icies, through which we seek 
to create value for everyone 
who deals with Nadec..

CooperationExcellenceDriveResponsibilityCare

Vision  
The company aims to pro-
vide products that have high 
nutritional value to consum-
ers in order to achieve the 
best satisfaction rates, with 
the aim of achieving region-
al and global leadership in 
the food and beverage sec-
tor. This will reflect posi-
tively on the image of the 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and 
its robust economy. We also 
aim to contribute to increas-
ing the GDP in line with the 
Kingdom’s Vision 2030. 

Mission  
Nadec is committed to provid-
ing delicious food products 
with high nutritional value and 
quality, so that our customers 
can be satisfied and healthy. 
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Geographical Presence 
of the Company

YEMEN

UAE

LEBANON

KUWAIT

LIBYA SAUDI ARABIA

JORDAN

IRAQ

BAHRAIN

Nadec branches abroad
Nadec has two branches: the first is located 
in Dubai, United Arab Emirates, and the sec-
ond one is in the Kingdom of Bahrain.

Distribution Outlets  
The company markets and sells its products 
through an agent in the city of Sharjah in 
the United Arab Emirates and in the State of 
Kuwait. At another level, the company dis-
tributes its products through distributors in 
other countries such as Jordan, Libya, Leb-
anon and Yemen. Nadec's products are also 
distributed in Palestine, Iraq, Mauritania, So-
malia, Maldives, Seychelles, and the United 
States of America.

The company’s geographical 
presence in the Kingdom 
Nadec is present throughout the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia through 
its network of branches and points of sale.

Geographical Presence of the 
Company Outside the Kingdom
The company is present not only in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, 
but also in the  GCC countries and in a large number of countries 
in North Africa and the Middle East.

Company Revenue by Geographical Distribution
Percentage from the company total revenuesRevenue (SAR)

Revenues 
from Fiscal Year 

2023G
Fiscal Year 

2022G
Fiscal Year 

2021G
Fiscal Year 

2023G
Fiscal Year 

2022G
Fiscal Year 

2021G

88.49%89.14 %89.96 %2,829,356,9722,399,685,6812,040,551,715 Kingdom

11.51 %10.86 %10.04 %367,609,565294,562,032231,773,089
Other 
countries

100 %100 %100 %3,196,966,5372,694,247,7132,272,324,804Total
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Year 2023G in Brief 
Nadec in 365 Days – “New Dawn” Achievements

January  
Environmental Protection and Food Development

Nadec has entered into strategic agreements to pro-
tect the environment, cooperating with SIRC to recy-
cle primary waste, in which dairy manure will be con-
verted into organic fertilizer. Joint agreements have 
also been signed with several entities, including the 
National Center for Palm and Dates, the Institute of 
Food Industries and the Saudi Food Bank.

Launch of the "New Dawn" Strategy  

Commencing 2023G, Nadec sought to become an in-
tegrated food company that will bring about a quali-
tative change in the food industry in the Kingdom of 
Saudi Arabia by providing high-quality products to 
customers, and as such, announced the launch of the 
"New Dawn" strategy. 

Strategic Partnership Agreements Signed  

Nadec has signed strategic partnership agreements 
with several companies, with the aim of contributing 
to the development of the agricultural community, in-
cluding "Leha Group" for the production of seeds and 
wheat, "Pure Harvest" to establish a national project 
for the production of vegetables and fruits using smart 
technology, Miracle Tree,  "SIRC", the "National Center 
for Vegetation Cover Development and Combating De-
sertification", and "ELION" for desert agriculture. 

Laying the Pillars of the "New Dawn" Strategy

Nadec revealed its new strategy with three main pil-
lars, which consists of three main pillars:

Pillar I: Expansion of production, distribution and de-
velopment of existing products

Pillar II: Offering consumers high-quality vegetables 
and fruits 

Pillar III: Entering the red meat sector  

February
Nadec Continues its Efforts to Develop and 
Support the Community  

In February, Nadec participated in the "Children's 
Cancer Day Campaign". Nadec is pleased to be part of 
this journey and calls for action to provide the neces-
sary support and care to make a real difference in the 
lives of these young heroes. 

March
Training and Employment Programs  

Nadec announced its diploma programs starting with 
employment in a number of technical disciplines, 
through the Institute of Food Industries. 

Continuous Efforts to Serve and Protect the 
Environment

	� The company organized the "Iftar Saem" initiative, 
in cooperation with the trainees of the Institute of 
Food Industries, across the governorate of Al-Kharj, 
which lasted for several days. 

	� Nadec carried out a tree planting campaign un-
der the slogan of "Your environment needs you, 
keep it and protect it". It also launched a cam-
paign entitled "Your environment needs you" in 
order to participate in the conservation of sur-
rounding natural resources.  

April
Continuous Promotion of Social Responsibility 
and a Culture of Food Safety

	� Nadec has promoted a culture of food safety among 
members of the community in cooperation with LEK 
Consulting, and the company paid for 30 trainees to 
attend the course (Basic Requirements for Food Safety) 
in cooperation with Mr. Fahad bin Saleh Saeed, a pro-
fessional trainer in food safety and quality. 

	� Nadec contributed to cover the costs of care and 
treatment of three children of the Children with 
Disability Association.

May
Commencement of the Training Program Leading 
to Employment  

The company started the training of the first batch of 
the program, which will continue for years to come, 
through which we aim to empower the trainees. The 
activity of announcing the Nadec Cooperative Train-
ing Program played a role within the framework of re-
alizing the performance development strategy.

Continued Community Support

 The Make-A-Wish Foundation ceremony was launched, 
which aims to fulfill the wishes of children with medi-
cal conditions. 

June
Participation in Saudi Food Show

Nadec participated in the Saudi Food Show, the most prom-
inent food and beverage event in the Kingdom of Saudi 
Arabia, the largest market in the Middle East. Nadec and 
Minerva Foods signed a commercial agreement under the 
patronage of His Excellency the Minister of Environment, 
Water and Agriculture, Engineer Abdulrahman bin Abdul 
Mohsen Al-Fadhli. The deal aims to provide high-quality 
products to consumers in the red meat market.

Training Support for Employees

	� Within the framework of the agreement between 
Nadec and the Agricultural Development Fund on 
developing the working mechanism of the agri-
cultural sector, the company hosted and trained 
employees of the Agricultural development fund 
at the Nadec project in the Hail region, aiming to 
make a positive contribution to the field of com-
prehensive agricultural development. 

	� The company announced the opening of regis-
tration for the “Tamheer Program”, which offers 
the opportunity to gain practical experience in 
various disciplines.
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July
Lauch of the Second Phase of SAP System

The second phase, which included 22 programs and 
technical solutions, represented an important turn-
ing point in our journey towards institutional resource 
planning. The program provided for the seamless inte-
gration of all operational systems, such as factory main-
tenance, fleet management, talent attraction, banking 
communications, collections and credit management.

August
Agreements Signed to Support the "New Dawn” Strategy

	� Nadec signed a memorandum of understanding 
with United Feed Company to establish high-
tech sheep and goat farms.

	� The employees of the Agricultural Development Fund 
were hosted and trained in Nadec’s project in Haradh 
on modern methods of raising and caring for cows, in 
addition to the mechanism of milk production, with 
the aim of making a positive contribution to the field 
of comprehensive agricultural development.

	� Nadec launched the ONEnadec initiative, which 
aims to establish the unity of its employees as 
a team, achieve the objectives of the New Dawn 
strategy (growth, health, sustainability), and in-
crease employee loyalty.

September
Strengthened Cooperation with Food Industry Experts

Nadec was honored to meet with His Excellency the Ambas-
sador of Australia to the Kingdom at the company's head-
quarters to discuss aspects of cooperation in the fields of 
agriculture, livestock and related Australian expertise.

October
Awards and Recognitions  

	� His Royal Highness Prince Faisal bin Nawaf bin 
Abdulaziz, Governor of Al-Jouf Region, honored 
Nadec for sponsoring the "Al-Jouf Award for Ex-
cellence and Creativity" in its second session, 
which came within the framework of the compa-
ny's well-established policy and its deep belief in 
the importance of promoting and adopting quality 
and excellence standards at the level of skills and 
services.  

	� Nadec obtained the Saudi Gap S.G.A.P certifica-
tion in the field of agriculture from the Ministry 
of Environment, Water and Agriculture. We re-
ceive this certification in light of Nadec's pas-
sion for adopting the highest standards and best 
agricultural good practices for product sustain-
ability.

	� The Ministry of Environment, Water and Agricul-
ture honored Nadec as one of the most important 
Saudi companies in the food industry for obtain-
ing the best international quality of organic extra 
virgin olive oil.

The year 2023G was a busy one for Nadec, filled with 
investment achievements, humanitarian initiatives, 
and community and environmental service.

Signing New Agreements  

Dr. Sulaiman Al-Twaijri, Nadec’s CEO, signed a memoran-
dum of understanding with Del Monte's Vice President 
of Finance for Asia, Middle East and North Africa, to es-
tablish a strategic partnership for vertical cooperation 
and integration in the processing and distribution of 
fresh and sliced produce and potatoes in the Kingdom. 

Activation of Partnership in the Red Meat and 
Vegetables Sectors

The partnership between Nadec and  Saudi Reef has 
been activated as part of the company’s plan to enter 
various sectors, including red meat, vegetables, as 
part of its promising strategy.

November
Events and Forums to Open Up New Markets

	� Nadec participated in the Kingdom's pavilion at 
the Shanghai International Food Trade Fair FHC as 
part of NFDP KSA's participation in the event that 
aimed to open up new markets for its products and 
introduce the quality and excellence of Saudi food 
products.

	� Nadec shared its more than forty years of ex-
perience in the field of quality with the partic-
ipants in the annual "World Quality Day" forum 
organized by SASOGOV. The company was one of 
the first national companies to obtain the quality 
mark in 1986G for the quality of its products and 
the positive impact of the application of quality 
systems and the Saudi Quality Mark on the com-
pany’s products.

	� Nadec signed a memorandum of understanding 
with Del Monte Saudi Arabia aiming to establish 
a company in the Kingdom specializing in fresh 
products such as fruits, vegetables, fresh juices, 
and the processing and distribution of potatoes. 
The purpose of the agreement is to improve local 
food sufficiency through a variety of fresh prod-
ucts that satisfy market needs. 

	� Coinciding with "World Quality Day", Nadec partic-
ipated in a workshop, organized by NFDP KSA, enti-
tled "The Impact of Quality Applications on Nadec 
Products". The company which was one of the first 
national companies to obtain the Quality Mark in 
1986G, has been in the field of improving food qual-
ity for around four (4) decades. 

	� As part of the sustainable financing solutions 
and goals of Vision 2030, Nadec signed a coop-
eration agreement with the Agricultural Devel-
opment Fund to finance the national initiative to 
import various agricultural products, aiming to 
enhance food security in the Kingdom.

Expansion of Investment in Nadec and Increase in 
the Value of the Company's Share

Nadec’s General Assembly approved a capital in-
crease of SAR 2 billion through a rights issue offering.

December
Humanitarian Initiatives  

 Nadec participated in the Saudi people’s campaign for 
the relief of Palestinian people in the Gaza Strip.
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Awards and Recognitions 

Biol International Award

Nadec Olive Oil has obtained the 
Biol International Award, given by 
the International Research Center 
for Total Quality Testing, based in 
Italy. This accolade is one of the 
world's most prestigious awards 
for the quality of premium organic 
virgin olive oil. The company has 
obtained  this award for eleven (11) 
consecutive years.

Nadec Olive Oil Ranked First 
in Gulf Region

Nadec has been awarded the cer-
tificate for the best olive oil in the 
Gulf Region.

Nadec Cream Cheese Ranked 
First in Gulf Region

The company has been awarded 
the certificate for the best cream 
cheese in the Gulf Region.

King Abdulaziz Award for the 
Ideal Factory

Nadec received the King Ab-
dulaziz Award for the Ideal Facto-
ry (2000G). The award is granted 
in accordance with the rules and 
principles on which industrial 
activities are built to increase ef-
ficiency and quality, which main-
tains the highest levels of produc-
tion, quality and distribution.

Certificates and Recognitions
Awards   

Saudi G.A.P Certification  

Nadec is one of sixteen companies 
in the Kingdom to be awarded the 
Saudi Good Agricultural Practices 
(Saudi G.A.P.) certificate

ISO Certification 2008 | 9001

Nadec has been awarded the 2008 
| 9001 Quality Management Certif-
icate, which is one of the interna-
tional basic standards in the qual-
ity management system.

German Biofach Certificate for 
Best Organic Virgin Olive Oil

Nadec Olive Oil has received the 
German Biofach Certificate for 
the Best Organic Virgin Olive Oil 
(2008G). Biofach is one of the 
world's leading trade fairs for or-
ganic food and its evaluation.

Organic Agriculture Certificate 
from German CERES

Nadec olive oil obtained the "CERES" 
certification as an organic product 
in 2012G. The “CERES” is one of the 
most important certificates in or-
ganic agriculture and is granted ac-
cording to international controls and 
standards for agriculture.

AIB International

Nadec was awarded the AIB Inter-
national Certificate (2017G-2018G), 
which is specialized in interna-
tional food safety standards.

SASO Conformance Certificate 
for Dairy Products

Nadec has been awarded a cer-
tificate for conformity to SASO 
standards in relation to its dairy 
products by the Saudi Standards, 
Metrology and Quality Organiza-
tion.

ISO Certification 2005 | 22000

Nadec has obtained ISO 22000 
certification for its food safety 
management systems.
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Investment in Nadec
Advantages of investing in Nadec

Nadec has developed a sustainable competitive advantage that 
places it at the top of the list of local and international companies 
and has gained the trust of all its customers and consumers. The 
most prominent factors that have strengthened Nadec’s position 
are as follows: 

1- Continuous Development Plans

These plans include the continuous development of the company's agricultural 
products, fruits, olive oil, vegetables, dairy products, juices and dates. The compa-
ny has four agricultural projects in the Kingdom located in Wadi Al-Dawasir, Haradh, 
Hail and Al-Jouf. Nadec is constantly reviewing its product portfolio and expanding 
its development to meet consumer needs through continuous monitoring of market 
trends and consumer preferences. As a result of Nadec’s “New Dawn” strategy, a 
new production line has been added for meat (protein) processing.

2- A Track Record of Flexible and Profitable Growth

Due to improved product quality and increasing market share in the dairy, juice 
and food markets, the company's revenues increased by 18.66% in 2023G,  
and its net income grew to SAR 302.1 million in 2023G. The company’s sales 
and adjusted earnings before EBITDA (earnings before interest, tax, deprecia-
tion and amortization) grew at a compound annual growth rate of 54.5% and 
585.8% in 2023G and 2022G, respectively.

3- Integrated Local and Global Distribution Network

Nadec is characterized by its ability to keep pace with developments and to re-
spond to market changes and the needs of its customers through its factories and 
modern production lines. For decades, the company has been committed to in-
vesting in its logistics and distribution infrastructure, which has allowed it to keep 
pace with the constant demand for its products, supported by the presence of an 
integrated distribution network for the company at local and global levels.

 

4- Experienced and Highly Qualified Management Team  

Nadec has an experienced management team familiar with the financial, com-
mercial and operational aspects of the food sector. The team conducts market 
studies and analyzes consumer behavior. In addition, the management team 
has the ability to lead the company through its plans for future growth and 
expansion. 

Increase in company 
revenues

18.66%
in 2023G

Compound Annual 
Growth from company 
sales and profits

54.5%
in 2023G

585.8% 
in 2022G

Increase in net income

216.34%
in 2023G
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Shareholder Information

Share Price and Shareholder Information
As of 31 December 2023, the number of investors in Nadec reached 
24,343 shareholders. Institutional investments accounted for 81% of the 
company’s total shares. Individual investments accounted for 19% of the 
company’s total shares.

Change in Average Share Price in 2023G

Share price on 31/12/2023G 28.3

Share price one year ago 10.46

Share price three years ago 14.09

Highest trading price during the year 29.10

Lowest trading price during the year 10.75

Change rate in 2023G 162.91

Nadec Investors by Type of Ownership

31 December 2023

Number of 
shares

Number 
of Inves-

tors

Percent-
age of 
owner-

ship

Nadec 
Investors 
by Type of 
Ownership

242,871,81433781%
Institutional 
Investments

58,768,18624,00619%
Individual 
Investments

301,640,00024,343100%
Total In-
vestments

Nadec Investors by Nationality   

31 December 2023

Number of 
shares

Number 
of Inves-

tors

Percent-
age of 
owner-

ship

Nadec 
Investors 

by Nation-
ality

270,704,50323,17289.76%
Saudi 
Investors

30,935,4971,17110.24%
Non-Saudi 
Investors

301,640,00024,343100.00%
Total In-
vestments

Notice of Ownership
The list of Nadec shareholders includes the Saudi Agricultural and Live-
stock Investment Company (SALIC), which is the main investor in the 
company as it owns 38.65% of the company's capital.

Nadec Share Performance in 2023G

Jan

30
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24
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20
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16

14
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10
Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Nadec Shares

Date of listing and 

registration

1993G 

Exchange

Saudi Exchange 
(Tadawul)

Trading symbol

6010

No. of issued shares

301,640,000

Nadec
Annual Report 2023

40  _ 41



"New Dawn" 
Company Strategy

CEO Message

Market Overview

Operational Departments

Nadec Internal 
Communication 

Financial Performance

Chief Financial Officer's 
Message

Risk Management Approach



"New Dawn" 
Company Strategy

Sustainability HealthGrowth

New Dawn

Under the slogan "New Dawn" Growth - Health - Sustainability, Nadec is 
moving forward with the implementation of its new strategy to transform 
itself into an integrated food company that will take a qualitative leap 
forward in the food and agriculture sector and provide high-quality 
products to consumers, with passion, hard work and leadership.

A New Strategy with Promising Milestones
The new strategy announced by Nadec aims to achieve a 
qualitative leap in the food and agriculture sector and to 
contribute effectively to food security in the Kingdom of 
Saudi Arabia, based on the continuous and effective sup-
port of the Custodian of the Two Holy Mosques King Sal-
man bin Abdulaziz, His Royal Highness Prince Mohammed 
bin Salman, Crown Prince and Deputy Prime Minister, and 
His Excellency the Minister of Environment, Water and Ag-
riculture. This support is aimed at developing the food and 
agricultural sector as an effective and influential sector in 
the development and the economic landscape of the King-
dom of Saudi Arabia. 

In light of the events that have taken place in the Arab and 
international arenas, the availability of basic commodities 
and food products and the ease with which they can be 
provided to consumers in the Kingdom is a major chal-
lenge. Thus, we are working with the loyal people of the 
Kingdom to address this challenge without affecting the 
origin of commodities or their supply chain.

The Council of Ministers recently passed a resolution to es-
tablish the "Food Security Authority", which will be integrat-
ed into numerous institutions and initiatives related to the 
development, sustainability and stability of the agricultural 
and food sector in the Kingdom. The Saudi agricultural sector 
is currently developed on many fronts, the most important of 
which is the implementation of the National Strategy for Ag-
riculture launched under the Kingdom’s Vision 2030. Through 
this strategy, Nadec seeks to build a sustainable agricultur-
al sector that achieves food and water security for the King-
dom’s economic, social and environmental development.

The company has used this direction to define its modus 
operandi and set its strategic objectives, which include the 
transformation of the company into an integrated food enter-
prise, thereby strengthening the Kingdom’s economic base 
in terms of contributing to the gross national product. These 
objectives also include improving the Kingdom's trade bal-
ance, creating new jobs in the sector to ensure sustainable 
growth and appropriate returns on investment, and striving 
to achieve the goals and aspirations of shareholders and in-
vestors.

Nadec’s Eleven (11) Cooperation 
Agreements and Partnerships 
Leadership and Growth Strategy 2023G
Nadec has agreements with:

بنك للطعام السعودي
SAUDI FOOD BANKAljouf Olive Producers Association

بالجوف الزيتـون  منتجي  جمـعـية 

Nadec’s Agreements… A Pathway to Realizing Its Strategy
Nadec has signed a number of cooperative agreements and memoranda of cooperation that will 
help the company achieve its strategic objectives and become an integrated food company that 
is entering a new era of growth, health and sustainability.

1.	 (Strategic Partnership Agreement 
between Nadec and Leha Group) 
The purpose of this agreement 
is to produce potato and wheat 
seeds to achieve self-sufficiency in 
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

2.	 (Agreement between Nadec and 
Pure Harvest for Fruit and Vegeta-
ble Products). The purpose of this 
agreement is to establish a nation-
al project for the production of 
fruit and vegetables using smart 
technology systems.

3.	 (Strategic Agreement between Na-
dec and Miracle Tree Life for the 
Promotion of Contract Farming) 
The purpose of this agreement is 
to provide the Kingdom with the 
highest quality agricultural crops.

4.	 Memorandum of Strategic Coop-
eration between Nadec and SIRC   
The purpose of this memorandum 
is to recycle approximately four 
hundred thousand (400,000) tons 
of biological waste (primary) or-
ganic fertilizers to preserve the 
environment.

5.	 Memorandum of Cooperation be-
tween Nadec and the National 
Center for Vegetation Cover Devel-
opment and Combating Desertifica-
tion The purpose of this memoran-
dum is to participate in the Saudi 
Green Initiative and contribute to 
increasing the vegetation cover and 
the improvement of the quality of 
life in all regions of the Kingdom.

6.	 Memorandum of Understanding 
between Nadec and ELION Elian 
Resource Group The signing of this 
memorandum comes as part of the 
company’s efforts to protect the 
environment and contribute to the 
cultivation of vegetation cover in 
the desert using renewable energy.

7.	 Memorandum of Cooperation be-
tween Nadec and the Agricultural 
Development Fund  The purpose 
of this memorandum is to provide 
studies and joint applied training 
for the agricultural sector, in order 
to contribute to the development 
of the performance of the agricul-
tural sector and achieve compre-
hensive agricultural development.

8.	 Agreement between Nadec and the 
National Center for Palm and Dates 
The purpose of this agreement is 
to study how dates can be utilized 
in manufacturing to maximize their 
added value in the food industry.

9.	 Memorandum of Understanding 
between Nadec and the Institute 
of Food Industries The purpose of 
this memorandum is to provide 
training that will ultimately lead to 
employment of Saudi cadres in the 
field of food processing.

10.	 Memorandum of Understanding 
between Nadec and the Associa-
tion of Olive Producers The pur-
pose of this memorandum is to 
provide consultations to olive pro-
ducers in the Al-Jouf region.

11.	 11. Memorandum of Understanding 
between Nadec and Etaam (Saudi 
Food Bank) for the Preservation of 
Grace
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Agricultural Expansion  
Nadec is realizing this pillar through the cultiva-
tion and production of agricultural crops in open 
fields and smart greenhouses, with the aim of pro-
viding consumers with high-quality fruit and veg-
etable crops. For this end, Nadec implements the 
latest technology and partners with technology 
leaders in the contract farming sector around the 
world. Morover, the company seeks to support fruit 
and vegetable farmers throughout the Kingdom, 
maintain the production of organic olive oil, and 
be at the forefront of the provision of high-quality 
agricultural seeds such as wheat and potatoes to 
farmers in the Kingdom.

Production Expansion
We aim to achieve this goal by expanding production 
and distribution operations and developing existing 
products (dairy and juices) to serve all internal and 
external consumers through innovation and invest-
ment in supply chains. For this purpose, Nadec will 
use modern technological techniques to consolidate 
its position and elevate its market share, whether 
from existing products or the addition of new prod-
ucts, not to mention increasing its distribution capa-
bilities and reaching more consumer segments. 

Dairy and its by-products are the backbone of Nadec, 
accounting for 45.16% of the company’s revenue. The 
company intends to expand by investing in the red 
meat and vegetable sector in line with its five-year 
strategic plan.

Geographical Expansion 
Nadec targets entering new markets in the Kingdom, 
the Middle East and North Africa (MENA) Region and 
other untapped markets in order to provide diversi-
fied growth opportunities in the future.

Sectoral Expansion
The company seeks to achieve industry excellence 
and expansion by investing in the red meat, vegeta-
ble and crop sectors, offering products that suit the 
tastes of consumers in different markets.

Distribution Expansion 
In order to realize its aspirations for geographic and 
sectoral expansion, the company intends to invest in 
the development and enhancement of distribution 
channel operations and establish new alliances and 
partnerships.

Financing Expansion
The company aspires to diversify its sources of fi-
nancing and utilize them to fund geographical and 
sectoral expansion projects and expand distribu-
tion channels. It has increased its capital by issuing 
200,000,000 shares.

Agricultural Expansion

Expansion
of Scope of
Distribution

Expansion in
Financing

Sectorial Expansion

Geographical
Expansion

Expansion in
Production

Strategy
Execution

Pillars

Nadec’s New Strategy 
Six (6) Pillars for Success and Excellence

In order to realize its new strategy, Nadec 
relies on the following pillars in its business:
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Dr. Solaiman Abdulaziz Al-Tuwaijri 

Sustainability is the Focus of our Growth

capital increase

2
billion SAR

In 2023G, the company strived to create added 
value and attractive returns for shareholders, in 
an attempt to increase the value of investment 
and achieve shareholder satisfaction. Nadec has 
launched several initiatives to achieve good re-
turns for shareholders. These returns have been 
achieved through the launch of Nadec’s new strat-
egy and the capital increase of SAR 2 billion.

 We have been keen to continuously disclose the 
company's financial performance and significant 
developments by providing periodic reports and 
holding public meetings to provide shareholders 
with accurate information about the company’s fi-
nancial performance and the new strategy.

As part of the review of the company’s performance, 
Nadec, a leader in training, education and manufac-
turing of food and agricultural products, provided 
support to education and innovation programs in 
2023G. The company seeks to build a motivated and 
qualified generation for a progressive and sustain-
able future. We also signed partnership agreements 
with specialized companies such as Leha Group for 
the production of seeds and wheat, demonstrating 
our commitment to promoting self-sufficiency in 
the agricultural sector. Nadec also participated in 
entrepreneurial projects in the field of agricultural 
technology. Agreements were signed with innova-
tive companies to establish a national project for 
the production of fruit and vegetables using smart 
technologies.

Despite the challenges facing the market, we have 
succeeded in realizing a strategic transformation 
towards excellence and expanding our production 
and distribution as part of our new strategic frame-
work. The strategy aims to improve the quality of 
our products, provide high-quality products that 
meet the expectations and needs of our customers, 
and facilitate entry into the red meat sector to pro-
vide high-quality meat products and meet the aspi-
rations of customers in this area.  

As sustainability is an integral part of our vision, we 
are committed to providing high-quality products 
in a manner that respects the environment and con-
tributes to the promotion of sustainable living. As 
an enterprise committed to social values, we also 
strive to integrate economic, environmental and so-
cial dimensions into all aspects of our business. We 
have actively taken part in educational programs 
to promote education and empower young people 
to build a sustainable future. In addition, we have 
signed strategic partnerships to protect the envi-
ronment, including the recycling of primary waste 
and its conversion into useful resources, demon-
strating our commitment to sustainability and envi-
ronmental preservation.

Nadec has increased the automation of its manufac-
turing processes to reduce human error and increase 
production speed. Automation of processes in the 
dairy and protein product sectors is an effective and 
modern method to improve the quality and efficien-
cy of production. Through the use of smart devices 
and programs, the company is able to perform tasks 
at high accuracy and speed. These tasks include, 
but are not limited to, collecting, transporting, pro-
cessing and packaging milk and its by-products. The 
company has also the ability to reduce human error 
and lower the cost and health risks associated with 
manual operations.

Our efforts contribute to strengthening our posi-
tion as a leader in the food industry and satisfying 
the needs of our customers. Finally, I would like to 
express my deep gratitude for your trust in Nadec. 
We remain committed to meeting your expectations 
and providing you with the best possible return. 

Thank you for your support and let us look forward 
to a bright and prosperous future together.

CEO Message Nadec
Annual Report 2023

48  _ 49



Market Overview

Agricultural 
Activities Market 
in the Kingdom

The global economy, the Middle East & North Africa (MENA) Region, and the local market in the 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia have made a remarkable recovery during 2023G. Saudi Arabia’s economy 
has seen record growth at 4.6% in the non-oil sectors in 2023G. Despite the high inflation rates 
in the region, the overall growth outlooks remain positive, although the international forecasts 
indicate decline in gross domestic product (GDP) growth levels in the MENA Region in 2023G.

 Global Markets
Global markets have been vulnera-
ble to negative impacts, disruptions 
and uncertainties in 2023G, over-
shadowing both global and local 
markets. Despite signs of recovery 
and impact on energy prices, the 
daily lives of individuals have also 
been affected by rising food prices, 
especially in low and middle-in-
come countries. This is linked to the 
increase in interest rates by central 
banks in response to inflation. How-
ever, raising interest rates could 
pose a risk that leads to a global re-
cession in the coming years.

Regional Market
According to international econom-
ic reports issued by the International 
Monetary Fund (IMF), the economic 
activity in the MENA Region experi-
enced uncertainty in terms of growth 
of GDP. The repercussions of the global 
headwinds, local challenges, and geo-
political risks had negative impacts on 
the economic momentum in the Mid-
dle East and Central Asia. Expectations 
indicate that growth this year will 
slow down in the MENA Region due 
to a drop in oil production and  due to 
rigorous policies in the economies of 
emerging markets and middle-income 
economies. The economic activity in 
MENA countries decreased in 2023G 
and the GDP growth dropped by 0.9% 
compared to 2022G, while the growth 
of the GDP was 6.1% in 2022G com-
pared to 4.1% in 2021G.

Local Market 
The Kingdom is the largest econo-
my in the Middle East despite the 
official reports that indicate its GDP 
has declined by 0.9% in the non-oil 
sectors compared to 2022G. In gen-
eral, during the period from 2017G 
to 2023G, the Kingdom witnessed 
steady economic growth with an es-
timated compound annual growth 
rate (CAGR) of 3.2% in real GDP. In 
the aftermath of the COVID-19 pan-
demic, the Saudi economy recovered 
at a remarkable pace between 2020G 
and 2023G and the actual GDP of 
the Kingdom increased at a CAGR 
of 3.6%, while the  Saudi economy 
has  achieved the fastest econom-
ic growth, which reached 3.3% in 
2023G. 

The food and beverages market in the Kingdom is a tremendous investment op-
portunity due to its volume, growth potential, and the governmental support it re-
ceives, not to mention the imports substitution opportunities, evolving consumer 
preferences and market dynamics. Active players in the sector can tap into market 
potentials and contribute to the Kingdom's self-sufficiency and food security ob-
jectives. 

The growing population and increasing household expenditure will help create an 
appropriate environment and foundation that guarantees the sector's growth. There 
are a number of other factors that will support the growth of the sector, including 
increase in the number of tourists, the government's efforts to promote self-suf-
ficiency to achieve food security goals, and imports substitution opportunities, 
through which the government seeks to reduce its dependence on food imports 
and increase the local production of key food items. In addition, demand for fresh 
and healthy products is increasing due to improved consumer nutritional habits, 
behaviors, and preferences. The food and beverage retail market is also growing, 
thanks to the shift in  shopping behaviors to modern commercial shopping outlets.

Food and Beverage 
Market Overview 
and Size

The volume of the food and beverage sector in the Kingdom was estimated at 
USD 29.94 billion in 2023G and is expected to reach USD 43.1 billion by 2028G at 
a CAGR of 7.71% between 2023G and 2028G.

The Kingdom of Saudi Arabia is one of the main markets for food products. The 
government’s initiatives and support for the tourism sector will also have a pos-
itive impact on the food service sector as the number of tourists increases. The 
government will continue to support local companies in food production and pro-
cessing, especially in the main products, including dairy products and by-prod-
ucts, olive oil, fruits & vegetables, and red meat.

Food Types and 
Analysis

Nadec operates in the main food products sector, such as dairy products and by-prod-
ucts, including milk, fresh yogurt, laban, labneh, cream, cheese, butter, juices and olive 
oil. The majority of these products  have shown good growth in the previous periods and 
are likely to maintain their growth momentum in the upcoming years.

This year has had another challenge that Nade has faced to succeed in its leadership and 
move forward to achieve its New Dawn Strategy in the sustainable food market. Through-
out 2023G, Nadec was able to be highly competitive by focusing on achieving growth in 
the productive and operational sectors, aiming to attain the targeted growth according 
to its plan and ambition to expand & reach all consumers categories and achieve the 
highest quality of its food products.
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Nadec’s results highlight successful growth in its production and sales, as per the report issued by 
Nielsen Company.Nadec’s products sales volume has grown by 11.9% since the beginning of 2023G 
compared to its competitors in the Saudi market, which grew only by 3.1%, indicating Nadec’s ex-
cellence, as it has achieved positive results compared to other companies. 

Growth rate of sales volume
Nielsen report shows that Nadec has achieved continuous growth throughout 2023G in the volume 
of its products and sales.

The results in Nielsen’s reports indicate that Nadec has achieved a growth in market share in 
the food & beverage market. Therefore, the company’s products market share grew significantly 
compared to last year. Market share indicators have shown that Nadec achieved a growth rate of 
11.9% in its market share across all products. 

Year-Round Excellence

2022

2023

%18.3

%7.2

August 
2022

2023

%20.3

%0.1

September 
2022

2023

%14.4

%2.5

October 

2022

2023

%16

%1.2

November 
2022

2023

%15.5

%2

December 

Growth achieved  

Dairy Products

8.5%

Growth achieved  

Juices Products 

1.7%

Growth achieved  

Pasteurized Milk 

44.5%
Growth achieved  

Fresh Milk

11.2%

Growth achieved  

spreadable &
cream Products 

25.2%

Growth achieved  

Yogurt 

0.3%

Growth achieved  

Olive Oil 

33.6%
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Operational Departments

Agricultural
Department

Dairy Farms
Department

Protein
Department

Manufacturing
Department

Procurements
Department

Digital & Technology
Department
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Nadec 
agricultural 

concept

Identifying 
Challenges and 
Opportunities 

Diversity of 
Crops

Innovating and 
Adopting Modern 

Farming 
Techniques

Natural 
Resource 

Management

Sustainable 
Practices

Diseases and 
Pest Control

Training, Direction 
and Sharing 

Knowledge with 
Farmers

The “New Dawn” strategy reflects an integrated vision that includes a business 
model consisting of seven (7) main activities, with “crop diversity” as a funda-
mental element. The sector aims to achieve crop diversity to meet the changing 
needs of the market.

Agriculture in Nadec’s “New Dawn” strategy also demonstrates the company’s 
commitment to “innovation and adoption of modern agricultural technologies”. 
Examples include but are not limited to the following:

	� Nadec uses modern technologies in olive growing, and as a result has over-
come the biggest obstacle in olive cultivation - the cost of labor. It has fully 
automated the harvesting and transportation processes for almost five mil-
lion 5,000,000 olive trees by using advanced harvesters.

	� The pruning process has been fully automated using advanced equipment 
that meets the latest international specifications.

	� Nadec uses the latest modern irrigation technologies suitable for each crop.

These technologies help increase productivity and enhance crop quality through 
“natural resource management”. Natural resource management enhances envi-
ronmental sustainability and ensures the continued supply of high-quality food 
resources, making it a fundamental pillar for the success of the agricultural sec-
tor in the context of society’s food interests. Natural resource management also 
helps increase production efficiency and the environmental balance through 
the implementation of innovative irrigation practices and the use of modern 
technologies. By improving the efficiency of water consumption and achieving 
optimal resource management, it helps to reduce costs, increase productivity, 
and enhance the economic sustainability of the company’s agriculture.

Nadec is making efforts in “sustainable practices” by cooperating with the Na-
tional Center for Sustainable Agriculture Research and Development Estidama 
Center in conducting experiments on twenty (20) types of seasonal fodder. 
These experiments, in turn, make a significant contribution to the provision of 
animal fodder and minimizing the consumption of groundwater, using the agri-
cultural cycle. The company adopts an advanced vision in environmental impact 
reduction initiatives as it cooperates with SABIC to conduct experiments in the 
field of Carbon Credit in the Haradh, Al-Jouf, and Hail projects.

The agriculture sector management business model includes “disease and pest 
control” as part of the company’s commitment to ensuring the health and safety 
of crops. Nadec’s “sustainable practices” reflect its commitment to maintaining 
a balance between production and environmental preservation.

1- Agricultural Department:
Seven (7) key processes to manage Nadec’s agricultural production

5 
million 
olive trees

Since Nadec 
announced its “New 
Dawn” strategy, it has 
been focusing on the 
agricultural sector 
as a fundamental 
pillar of its strategy, 
given the importance 
of this sector as a 
primary driver for 
producing high-
quality food products 
and contributing 
to achieving 
environmental 
and economic 
sustainability.

Experimentation 
with twenty

20 types of 
seasonal fodder
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2- Dairy Farms DepartmentSustainable Practices with an Innovative 
Vision to Face Challenges

Leadership in Milk Production
Nadec’s primary goal is to be the leader in milk production. It employs innovative strategies to increase cow 
productivity and average daily production per cow through the provision of advanced nutrition programs and 
improved health plans.

In addition, the company ensures an optimal and comfortable care environment provided for animals, which 
promotes improved productivity. This balance between animal care and advanced technology reinforces the 
company’s ongoing efforts to achieve the highest standards of quality and quantity of dairy products. The 
highest average daily milk production volume in 2023G reached one million and three hundred and eighty-one 
thousand  (1,381,000) liters.

Our efforts are evidence of our commitment to continuous development using the latest technologies to en-
sure sustainability and quality in production.

“Training, mentoring and knowledge sharing with farmers” is an essential step to ensure greater efficiency 
and adoption of best practices. In order to enhance and improve agricultural production capacity, Nadec 
endeavors to conduct a number of training and qualification courses for the work teams on its farms.

In addition to the aforementioned, Nadec has adopted three (3) mechanisms to exchange knowledge with farmers:

Finally, “identifying challenges and opportunities” plans are at the heart of the success strategy for a food 
products company within the agricultural sector. This detailed approach allows the identification of poten-
tial obstacles and opportunities, thus enabling Nadec to adapt to changes in the market and environment.

In addition, identifying the challenges in our “New Dawn” strategy helps determine potential risks such as 
climate change and agricultural diseases. This will help to develop strategies to address these challenges 
and provide a vision for developing new growth and expansion strategies.

Daily Milk 
Production Volume

1.381
 million liters

in 2023G

01 A memorandum of 
understanding was 
signed with the 
Agricultural Fund for 
cooperation, training 
and guidance of 
farmers in the field.

02 Nadec held four (4) 
intensive workshops 
in Haradh, Al-Jouf 
and Hail, focusing on 
agricultural seasons 
and crops.

03 Nadec has established 
a new department 
under the name of 
“Contract Farming”, 
which contracts 
farmers to carry 
out a number of 
activities, including 
supervision and 
technical guidance. 
The company held an 
educational workshop 
for farmers through 
this department.

02 Direct communication with farmers in the vicinity of the 
agricultural project sites through the Contract Farming 
Department, which provides supervision, technical guidance, 
contracts for products, and educational workshops for farmers.

01 Workshops and 
training courses 
through the Contract 
Farming Department.
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Cow Health
Nadec adopts a comprehensive approach to caring for the health of the cows at its farms. It strives to provide an advanced 
and healthy environment for cows by implementing effective hygiene programs and periodic follow-up programs to main-
tain the cleanliness of the farms and the comfort of the cows.

Health Programs to Boost Cow 
Immunity:

Nadec applies programs to maintain 
the health of the herd, including a 
vaccination program, which contrib-
utes to strengthening the immune 
system of cows, treatment programs 
for any potential health problems, 
and periodic disease screening to de-
tect any abnormalities early and take 
the necessary measures. These pro-
grams demonstrate Nadec’s commit-
ment to achieving the highest stan-
dards of cow health, contributing to 
the realization of a high-quality milk 
product production.

Nadec is also continuously improving 
the nutritional status of its cows to 
ensure maximum milk production and 
quality. In addition, the company pro-
vides ongoing training programs for 
farmers on best practices in animal 
care and how to interact effective-
ly with their animals. This approach 
yields positive results in terms of re-
ducing animal losses and enhancing 
herd health in general.

.

Cow Nutrition:

Nutrition plans for cows at Nadec are 
key factors for the best production 
performance. The company provides 
high-quality fodders that are carefully 
formulated to meet the needs of each 
production category of the herd. These 
plans are carefully followed by periodi-
cally taking samples and sending them 
to the laboratory to ensure the compa-
ny’s commitment to providing optimal 
nutrition for cows by developing mod-
ern nutrition programs that allow cows 
to take full advantage of the available 
fodder, under the supervision of the 
best specialists in the field of nutrition.

Farm Technologies:

Nadec relies on modern technologies in 
the management of its farms in order to 
obtain the maximum benefit from pro-
duction operations. Therefore, Nadec 
provides an advanced tracking system 
that records the activity of the cows and 
evaluates their efficiency, which con-
tributes to understanding their behavior 
and performance. This system is based 
on technologies that provide accurate 
and reliable data on the condition of the 
herd. Modern technologies have been 
used to improve production efficiency 
on farms. The genetic selection program 
demonstrates an innovative application 
that can estimate the future productivi-
ty of the herd based on the analysis of 
genetic data. This program enhances the 
interaction between technology and ag-
riculture to improve the quality of pro-
duction and increase overall efficiency 
on the farm.

Food and Product Safety:

Nadec guarantees the safety of its milk 
and products from its farms by fol-
lowing an approved milking protocol. 
The quality of the milk and the effec-
tiveness of the washing cycles of the 
milking machines are checked daily 
through precise laboratory tests. The 
company also applies specific proce-
dures to ensure compliance with the 
highest standards of quality and safe-
ty, in addition to using the company’s 
Standard Operating System (SOP) to 
achieve these objectives.

Environmental Sustainability
We are highly committed to achieving environmental 
sustainability at Nadec’s dairy farms. Sufficient space 
is provided for each animal, which helps to boost their 
well-being and reduce the environmental impact of farm 
operations. Accurate daily cleaning operations are carried 
out to properly dispose of medical and cow waste through 
appropriate incineration and the use of advanced insect 
and rodent control procedures. We have launched sustain-
able initiatives to reduce the environmental impact of dairy 
farm operations by switching to renewable energy sources 
and adopting efficient technologies to recycle reusable 
materials. These efforts reflect Nadec’s commitment to 
maintaining a balance between agricultural production, 
respect for the environment, and achieving sustainability 
in its daily practices.

Innovation and Development 
at Nadec’s Dairy Farms
The development of Nadec dairy farms is a key element in 
improving the efficiency and quality of production. This 
includes the implementation of modern cow nutrition 
programs, such as the EZ Feed program, which promotes 
effective and balanced nutrition. In addition, herd activi-
ties can be continuously monitored and analyzed through 
advanced programs, which helps to better understand the 
needs of the animals and improve the level of care. These 
efforts show Nadec's commitment to continuous develop-
ment and use of the latest technologies to ensure the sus-
tainability and quality of milk production.

Our efforts is the evidence of our commitment to 
continuous development utilizing the latest technologies 
to ensure sustainability and quality in production
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We aim to 
have Nadec 
protein (red 
meat) in every 
refrigerator in 
the Kingdom 
of Saudi 
Arabia

Ambitions for Sustainable Food Expansion
The Protein Department has been established at Nadec for the purpose of achieving 
a greater nutritional impact in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The main objective of 
the department is to seek to expand the company’s presence in the food sector 
and support the Kingdom’s Vision 2030 in enhancing food security and improving 
self-sufficiency in red meat. We seek to have Nadec protein (red meat) in every 
refrigerator in the Kingdom and provide a comprehensive range of Nadec prod-
ucts to satisfy customers’ expectations and needs in a comprehensive and sus-
tainable manner. Believing in the importance of diversifying protein sources, we 
offer a wide range of products to meet the needs of different tastes and nutritional 
requirements.

Nadec Protein Sources 
Our Production Sources
Nadec obtains the protein sources used in its products from fresh meat sourced 
from its local farms, as well as chilled and frozen meat imported from Brazil, 
Australia, Argentina, and India. This increases the diversity and availability of 
protein sources to ensure the delivery of high-quality and great tasting prod-
ucts. The company carefully monitors all elements of the production process, 
as we constantly strive to add new assets, in line with our supply chain strategy 
and the food security objectives of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

Nadec depends on strong foundations to maintain the quality of the protein in 
its products as it adopts the best practices in handling fresh meat and caring 
for its sources. Strict microbiological process controls are applied to ensure 
product cleanliness and that equipment and sewage are cleaned. Nadec also 
ensures that high standards of personal hygiene are maintained by its employ-
ees and that appropriate sterilization is achieved.

Nadec sources of red meat
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

From our farms and local partners

Brazil

Australia

Argentina

India

Best practices are 
followed in dealing with 

livestock sectors.

Stringent microbiological 
procedural controls are 

applied for the cleanliness 
of protein products. 

Equipment and sewage 
are cleaned, and 

employees personal 
cleanliness and 

sterilization are applied.

The supply chain for raw 
materials and finished 
products are strongly 

managed.

Specific criteria are 
applied upon selection 
and testing beef for the 
production of red meat.

The criteria and policies that are 
applied to care for Nadec animal 
production include but are not 

limited to the following:

 •  “Care” protocol indicates the farm’s 
commitment to high criteria for the 

care of cows and calves.

•  Basic criteria are followed for the 
classification of slaughtered livestock 
(fat content, livestock lineage, gender 

and age restrictions applied in the 
selection of slaughtered livestock.)

3- Protein Department:
Six (6) criteria are followed to maintain protein quality at Nadec 
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Innovation Ambitions in Protein 
Technology
Nadec’s goal is to have a slaughterhouse and a factory that use the latest 
advanced technologies and apply European technologies and standards 
to ensure quality and safety in its production processes. The company is 
keen to develop new technologies that will increase the rate of protein 
production and improve its quality by using a special feed formula for 
cattle. This demonstrates Nadec’s interest in technological innovation 
development in the animal production sector, which is vitally important 
for the production of high-quality products.

It is worth mentioning that the use of biotechnology, which includes the 
addition of amino acids, vitamins, enzymes and other biologically active 
supplements to animal feed, contributes to the improvement of protein 
properties. These technologies are aimed at increasing production effi-
ciency and improving the quality of the final protein product, whether 
for human consumption or for use in other industries.

The company also utilizes growth enhancing technologies that are sci-
entifically proven to increase the amount of beef produced. The latest 
available technology is used to track Nadec's products from the farm 
to customer using the RFID technology throughout the entire slaughter 
process. Nadec is committed to its plan to invest in rapid cooling and 
temperature monitoring to ensure the optimal shelf life of the products 
and to satisfy the needs of its customers.  It is planned that Nadec’s 
processing facility will incorporate advanced technologies to recover 
waste and to market the items that would previously have been sent 
to landfill, demonstrating the company’s commitment to sustainability 
and environmental control.

Dairy Comp 305 Protein Tracking
Nadec uses a protein source tracking system from the farm to the facto-
ry. This system is based on advanced technologies and includes the use 
of individual animal ear tags and RFID technology. It also ensures batch 
tracking thanks to product tagging and identification using the Dairy 
Comp 305 program, which helps improve the effectiveness and accuracy 
of tracking processes to ensure product quality and safety. Additional-
ly, the system is enhanced tracking by the tagging and identification of 
the product, ensuring high accuracy in batch documentation. This ap-
proach demonstrates Nadec’s commitment to providing consumers with 
high-quality and reliable protein/meat products.

Our Sustainability Efforts in the Protein Sector
Seven (7) initiatives to make protein production at Nadec more en-
vironmentally sustainable  

Nadec is 
committed to 
investing in 
research and 
development 
of new 
technologies 
that 
contribute 
to protein 
production 
and 
management.

01 Efficient water 
treatment for reuse, 
biofuel recovery and 
carbon emission 
reduction.

02 Heat recovery 
solutions to reduce 
dependence on energy 
sources.

05 Reduction of 
methane emissions: 
Implementation of 
strategies to reduce 
enteric methane 
emissions from 
livestock, such as 
dietary modifications 
or fodder additives.

03 Solar energy 
capture and storage 
capabilities.

06 Management of 
natural fertilizers: 
Improved natural 
fertilizer practices 
help mitigate 
environmental risks 
and recycle nutrients.

04 Enhancement of beef 
production efficiency 
to reduce resource 
consumption and 
environmental impact.

07 Social sustainability 
considerations: 
Focus on the safety 
and ethical use of 
antibiotics.
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4- Manufacturing Department

Operational Potential - For a Promising Food Production Capacity
The production capacity of the company’s factories was six hundred thousand 600,000 tons of food in 2023G 
that demonstrates Nadec’s commitment to meeting market needs and providing high-quality products. This 
capacity is part of the company’s comprehensive strategy which aims to achieve a balance between current 
production and future market needs. There is also a carefully considered plan to expand production capacity 
in the future.

Nadec’s production capacity aligned with its strategic vision and sales plans, which extend to 2028G. The 
need to increase production capacity was identified through market studies and sales performance moni-
toring. The company has been able to take the necessary measures, whether by modernizing equipment or 
building additional facilities.

The certificates we have obtained over the years are a testament to 
the quality of Nadec’s products: 

Saudi Industry CertificateSASO Certificate

Halal CertificateSaudi G.A.P. Certificate for 
Sound Practices

ISO-22000 quality systems 
certificate for food safety

Quality 
Assurance
There are three 
(3) systems to 
guarantee the 
quality of Nadec’s 
products and 
manufacturing 
processes: 

01	 Control of Raw Materials: 
The quality of raw materials is verified prior to their use in manufactur-
ing by testing them to ensure they meet the specified requirements.

02 Processes Control: 
Manufacturing processes are controlled to ensure compliance with 
the specified standards.

03 Inspection and Testing: 
Products are inspected at various stages of the manufacturing pro-
cess to ensure they meet the specified requirements.
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Technology and 
Modernization
Technology at Nadec is a fundamental pillar in achieving ex-
cellence in manufacturing processes. The factory is a model for 
the use of modern technologies as it uses an integrated system 
of automation and digitalization in all stages of production. 
Nadec’s factories have the ability to control resource planning 
and management, from the initial steps to the delivery of the 
finished products to distribution centers. The company's plans 
include the continuous development of the systems and tech-
nologies used and their replacement, following the strategic 
plan for the factories.

The SAP system, which connects the entire factory, and the 
malfunction system, which makes it possible to monitor ma-
chine performance and prevent disruptions, are also part of the 
future vision to increase efficiency and quality in all aspects of 
operations.

Production Efficiency
The efficiency of Nadec’s production processes is con-
stantly improved through the implementation of the latest 
technologies. This method includes the use of technology 
to improve production efficiency by reducing the need for 
manpower, reducing errors, and increasing the speed of 
production. This approach enhances the provision of con-
tinuous training with the aim of enhancing the efficiency 
of employees and enhancing their skills in using modern 
technologies.

Nadec also has ongoing programs to improve the use of 
resources and reduce production waste. The program to re-
duce production waste is considered one of the priorities 
in the operational management strategies. This program, 
which aims to reduce waste in production materials and 
form a specialized team, was launched in March 2023G for 
periodic monitoring and review of strategic plans in coop-
eration with the CEO.

The program also involves loss prevention initiatives to 
ensure sustainability and continuous development in the 
efficiency of production operations.

Nadec has implemented 
10 initiatives to ensure the 
safety of employees in its 
factories 

1.	 Development of occupational health and safety 
policies and procedures and application in a man-
ner that is clear and understood by all employees 
of the factories.

2.	 Provision of appropriate training for all employees 
on occupational health and safety and prevention.

3.	 Provision of the personal safety and protection 
equipment required for all employees of the fac-
tories.

4.	 Periodic inspections of the factory facilities and 
equipment to ensure its safety.

5.	 Establishment of a system to monitor and respond 
to accidents and injuries.

6.	 Provision of clear safety signs and instructions 
throughout the factories.

7.	 Development of an emergency plan to deal with 
emergencies such as fires and injuries.

8.	 Encourage employees to report any occupational 
health and safety hazards that come to their 
attention.

9.	 Application of global standard safety systems at 
work sites and provision of ongoing training for 
all employees to comply with the safety standards 
and systems and provision of the safety tools re-
quired to perform their work.

10.	 Initiation of programs to educate employees on 
work safety through advanced and periodic train-
ing activities and programs.

Sustainability and Environment in Nadec’s 
Manufacturing Department 
We strive to make the manufacturing processes more environmentally sustainable by using renewable energy sources 
such as solar energy and improving energy efficiency to reduce environmental impact and energy consumption. There 
are specific projects at Nadec aimed at improving the environmental impact of manufacturing operations, including a 
project to process and recycle liquid and solid waste. This forms part of our commitment to improving environmental 
sustainability in all aspects of our business. Nadec is working on environmental initiatives to enhance manufacturing 
sustainability, as shown below:

1-     Strengthen efforts to make manufacturing processes more environmentally sustainable by:

A.	 Using renewable energy such as solar power or other renewable energy sources to generate electricity 
for the company's manufacturing operations.

B.	 Improving energy efficiency by reducing the amount of energy consumed, which reduces pollution.

C.	 Recycling and reusing.

2-	 Develop specific projects to improve the environmental impact of manufacturing operations at Nadec, including, 
but not limited to, a project to treat and recycle liquid and solid waste.

Improving Processes in Nadec’s Manufacturing Department 
Nadec’s strategy is to continuously improve its manufacturing processes that is fundamental to achieving 
greater efficiency and high-quality products. The company is committed to increasing productivity and ef-
ficiency through modernizing technologies and implementing the best practices in the field of production 
management. The company strives for continuous improvement in the following areas:

1.	 Zero-waste manufacturing, which aims to eliminate all activities that do not add value to the product, 
such as waiting, transportation, and unnecessary processing.

2.	 Intelligent manufacturing by analyzing data to improve manufacturing processes.

3.	 Cost reduction by improving efficiency through increased productivity and quality, which in turn improves 
profitability.

4.	 Improvement of employee safety and the reduction of the risk of accidents.

5.	 Implementation of continuous quality management programs to improve manufacturing processes.
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Improving Production 
Processes
Nadec achieved a high and outstanding level of perfor-
mance in production management in 2023G. This perfor-
mance was characterized by the improvement of produc-
tion processes and strict adherence to quality systems, 
maintenance and continuous planning. Systems were reg-
ularly updated to ensure compliance and improve the per-
formance of operations. Problems in the production chain 
were identified, analyzed and dealt with effectively. The 
latest problem analysis and flexible manufacturing sys-
tems were also used to identify the root causes of prob-
lems and provide innovative solutions. In addition, con-
tinuous improvement and performance monitoring were 
implemented to ensure continued improvement of opera-
tions and achievement of production targets. At the same 
time, a culture of continuous improvement was promoted 
and employees were encouraged to participate in process 
improvement. The best practices were also applied in the 
areas of quality and production to ensure the sustainabil-
ity of improvements and the achievement of the best re-
sults.

Sustainability of 
Manufacturing Processes
We succeeded in updating and improving manufacturing 
technologies in 2023G. We focused on enhancing produc-
tion efficiency and developing certain processes. Updating 
the butter production process by introducing more effective 
automation was one of the aspects developed. Nadec con-
tinues to consider the future of manufacturing and believes 
that new technologies should be leveraged to enhance pro-
duction efficiency. These new technologies include, but are 
not limited to, preventive maintenance and independent 
maintenance, which will help reduce downtime and ensure 
better production continuity. These developments demon-
strate the company's commitment to applying the latest 
technologies that ensure continuous improvement and sus-
tainability of manufacturing processes.

Nadec is particularly attentive to improving the performance 
of production management. In 2023G, the company improved 
its production processes in line with the latest quality and 
maintenance standards. Commitment to quality and mainte-
nance systems was also applied and regularly monitored to 
ensure continuous improvement.

Customer Satisfaction
The importance of product quality is reflected in customer 
satisfaction and trust. Nadec strives to meet customer ex-
pectations and needs by providing high-quality products 
that meet strict standards. Abidance by quality standards 
helps build the company’s reputation and enhances its po-
sition in the food products market. In addition, product 
quality helps improve operational efficiency and reduce 
losses and waste. Through its focus on product quality, 
Nadec aims to improve the production processes and en-
sure that it delivers a final product that meets the highest 
standards. Nadec’s quality standards and the importance 
it places on them are recognized as the foundation for ex-
cellence and sustainability in the animal production in-
dustry.

Development 
of Quality Tests
Nadec’s Production Department works tirelessly to develop 
quality tests. These efforts are an essential part of Nadec’s 
commitment to achieving the highest level of product quality. 
These levels are sought by continuously measuring the results 
of quality inspections and analyzing the data to identify ar-
eas for improvement. The company has a policy of continuous 
improvement of the quality inspection process and relies on 
regular monitoring of performance to ensure compliance with 
the standards and optimum results. Necessary measures are 
also taken as soon as any deviation from the specified stan-
dards is detected. 
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Planning… Quality… Achievement

There are eight (8) pillars to maintain the quality 
of our products in 2023G:

Technology Strategy in the Production Department
The strategy for the use of technology in the Production Department at Nadec production activities in 2023G was based 
on a set of principles and modern technologies that are used to improve production efficiency and ensure that demand is 
met efficiently through the use of modern communications technology. Nadec’s strategic foundation for using technology 
to manage production is based on:

Conducting periodic auditsEnhancing the continuous 
improvement culture.

Implementing quality 
monitoring measures.

Data analysis.

Developing clear and brief quality 
standards for all products and informing 

all employees of these standards and 
training them in this regard.

Establishing multi-function 
work teams to ensure good 
coordination between all 

product development phases.

Training quality inspection 
teams on the latest available 
technologies and methods.

Following up the system of 
compliance with the application of 
the comprehensive quality systems.

Using technology to improve supply chain 
management or raise productivity, using 
a GPS system for all fleet operations (for 
supply of raw materials and delivery of 
finished products).

01

Using new technologies to develop 
future production processes.

02

Smart and digital manufacturing, 
using digital technologies to collect 
and analyze data from production 
processes. Data can help improve 
decision making and operations.

03

Flexible manufacturing by producing 
products quickly and at an affordable 
cost.

04
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Future Plans
Nadec works to develop strategic plans to expand its ca-
pabilities in the future in order to meet the diverse and 
growing needs of the market. These plans are implemented 
in accordance with the five-year sales management plan. 
Market trends are analyzed and future needs are deter-
mined to ensure the sustainability of the expansion and 
to satisfy customer aspirations. These plans of the Sales 
Department are coordinated to ensure that objectives are 
effectively achieved and emerging opportunities in the 
market are targeted.

Improving Efficiency of the 
Production Department
In order to improve the efficiency of the Production De-
partment in 2023G, Nadec intensified its efforts in the 
area of training and development. These efforts consist-
ed of improving the efficiency of production processes 
through continuous training programs for employees. The 
company’s efforts were particularly focused on continuous 
updating of skills and raising awareness of the latest tech-
nologies.

Efficiency improvement projects involve a multi-pronged 
approach, including independent maintenance projects, 
preventive maintenance and predictive maintenance. 
These projects seek to improve equipment performance 
and reduce breakdowns, thereby contributing to increased 
production efficiency. In addition, the supply chain man-
agement strategy focuses on the sustainability of extended 
nutrition. This strategy includes the identification of tar-
geted needs, diversification of supply sources, and peri-
odic monitoring of supplier performance. The strategy also 
focuses on cost optimization and taking immediate action 
in emergency situations to ensure the sustainability of the 
supply chain.

Production Department 
Sustainability
Production sustainability at Nadec is one of the focuses of 
production process management. Production sustainability 
is maintained by combining sustainability concepts with 
production planning and continuous improvement process-
es. The environmental, economic and social impacts of the 
production processes are also taken into account that help 
achieve a sustainable balance.

Future strategies to improve the sustainability of the pro-
duction chain are reflected in targeted initiatives, including 
innovations in resource utilization, increased energy effi-
ciency, and diversification of raw material sources to achieve 
better environmental performance. We are also committed 
to improving the social conditions of our employees in the 
production chain to ensure long-term sustainability and ef-
fective participation in society. As part of Nadec’s produc-
tion process management strategies, the company’s “New 
Dawn” strategy includes a vision to present future initiatives 
to improve sustainability in the production chain.

Production Department 
Data Analysis
Data related to production processes is analyzed by using 
the SAP resource management system, a powerful tool for 
intelligent data exploration and analysis. This enables the 
Production Department to make strategic decisions based 
on accurate and comprehensive information. The SAP system 
provides a unique opportunity to intelligent analysis by ac-
curately monitoring process performance and understanding 
potential trends and challenges. This strategic data is used 
to make decisions that increase production efficiency and 
improve operational performance.

This data is also used to identify strengths and weakness-
es in the production chain and to take effective corrective 
action. Smart analysis strategies enable the company to 
respond quickly to market changes, ensure production con-
tinuity with high efficiency, and achieve sustainability and 
quality objectives.

The “New Dawn” strategy is a future 
vision for improving sustainability both 
internally and externally.
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5- Procurement Department

Improving Purchasing Processes
The use of SAP Ariba has helped speeding up purchasing processes and making them more efficient by au-
tomating them and establishing a healthy supply chain. The Procurement Department is implementing its 
strategy, which extends to 2027G, to enhance the company’s key activities at both local and regional levels.

The strategy includes the company's entry into new markets, the expansion of its geographical reach, the 
strengthening of its innovation and product development capabilities, investments in infrastructure, and the 
introduction of modern technologies in the world of the food and beverage industry.

The strategy is based on efficiency, cost management, achieving sustainable high quality, adopting clean and 
green energy, and strengthening the capital structure in light of the strategy and financing needs.

Nadec has signed eleven (11) agreements with government agencies, private entities, and non-profit orga-
nizations. These deals cover agriculture, dairy, juice, food, beverages, e-commerce, digital marketing, and 
training and development.

Results of the Supply and Marketing Strategy for 
Managing Nadec Procurements

01 Strengthened cooperation with suppliers:
Nadec pays special attention to strengthening direct cooperation with suppliers; it holds pe-
riodic meetings to explore cooperation opportunities, ensure the availability of materials and 
products, and improve material efficiency.

02 Expansion of the supplier base:
Nadec intends to expand its supplier base, starting with local materials and the local market.

03 Supplier Evaluation:
Nadec relies on a strategy to constantly evaluate the performance of its suppliers,  analyzing the 
response in real time and conducting periodic and laboratory tests to maintain the quality of 
materials.

Nadec Signed

11
Agreements

in 2023G
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Raw Materials - Procurement Department

Nadec guarantees the quality of procured materi-
als through quality and safety control procedures 
and verification of their compliance with the 
specified standards.

1- Guarantee of the Quality of Materials:

Nadec works with suppliers to reduce prices and 
develop raw materials to achieve cost savings and 
improve cost efficiency.

2- Adopting Strategies to Improve Cost Efficiency:

Nadec adopts SAP Ariba to improve efficiency and 
accelerate procurement processes and is prepar-
ing to introduce new technologies in the future.

3- Updating Procurement Technology:

Sustainability and Social Responsibility in Procurement
Nadec strives to promote sustainable practices in the 

supply chain by working with farmers and supporting 

local products. It shows its commitment to working in 

the agricultural sector in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 

by actively supporting local agriculture and using lo-

cally sourced raw materials to manufacture its prod-

ucts. Recognizing the importance of self-sufficiency 

and the positive impact on the national economy, the 

company enters into strategic partnerships with lo-

cal farmers, providing them with resources, expertise 

and fair market opportunities. By making the use of 

locally produced raw materials a top priority, Nadec 

not only ensures the highest level of quality in its 

products, but also contributes to the development of 

a strong and resilient agricultural ecosystem in the 

Kingdom. This approach is in line with the company’s 

commitment to environmental responsibility, com-

munity support, and the promotion of sustainable 

practices, thus creating the necessary balance be-

tween business success and community well-being.
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Achieving Operational 
Excellence:
The Digital and Technology Department launched the 
EZ-Feed program in 2023G. The program provides the em-
ployees with real-time data to improve accuracy in fodder 
management. The program works as an integrated tool for 
managing fodder and determining cow feed intake. The 
program is seamlessly linked to the SAP system for optimal 
performance and monitoring. This strategic work ensures 
that informed decisions are made, resulting in significant 
savings in daily fodder expenses and efficient operations.

Digital Payments:
Nadec has revolutionized its payment processing method 
by deploying SoftPOS technology, a secure and versatile 
mobile POS technology that transforms smart devices into 
innovative payment tools. This technology has contibuted 
to improving the customer experience. Nadec has reaf-
firmed its commitment to strengthening its leadership in 
the world of digital commerce and payments.

Artificial Intelligence:
The use of smart technologies supported by artificial intel-
ligence and machine learning has brought about a major 
change in Nadec’s decision-making processes, from auto-
matic replenishment of inventory to material requirements 
planning (MRP) and the application of manufacturing in-
tegration and intelligence (MII). Such technologies have 
enabled Nadec to make accurate, data-driven decisions 
quickly. The results were not limited to improved efficien-
cy, but also created a more flexible and responsive work 
environment and a readiness for continued success.

Green Energy Initiative:
As a driver of our commitment to environmental protection 
and sustainable development, the Digital and Technology 
Department has made great strides toward a green future. 
This has included eliminating dependence on paper, adopt-
ing environmentally friendly initiatives and promoting a 
culture of environmental responsibility by using innovative 
technologies and redesigning operational processes. This 
has helped to reduce our environmental impact and has 
contributed to the transformation of our industry towards a 
more sustainable future.

6- Digital and Technology Department

In line with the “New Dawn” strategy, Nadec’s Digital and Technology 
Department underwent a significant expansion in 2023G, and as such will 
now play an essential role in all operational aspects of the company. It 
contributed to strategic growth, enhanced technological development, and 
led digital transformation efforts to increase operational effectiveness.

One Source of Information:
The Digital and Technology Department has succeeded in 
implementing an advanced, highly efficient and scalable 
system. The system has contributed to meeting the signifi-
cant increase in business development needs, ensuring that 
the company remains ready to meet all customer's needs. 
We also reinforced our commitment to a single source of 
information by implementing SAP as an enterprise resource 
planning (ERP) system. This strategic move helped improve 
operational efficiency and provided a direct control panel for 
decision making based on accurate and correct data.

Improving Operational Efficiency:
The Digital and Technology Department has implemented an 
ambitious initiative by launching the second phase of SAP, 
which consists of 22 programs and technology solutions. This 
marked an important turning point in our journey towards en-
terprise resource planning and provided seamless integration 
of all operational systems, such as factory maintenance, fleet 
management, recruitment, bank communications, collec-
tions and credit management. As a result, Nadec has become 
a leader in the adoption of the latest digital solutions and 
systems.

Digital Transformation Strategy:
In pursuit of digital transformation, a strategic map was un-
veiled that focuses on innovation and digitalization of the 
company’s various segments. The introduction of the busi-
ness partner concept has increased individual participation 
and improved the provision of support and services with 
other segments. As a result, a culture of continuous improve-
ment and innovation has been fostered, placing Nadec at the 
forefront of technological advancement in the food industry.

Infrastructure Improvement:
The decision made by the Digital and Technology Depart-
ment to move to the cloud network as a strategic response 
to challenges such as dependence on data centers, high 
costs, and significant security risks has resulted in provid-
ing effective solutions in terms of cost reduction, signif-
icant risk reduction, and simplification of the monitoring 
process. This has resulted in significant flexibility and ap-
petite to develop the infrastructure.

SCADA System and 
Operational Technology 
(OT) Infrastructure Upgrade:
The SCADA and operational technology (OT) infrastructure 
upgrade was a strategic decision driven by the need to in-
crease operational flexibility. It has improved the concept 
of system and service availability, which has helped to 
mitigate risks and strengthen our operations in the face of 
unexpected obstacles. Nadec has adopted advanced tech-
nologies for industrial control and digitalization.

Outstanding Organizational 
Commitment:
Pursuing operational excellence and compliance with reg-
ulatory standards, Nadec successfully launched the second 
phase of its electronic invoicing system, e-Invoice. This has 
strengthened our commitment to best financial practices 
and helped to simplify financial operations, reduce errors 
and increase the overall efficiency of our invoicing system.
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Nadec Internal Communication 

We Communicate Effectively...
to Enhance our Strategy

Means of Gathering Feedback 
and Suggestions at Nadec

	� Employees' feedback on the quality of internal com-
munication is collected through the “Nadec Home” 
and “Yamir” platforms, as well as through meetings at 
company events.

	� The mechanisms for encouraging employees include 
submitting suggestions for improving communication 
through the periodic “Coffee with the CEO” program, 
which is designed to raise employees’ awareness of 
the company’s strategy, promote engagement, and 
discuss work requirements to enhance communica-
tion between the senior management and, in particu-
lar, distinguished and new employees.

Management Communication
The importance of management communication at Nadec 
is embodied in a series of events and interactions that the 
management conducts to improve internal communica-
tion. For example, the “Nadec Table” event is organized pe-
riodically to introduce the company’s products to employ-
ees and promote team spirit and engagement. This event is 
held as an opportunity for direct interaction between the 
management and employees.

In addition, the company organizes events to celebrate in-
ternational and national days, which contribute to enhanc-
ing the social and cultural spirit in the work environment. 
After each event, a questionnaire is sent to employees to 
evaluate such events and to express their suggestions and 
opinions. This demonstrates the company’s commitment 
to understanding employees' needs and expectations and 
working to continuously improve events.

Mutual Interaction and 
Understanding
Through internal communication methods and the ap-
proach to improving communication between employees 
and senior management, Nadec’s strategies for improving 
internal communication in 2023G include effective efforts 
to encourage continuous and open communication. Mod-
ern communication technologies are employed to achieve 
an interactive and transparent experience. These strategies 
aim to build bridges of communication in the company and 
incentivize the exchange of ideas and opinions among all 
business stakeholders. These strategies that Nadec adopts 
include the promotion of internal dialog and exchange of 
ideas and opinions between work groups. Nadec often es-
tablishes continuous and direct communication with em-
ployees and encourages the submission of opinions and 
suggestions. It also looks forward to building a vital and 
transparent communication environment to ensure effec-
tive interaction and mutual understanding.

Creative Communication 
Achievements

	� The “One Nadec” program, in which all employees 
wear Nadec uniforms with the logo, is held every 
Thursday. Brainstorming sessions are also held to en-
courage creative thinking.

	� The “Coffee with CEO” program is held periodically to 
improve communication between senior management 
and employees.

Excellence at Nadec comes from a deep understanding 
of the importance of internal communication. Effective 
communication between departments and employees is 
essential to achieve integration and coordination in all as-
pects of work. Good communication is effective in improv-
ing interaction and sharing ideas that leads to increased 
innovation and creativity.

Internal communication is the primary way to understand 
the company’s vision and future objectives, which inspires 
employees to work together to achieve those objectives. 
Thanks to the modern and social communication platforms 
used in Nadec, direct communication is improved and effec-
tive channels are opened to listen to employees’ opinions.

This interest in internal communication contributes to the 
creation of a positive work environment where every indi-
vidual feels the importance of his or her role and contribu-
tion to the success of Nadec.

“Nadec Home” and “Yamir” 
platforms - Qualitative 
Change between 
Management and Employees
Nadec is witnessing an improvement in communication 
between management and employees through the use of 
modern technology and the creation of an internal news-
paper on an electronic website where employees can re-
view all company news, post their comments, and open 
dialogues on anything Nadec related. In addition, the com-
pany has a social platform "Yamir, which is similar to social 
media and aims to increase employee engagement and ex-
change of experiences among them.

“Coffee with the CEO” Initiative
Nadec is currently working on the launch of future special 
initiatives aimed at improving employee's satisfaction and 
creating a stimulating work environment. Distinguished and 
new employees will have the opportunity to hold a one-hour 
“Coffee with the CEO” meeting. During this meeting, the prog-
ress of work is discussed and the needs and requirements of 
employees are met, which helps to establish strong relation-
ships between the company’s leadership and its employees.

In addition, weekly meetings are organized to listen to em-
ployees’ opinions and needs, which enhances effective com-
munication and encourages employees to participate in im-
proving the work environment. This listening and motivational 
approach is one of the foundations for achieving success and 
satisfaction in Nadec’s dynamic work environment.

Feedback and Suggestions
The feedback and suggestions in the Internal Communi-
cation Department are essential to promote continuous 
improvement and achieve excellence. Feedback is an ef-
fective way to understand employees' experiences and de-
termine the level of their satisfaction and needs. The com-
pany encourages open communication and the provision 
of opinions and suggestions to improve operations and 
create a better work environment.

The Communication Department appreciates the deploy-
ment of modern technologies and electronic platforms to 
facilitate the continuous collection of feedback and sug-
gestions. These inputs are carefully analyzed to identify 
opportunities to improve operations and meet employee 
expectations and needs. By encouraging a culture of open 
communication and constructive interaction, internal com-
munication is strengthened as an essential part of Nadec’s 
strategy, since mutual understanding and integration of ef-
forts are crucial to achieving sustainable success.
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Financial Performance

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2023
Figures are in (Millions) SAR 2023 2022 Change % 2021 2020 2019

Non - Current Asset 2,694.9 2,706.8 (0.44) 2,744.5 2,775.0 2,837.3

Current Assets 2,414.9 1,114.7 116.64 1,145.2 1,100.6 1,106.7

Total Assets 5,109.8 3,821.5 33.71 3,889.7 3,875.6 3,944.0

Non-Current Liabilities 284.5 1,089.5 (73.89) 1,363.9 1,082.2 1,260.3

Current Liabilities 1,232.4 1,436.9 (14.23) 1,330.0 1,315.1 1,243.2

Total Liabilities 1,516.9 2,526.4 (39.96) 2,693.9 2,397.3 2,503.5

Shareholders’ Equity 3,592.9 1,295.1 177.42 1,195.8 1,478.3 1,440.5

Total Shareholders’ Equity 
and Liabilities

5,109.8 3,821.5 33.71 3,889.7 3,875.6 3,944.0

The movement of Cash Flows for the year ended on December 31 2023
Figures are in (Millions) SAR 2023 2022 Change % 2021 2020 2019

Profit before Zakat 290.3 101.5 186.01 (245.3) 41.4 (2.4)

Cash flows from operating activities 750.3 477.1 57.26 324.6 426.9 463.4

Net cash flows from operating 
activities

654.7 451.8 44.91 255.6 443.3 551.2

Net cash flows used in investing 
activities

(756.5) (243.0) 211.32 (324.8) (216.9) (235.6)

Net cash flows from (used in) 
financing activities

824.7 (177.5) (564.62) 82.4 (219.7) (288.8)

Net change in cash and cash equivalent 722.8 31.2 2,216.67 13.2 6.7 26.8

Cash and cash and cash equivalent at 
beginning of the year

112.8 81.9 37.73 68.7 62.0 35.2

Cash and cash and cash equivalent at 
end of the year

834.7 112.8 639.98 81.9 68.7 62.0

Key Performance Indicators 
Indicators 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Return on revenue 9.4% 3.5% -12.5% 1.5% 0.3-%

Return on equity 8.4% 7.4% -23.8% 2.4% 0.5-%

Loan-to-equity ratio 10.5% 117.8% 136.9% 100.8% 113.6%

Revenue growth rate 18.7% 18.6% -1.3% 3.5% 6.2%

The ratio of operating profit to revenue 10.8% 5.5% -9.4% 3.7% 5.2%

Number of shares (million) 301.6       101.6 101.6 101.6 101.6 

Earnings (loss) per share (SR)* 1.77 0.94 (2.81) 0.35 (0.07)

Statement of Profit or Loss for the year ended 31 December 2023
Figures are in (Millions) SAR 2023 2022 Change % 2021 2020 2019

Revenue 3,196.9 2,694.2 18.66 2,272.3 2,303.1 2,225.3 

Cost of Sales (2,013.2) (1,885.9) 6.75 (1,641.5) (1,577.2) (1,380.7)

Gross Profit 1,183.7 808.3 46.44 630.8 725.8 844.6 

Operating Profit / (Loss) 344.5 147.0 134.35 (213.3) 84.6 115.9 

Profit/ (Loss) for the year 302.1 95.5 216.34 (285.0) 35.7 (7.3)

Total comprehensive 
income for the year

312.0 99.3 214.20 (282.4) 37.7 (5.7)

*Certain of the previous years amounts have been reclassified to conform to the presentation in the current year.
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Revenue growth by sector 

Figures are in (Millions) SAR 2023 2022 Change %
% of 

revenue 
2023

% of 
revenue 

2022

Dairy and food processing 3,009.6 2,543.1 18.3 94.1 94.4

Agricultural products 116.8 56.7 106 3.7 2.1

Sales of calves and bulls 70.5 94.4 (25.3) 2.2 3.5

Total Revenue 3,196.9 2,694.2 18.7 100.0 100.00

Nadec operates in two main business sectors, Manufacturing of Dairy and Foods and Production of Agricultural 
Products, total revenues increased during the current year 2023G by 18.7% compared to the previous year. Rev-
enue of dairy and food processing segment increased by 19.2% and revenue of agricultural segment increased 
by 6.03%.

Operating expenses 

Figures are in (Millions) SAR 2023 % on sales 2022 % on total Change %

Cost of Sales 2,013.2 63.0 1,885.9 70.0 6.8

Selling and Marketing expenses 339.6 17.5 488.2 18.1 14.6

Impairment Losses on Trade and other 
Receivables

48.8 1.5 11.6 0.4 320.7

General and administrative expenses 213.1 6.7 139.0 5.2 53.3

Other operating expenses (income). -6.3 -0.2 12.5 0.5 -150.4

Write off/ impairment losses on 
property, plant and equipment

24.0 0.8 10.0 0.4 140.0

Total operating expenses 2,852.4 89.2 2,547.2 94.5 12.0

Figures are in (Millions) SAR 2023
% on 
sales

2022
% on 
total

Change %

Direct production costs 1,544.3 48.3 1,449.0 53.8 6.6

Employees costs 502.3 15.7 462.4 17.2 8.6

Marketing expenses 183.0 5.7 125.8 4.7 45.5

Operating and Administrative expenses 394.6 12.3 259.1 9.6 52.2

Depreciation of property and right-of-use assets 234.5 7.3 238.4 8.8 -1.6

Other operating expenses (income) -6.3 -0.2 12.5 0.5 -150.4

Total operating expenses 2,852.4 89.2 2,547.2 94.5 12.0

70.5

3009.6

116.8

2022 2023

94.4

2543.1

56.7

Sales of calves and bulls Agricultural products Dairy and food processing 
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Figures are in (Millions) SAR 2023
% on 
sales

2022
% on 
total

Change %

Revenues 3,196.9 100.0 2,694.2 100.0 18.7

Operational costs

Cost of Sales 2,013.2 63.0 1,885.9 70.0 6.8

Selling and Marketing expenses 339.6 17.5 488.2 18.1 14.6

Impairment Losses on Trade and other 
Receivables

48.8 1.5 11.6 0.4 318.1

General and administrative expenses 213.1 6.7 139.0 5.2 53.3

Other operating expenses (income). -6.3 -0.2 12.5 0.5 -150.4

Write off/ impairment losses on property, 
plant and equipment

24.0 0.8 10.0 0.4 140.0

Total operating expenses 2,852.4 89.2 2,547.2 94.5 12.0

Operating profit 344.5 10.8 147.0 5.5 134.4

Total operating expenses for this year increased by 12.0% compared to last year due to the increase in the 
cost of revenues compared to the last year by 6.8% due to the increase in material consumption and also the 
increase in Selling and marketing expenses by 14.6% due to the growth in sales volume for this year compared 
to the last year. General and administrative expenses went up by 53.3% compared to last year.

Despite the increase in the operating expenses by 12%, for this year compared to last year, the operating 
profit for the current year rose compared to last year by 134.4% because of the increase in revenues for this 
year by 18.7%.

Working Capital Development 

Figures are in (Millions) SAR 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Current Assets 2,414.8 1,114.7 1,145.2 1,100.6 1,106.7 

Current liabilities 1,232.4 1,436.9 1,330.0 1,315.1 1,243.1 

Working capital 1,182.4 (322.2) (184.8) (214.5) (136.4)

The deficit in the working capital of the company during the year 2022 reached 322.2 million Saudi riyals, be-
cause of the increase in current portion of long-term loans and increase in trade payable and other payables. 
During the current year working capital became positive due to repayment of current portion of the loans.

Details of loan movements from local banks with 
Murabaha contracts (deferred sale) and the balance as of 
31 December 2023  

Figures are 
in (Mil-

lions) SAR

Opening balance 2023 Closing Balance 2023

Duration 
of the 
loan

Credit 
limit

Prin-
cipal 
of the 
loan

Inter-
ests 
due

Open-
ing 
bal-
ance

Addi-
tions 

during 
the 
year 
2023

Pay-
ments 
during 

the 
year 
2023

Prin-
cipal 
of the 
loan

Inter-
ests 
due

Closing 
balance

SNB 100.0 50.0 0.2 50.2 0.6 50.8 50.0 0.8 0.0
3 

months

Al Rajhi 
Bank

463.3 242.0 2.8 244.8 60.0 294.6 277.0 17.6 10.1
3 to 66 
months

Saudi Brit-
ish Bank 

875.0 423.8 3.2 427.0 310.6 408.5 380.9 27.7 329.1

3 
months 

46 
months

Riyad Bank 962.0 687.3 5.3 692.6 156.2 815.4 767.3 48.0 33.5
3 to 66 
months

Arab na-
tional Bank

100.0 13.0 0.1 13.1 0.09 13.14 13.00 0.10 0.05
3 

months

Total Bal-
ance 

100.0 50.0 11.6 1,427.7 527.5 1,582.5 1,488.2 94.2 372.7

The above-mentioned table represents all loans granted to the company by local banks in the Kingdom of 
Saudi Arabia and in line with the term sale agreements concluded with the company and those banks, in ac-
cordance with Islamic law, and according to to payment schedules that have been previously agreed upon with 
those banks and the loan term shown in the above table.
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Statement of outstanding loans from local banks 
and their maturity dates 

Figures are in (Millions) SAR 2023 2022 Change %

less than one year 227.62 587.7 -61%

From one year to two years 145.28 284.1 -49%

From two to five years - 525.8 -100%

more than five years - 30.1 -100%

Total balance 372.7 1,427.7 -74%

Movement of Agricultural Development Fund loans 

Figures are in (Millions) SAR 2023 2022 Change %

Opening Balance 97.7 5.5 1,676.36%

Additions during the year 54.81 93.3 -41.25%

Payments during the year 149.07 -1 -15,006.86%

Total balance 3.5 97.7 -96.42%

During the year, the company was granted a short-term loan of SAR 54.81 million for a period of one year. This 
loan is secured by stock owned by the company. The balance of these loans from the Agricultural Development 
Fund, as of December 31, 2023, amounted to 3.5 million Saudi riyals (Note (27.2) annual financial statements 
for the year 2023).

Government Payments in 2023 

A statement
Payment 

(Millions) SAR
Due Balance
(Million SAR)

Brief description Reasons

Visas, passports, 
labor office and 
municipal fees

46.86 -

Visas, employment 
office fees, 
residency renewal, 
and municipal fees 
during the year 
2023.

Value added tax 237.2 14.27
The value-added 
tax paid during the 
year 2023.

VAT in December 
2023, to be paid in 
January 2024.

Zakat and with-
holding tax

21.5 45.87

Zakat paid for 
previous years and 
withholding tax 
during the year 
2023.

Zakat provision 
(note 32).

Social insurances 19.6 1.46
Amounts of insur-
ances paid during 
the year 2023.

December 2023 
Social insurance, to 
be paid in January 
2024.

customs fees 19.2 -
Customs duties 
paid during the 
year 2023.

Customs declara-
tion -2023.

Total 344.4 61.6
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Percentage of increase 
in net profit

213.3% 
in 2023G

Chief Financial Officer's Message
Mr. Hassan Akrouq

I am proud to present to you the achievements of 
Nadec’s Financials in 2023G, following the adop-
tion of the company's new strategy under the slo-
gan "New Dawn". This strategy included a major 
directive aimed at improving cost efficiency, ex-
panding our product in line with improved qual-
ity, and improving distribution channels. With 
this strategy in mind, we were able to develop 
supply chain efficiency and reduce waste. We also 
increased our market share by introducing new 
products that meet customer's needs, despite 
challenges related to raw material and fuel price 
inflation. In addition, we succeeded in effectively 
reducing the cost of sales ratio.

Furthermore, we were able to effectively manage 
cashflows in order to finance operational needs in-
ternally and repay scheduled interest and principal 
on our loans by optimizing our operating cycle.

The results achieved in 2023G demonstrate the 
strength of Nadec’s brand. Revenues increased by 
18.66% to reach  SAR 3.197 billion in 2023G from 
SAR 2.694 billion in 2022G. This increase was main-
ly driven by strong business and growth due to the 
increased demand. The net income reached SAR 
302.06 million in 2023G, which is a positive amount 
in line with our future aspirations and the compa-
ny's strategy.

In the context of the company's revenue, the fig-
ures show that sales of dairy and food processing 
products make up the majority of the company’s 
revenues, accounting for 96.3% of total revenue in 
the to 2023G. Sales of calf and red meat products 
accounted for SAR 3% of total revenue in the same 
period. Revenue generated from agricultural prod-
ucts represented 3.7% of total revenue.

However, the cost of sales increased to SAR 2.013 
billion in 2023G, from SAR 1.886 billion in the pre-
vious year. This increase is attributable to high-
er sales, while the percentage of the cost sales 
dropped from 70% to 63% due to efficiencies in 
material cost.

Gross profit increased from SAR 808.33 million in 
the 2022G fiscal year to SAR 1,183.74 million in the 
2023G fiscal year. This is mainly due to the "New 
Dawn" strategy, which aims to expand the profit 
margin of the operating sectors and address the 
cost challenges.

Other revenue reached SAR 58.8 million in the 
2023G fiscal year, including revenue from govern-
ment grants of SAR 19.5 million. Other expenses 
amounting to SAR 52.4 million were recorded, in-
cluding losses from the sale of property, machinery 
and equipment.

In conclusion, Nadec succeeded in achieving out-
standing results in the 2023G fiscal year. Challeng-
es were turned into opportunities for development 
and improvement. The above achievements demon-
strate the company's ability to adapt to economic 
changes and effectively manage its operations. This 
proves Nadec’s commitment to realizing excellence 
and sustainability in all aspects of its business and 
increasing its capital to SAR 3 billion to reflect the 
scale of its ambitions and future plans.

Nadec Achieves Impressive 
Results in Financial Year 2023G
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Risk Management
Building a Risk Intelligent and Resilient Organization  

Risk Management Approach

Nadec’s risk management approach is based on four (4) 
key pillars that are activated by key enablers:

To make Nadec a risk intelligent and resilient organization.Vision:

Aspira-
tions To nurture and promote a risk culture and provide the awareness, 

governance and mechanisms needed for effective risk manage-
ment.

Mission:

Risk 
reporting 

and 
escalation

Risk 
monitoring

Risk 
governance

Risk 
awarenessPillars

oversight committees, executive management, risk management 
team, GRC partners, risk ownersPeople:

Enablers
A systematic application of management policies, procedures 
and practices to the tasks of communicating, consulting, con-
textualizing, identifying, analyzing, evaluating, treating, moni-
toring and reviewing risks. 

Process:

Tools and applications to automate the risk management processTechnology: 

Risk Governance   
In line with industry best practices and main-
taining adherence to widely recognized stan-
dards, our robust risk governance model oper-
ates within a dynamic three-tiered framework 
that promotes a proactive and comprehensive 
approach to risk management throughout the 
organization. At the top, executive manage-
ment, empowered risk owners, and a dedicated 
team of GRC partners collaborate seamlessly to 
identify, assess, and mitigate risks within their 
respective domains. The second line, led by the 

VP-GRC & Legal, orchestrates specialized risk 
management teams and provides structured 
mechanisms, essential tools, and unwavering 
support to strengthen the effectiveness of the 
first-line functions. The third line, which in-
creases oversight, includes the Nadec Board and 
its committees, and incorporates specialized 
risk oversight practices and an independent in-
ternal audit function that provides supervision 
of the entire risk management process.
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Risk Governance Framework
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Risk Management Approach
Our risk management system is based on ISO 31000 
and COSO’s “enterprise risk management frame-
work”. Our approach to risk management is dynamic, 
where risks are managed at multiple levels, i.e. stra-
tegic, operational, and specialized levels. We strive 
to make Nadec a risk intelligent organization where 
risk ownership is clearly defined so that everyone un-

derstands the risks associated with their operations 
based on clearly defined objectives. This approach 
empowers our people to proactively identify risks 
and be prepared to manage them according to the 
risk appetite set by the Board and the executive man-
agement.
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Risk Management Process

Establish Context 

• Risk Criteria  

• Risk Scoring System

• Risk Assessment Matrix

Risk Identification 

• Brainstorming

• Checklists

Risk
Treatment  

Recording
and

Reporting 
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Com
m

unication &
 Consultation

Risk Analysis

• Impact & Likelihood

• Effectiveness of Controls

Risk Evaluation

• Risk Heat Map

• Risk Indices

Communcation &

Consultation  

• Risk-based Decision

   Making

Monitoring & Review

• Key Risk Indicators (KRI) 

• Risk Treatment Tracking

• Risk Register

Risk Treatment 

• Business Impact Analysis

• Multi-Criteria Analysis

Recording and Reporting

• Review

• Follow-up

Establish
Context 

Risk
Identification

Risk
Analysis

Risk
Evaluation

Risk
Assessment 

Geopolitical 
Instability and 
Ongoing Wars
Ongoing conflicts around the 
world, with their ripple effects 
on the supply chain and energy 
markets, pose a significant threat 
to the food production industry. 
Rising raw material costs, supply 
chain disruptions, and potential 
trade restrictions could signifi-
cantly impact sustainability and 
financial stability.

Climate Change 
Intensification  
The intensifying effects of climate 
change pose a significant risk to 
global food security, with poten-
tial impacts on agricultural pro-
ductivity and the stability of food 
supplies. Rising temperatures, 
shifting rainfall patterns, and more 
frequent extreme weather events 
can disrupt agricultural produc-
tion, threaten yields, and affect 
the availability and affordability 
of food. Nadec will need to adapt 
its strategies to cope with these 
changing conditions and invest in 
climate-resilient technologies.

Technological 
Disruption
The accelerating pace of tech-
nological advances in artificial 
intelligence, machine learning, 
automation, and precision across 
various industries presents both 
exciting opportunities and signif-
icant risks for Nadec. While these 
advances have the potential to 
revolutionize our operations, en-
hance efficiency, and drive innova-
tion, and they also require careful 
consideration of their disruptive 
impact on traditional business 
models and workforce dynamics.

Water Scarcity 
and Management
Saudi Arabia's aridity and boom-
ing population are putting a strain 
on its limited freshwater resourc-
es. To ensure sustainability, Nadec 
must adopt innovative practices 
such as desalination, rainwater 
harvesting, and efficient irriga-
tion. Water-saving technologies, 
wastewater treatment, and com-
munity engagement can further 
conserve resources and reduce re-
liance on freshwater.

We constantly scan 
the ever-changing 
horizon and business 
landscape to better 
prepare for the 
potential challenges 
and opportunities 
that may arise in the 
future. Some of these 
contemporary trends 
are outlined below:
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Population Growth and 
Food Security
Saudi Arabia’s projected population growth poses a signif-
icant challenge to long-term food security. To address this, 
Nadec prioritizes optimizing land use and implementing 
efficient production systems that minimize environmen-
tal impact. We strategically invest in sustainable food 
production methods and innovative green technologies, 
fostering collaborations with local farms to establish our-
selves as a major contributor to food security in the King-
dom and neighboring GCC countries.

Our diverse portfolio includes dairy, juice, olive oil, red 
meat, and agricultural products, directly aligning with the 
national food security agenda. We anticipate continued 
growth in these sectors, positioning Nadec as a leader in 
large-scale food supply through our commitment to sus-
tainable practices and ongoing adaptation to evolving 
global challenges such as climate change and population 
growth.

Cybersecurity Threats
The pervasiveness of cyber threats requires constant vig-
ilance and robust security measures to protect Nadec's 
data infrastructure, information systems, and operation-
al integrity. The increasing sophistication and frequency 
of cyber attacks necessitates prioritizing cybersecurity 
throughout the organization. Recognizing the potential 
for operational disruption, financial loss, and reputational 
damage from breaches, we adhere to stringent standards 
such as the National Cyber Security Authority's (NCA) Es-
sential Cyber Security Controls. Beyond technical safe-
guards, we foster a culture of cyber awareness, under-
standing that the interconnected nature of risks extends 
to third-party partners who handle sensitive data.

Labor Market Dynamics 
and Talent Acquisition 
Challenges
Attracting and retaining skilled workers will become in-
creasingly challenging in the future. Nadec must invest in 
training programs, offer competitive wages and benefits, 
and create a positive work environment to attract and re-
tain talent.

Changing Consumer 
Preferences and Market 
Volatility
Consumer demands for sustainable, ethical food are evolv-
ing rapidly, colliding with market volatility and demand-
ing agility from Nadec. Production strategies must pivot, 
product portfolios must diversify, and market resilience 
must be strengthened to navigate this dynamic landscape. 
Adapting products based on market research, diversifying 
portfolios, building brand loyalty, and driving sustainable 
innovation are critical to satisfying evolving consumer 
preferences and maintaining market competitiveness to 
ensure Nadec thrives in this dynamic landscape.

Regulatory and Policy 
Uncertainty
A shifting regulatory landscape could disrupt Nadec's op-
erations and compliance. Proactive adaptation and careful 
monitoring of evolving policies will be key to navigating 
these uncertainties and ensuring seamless operations for 

continued success.

Reputational Risks and 
Ethical Considerations
Establishing proactive measures to navigate the dynamic land-
scape of changing regulations and unpredictable policy chang-
es in the food and agricultural sector is crucial to mitigating 
potential disruptions. This includes implementing a robust 
regulatory monitoring system, cultivating strong relationships 
with policymakers and industry associations, and investing in 
compliance expertise. Additionally, maintaining flexible pro-
duction processes allows for rapid adaptation to changing 
requirements, helping to alleviate production delays, market 
access restrictions, and reputational risks. Advocating for clear 
and consistent regulatory frameworks aligned with sustainable 
practices is essential to fostering innovation and aligning busi-
ness strategies with overarching policy goals.

Digitalization of Governance, Risk 
Management and Compliance
As part of our efforts to provide the best digital solutions for 
governance of risks and compliance, we have successfully 
added key systems for monitoring operations, risk manage-
ment and legal contract management (App4Legal). These 
solutions significantly enhance the efficiency of digital ser-
vices for risk and compliance governance, including early 
risk detection and ensuring compliance with regulations 
and laws, improving governance, and developing effective 
risk mitigation strategies.
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Food Security and 
Alignment with the 
Kingdom’s Vision 2030

Sustainability 
Management

Sustainability Approach

Environmental Protection

Environmental, Social, 
and Governance (ESG) 
Management



Food Security and Alignment 
with the Kingdom’s Vision 2030
The National Agricultural Development Company 
Nadec is focused on the continuous implementation 
of its “New Dawn” strategy to transform it into a com-
prehensive food company, making a qualitative leap 
in its development journey and ensuring sustainable 
food security. This is done with the aim of making it 
an active and influential enterprise  in the economic 
development of the Kingdom. Food security is con-
sidered one of the most important initiatives in the 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia’s Vision 2030, and Nadec 
seeks to make a significant contribution to the real-
ization of this vision, specifically with regard to the 
achievement of the Kingdom’s food vision.

With this in mind, Nadec has been committed to man-
ufacturing innovative products, improving operational 
efficiency, and ensuring that its products are accessi-
ble to all consumer groups.

Furthermore, the company has been actively imple-
menting its “New Dawn” strategy by entering new 
market segments and leveraging the capabilities of its 
research and development team to introduce new prod-
ucts that appeal to and satisfy the needs of consumers, 
while ensuring food security for the community. In 
this context, the company launched a 
new production line in 2023G to manu-
facture calf products as well as vegeta-
ble products in order to provide high-qual-
ity protein and vegetable products that meet 
internationally recognized standards.

New Dawn: A Visionary 
Expansion Strategy
At the heart of Nadec’s “New Dawn” strategy is a clear 
message about the need for total transformation and 
a qualitative leap forward. This marks the culmination 
of a four-decade journey that has seen the company 
transition from a dairy products company to an inte-
grated entity spanning all food categories. The rapid 
realization of this goal is imperative, aligned with the 
vision of a future-oriented broad market.

Protein: Promising 
Partnerships
When we talk about being an “all-food” company, 
we are referring to our expansion into new business 
segments. One notable venture is our protein-relat-
ed business, where Nadec has established globally 
standardized abattoirs for local meat production. At 
the company, we have successfully forged key part-
nerships across the entire food supply chain, with a 
particular focus on the agriculture and protein sec-
tors. In the area of protein, we have established im-
portant partnerships with leading red meat produc-
ers in Brazil. Australia has also emerged as a major 
supplier of red meat to our company. In addition, we 
have initiated the construction of our own abattoir 
to provide the market with locally sourced red meat.

Agricultural Sector: 
Strengthening Achievements 
and Ambitions
Building on Nadec’s achievements in 2023G, partic-
ularly in the agricultural sector, we have established 
key partnerships. Notably, a strategic collaboration 
with Del Monte was announced, focusing on the 
establishment of a company dedicated to fresh pro-
duce, including fruits, vegetables, fresh juices, pota-
to processing, and distribution within the Kingdom. 
This partnership is designed to strengthen local food 
self-sufficiency by diversifying fresh produce to meet 
market demand.

Additionally, our commitment to the agricultural 
sector includes reinforcing ties with farmers through 
contract farming, in line with the Kingdom’s vision. 
Rather than limiting our influence to major players, 
our approach ensures that small and medium-sized 
farmers continue to play a pivotal role in shaping the 
agricultural industry.
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Sustainability Management

Using 
Sustainable

Resources

Corporate
Governance

for Resource
Efficiency

Environmental &
Social Governance

Risk
Management

Social
Responsibility

Health & Safety

Attracting, Retaining,
& Localizing Talent

Waste Reduction

Long-term
Value Creation

Nadec aims to position itself as a leader in the “green” food sector in the Kingdom of 

Saudi Arabia by 2030. To realize this vision, the company’s sustainability strategy is 

built on the following pillars:

Improving Operational Efficiency
Nadec remains steadfast in its pursuit of the strategic goal of sustain-
ably improving operational efficiency. This commitment involves the 
implementation of advanced operational practices and the use of dig-
ital technology to maximize benefits and returns, and  ensure sustain-
able market share growth. The members of the Board of Directors of 
Nadec confirm that there have been no disruptions or material impacts 
on the company’s financial position during the past twelve (12) months.
Throughout 2023G, Nadec achieved remarkable revenue growth and en-
hanced profitability by implementing strategies focused on refining its 
manufacturing and distribution activities. Revenue for the current year 
showed a significant increase of 18.66% over the previous year, primar-
ily driven by the growth in dairy sales and the new protein sector of 
19.20%, and the agricultural sector of 6.03%..

Nadec’s management has been dedicated to enhancing operational per-
formance levels through a strategic focus on improving the cost struc-
ture to reduce expenses and increase profit margins. The sales-to-reve-
nue cost ratio for the current year showed a notable decrease of 7.02% 
compared with the previous year. This significant improvement is main-
ly due to the decrease of prices in consumable materials and raw ma-
terials.

Providing Products for All Consumer Segments
Nadec is constantly striving to strengthen the presence of its products 
in the market, expand its regional footprint, and facilitate geographic 
expansion. This is being pursued through the company’s commitment 
to entering into new partnership agreements and expanding distribu-
tion channels throughout the Kingdom, the Middle East, North Africa, 
and other untapped markets, creating diverse opportunities for future 
growth. During the year under review, revenue from the Kingdom of Sau-
di Arabia increased by 17.9%, while export revenue to other countries 
also increased with a growth rate of 24.8% compared to the previous 
year (2022G).

The revenue ratio increased to 

18.66%
compared to last year

Increase in Sales Percentage

 Dairy and Protein

19.20%
during the year 2023G

Increase in Sales Percentage

 Agricultural Sector

1.6%
during the year 2023G

Increase in Revenue

 Within the Kingdom

17.9%
 Exports to Other Countries

24.8%
compared to the 

previous year  
2022G
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Sustainability Approach

Meeting Stakeholder Needs
Nadec’s sustainability strategy revolves around supporting initiatives that engage stakeholder groups related 
to its activities, including organizations linked to its food-related operations and consumers. Prior to under-
taking community service activities, the company meticulously defines its organizational vision, mission, and 
goals. Through these guiding principles, Nadec endeavors to add environmental, social, and economic value 
to the communities it serves in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and beyond.

Six 6 Achievements of Nadec’s Communication Channels 
with Stakeholder Groups

Enabling Nadec 
to leverage 
stakeholder 
insights.

Continuously 
enhancing the 
strategic approach 
and responsiveness 
to material risks 
and opportunities.

Publicizing the 
organization’s 
sustainability 
issues, material 
impacts, and 
objectives.

Transparently 
reporting on the 
progress made in all 
divisions of Nadec.

Establishing open 
communication 
channels that allow 
stakeholders to gain 
deeper insight into 
Nadec’s approach.

Identifying 
potential 
opportunities 
by analyzing the 
nutritional needs 
of consumers.

0502

0401

0603

Four 4 Promising Targets Achieved by Nadec in 2023G

Target Indicators of goal achievement 

First: Nadec aims to 
become a leader in 
“green” food in the 
Kingdom of Saudi 
Arabia by 2030.

Nadec has partnered with a leading sustainability consulting firm 
to facilitate the development of its sustainability strategy and 
roadmap. This collaboration is instrumental in implementing Na-
dec’s strategy and contributing significantly to the objectives of 
the National Transformation Program 2023G.

Second: Promoting 
the Values of Integrity 
and Transparency by 
Leading by Example

Nadec fosters this culture within its own operations.

Nadec sets goals and reports on progress within its operational 
areas.

Nadec encourages and supports stakeholders to do the same. 
This commitment is driven by Nadec’s desire to take significant 
steps in innovation and collaboration to ensure the reduction of 
any pollution from its operations or suppliers.

Third: Maintaining a 
Healthy and Adaptive 
Environment is Crucial 
for Company Success

Nadec is committed to safeguarding the environment from natu-
ral threats through various initiatives, including projects to com-
bat desertification, efforts to reduce water consumption, efficient 
wastewater management, and ownership of one of the largest 
solar arrays in the Middle East for clean energy production. More 
details on environmental initiatives and achievements are provid-
ed in this report.

Fourth: Innovation to 
Ensure Food Security

We have dedicated resources to improving agricultural tech-
niques, production processes, and efficiency to maximize 
food production while ensuring the sustainable use of natural 
resources.

Steady Progress Toward 
Sustainable Operations
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Strategic Priorities for Product Sustainability
Nadec’s sustainability strategy, developed and refined throughout 2023G, outlines ten (10) foundations and 
priorities that are currently being implemented through environmental and social initiatives this year. In re-
sponse to today’s environmental and social changes, ensuring product sustainability in the food industry has 
become paramount to business continuity and meeting consumer expectations. As consumers increasingly 
seek products that prioritize environmental preservation and adhere to social responsibility, Nadec identifies 
and categorizes sustainability priorities within the industrial context of its products, addressing the challeng-
es it faces. These sustainability priorities encompass various aspects, including:

1-Sustainable Resources:
Focusing on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water, and 
raw materials, improves environmental efficiency through sustainable 
production practices and the use of renewable energy sources.

2- Environmentally Friendly Packaging:
Improving packaging design to reduce waste and minimize environmen-
tal impact, including the use of recyclable or renewable materials.

3- Sustainable Transportation:
Seeking environmentally friendly and efficient transportation methods 
to reduce carbon emissions associated with the supply chain.

4- Sustainable Agriculture:
Supporting sustainable farming practices for agricultural components 
used in products.

5- Social Responsibility:
Exercising social responsibility by caring about and making a social im-
pact, ensuring the responsible sourcing of components and materials.

6- Product Innovation:
Developing new and innovative products that meet customers’ needs in 
a sustainable way and achieve balanced environmental and economic 
performance.

7- Product Life Cycle Analysis:
Assessing the environmental impact of products throughout their life 
cycle, from production to disposal, and working to reduce that impact.

8- Compliance with International 
Standards:
Complying with international standards and regulations related to sus-
tainability and food classifications.

9- Sustainable Growth:
Opening departments that meet customers' needs and fulfill Nadec’s 
aspirations in the sustainable food market.

10- Achieving Social Added Value:
Promoting community participation through Nadec’s support of social, 
sports, and cultural projects, combining its productive purpose with its 
role in the community.
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Environmental Protection

Nadec’s Approach to Water Management
Nadec recognizes that access to water and sustainable water management are key 
factors in its continued success, whether in agriculture or manufacturing. The company 
has carried out several projects and initiatives focused on reducing water consumption and 
managing wastewater.

Nadec’s Water Management Initiatives in 2023G:
The company has implemented several important measures to reduce water usage and liquid waste, in-
cluding:

1-	 Partnering with Pure Harvest to implement innovative farming systems that result in reduced water 
consumption per kilogram of production.

2-	 Signing a memorandum of understanding with the Olive Producers Association to establish 
cooperation and promote the adoption of best practices, particularly in the field of irrigation.

3-	 Nadec has completed a study on water reclamation within its operations to achieve maximum 
efficiency and sustainability.

4-	 Planning for the implementation of a wastewater treatment project in 2024G.

Nadec’s Climate Change Approach
Nadec recognizes the challenges and risks associated with climate 
change, including desertification, water stress, and various negative 
environmental factors. As a leading company, Nadec prioritizes the 
adoption of green energy, participates in reforestation initiatives, and 
shares knowledge within its supplier network.

Nadec’s Climate Change Initiatives in 2023G:
1-	 The company has signed several agreements related to programs and 

initiatives that yield positive results in addressing climate change, 
including a partnership with Pure Harvest to create a food system that 
uses resources efficiently and reduces carbon emissions.

2-	 Announcement of Nadec’s ownership of one of the largest solar arrays 
in the Middle East, through which it continues to produce clean energy.

3-	 The company is implementing a fleet improvement program to reduce 
its environmental impact.

4-	 Nadec continues to use innovative cooling technologies at its dairy 
farms to reduce the amount of electricity required for cooling.

Nadec’s Approach to 
Waste Management
The company’s “New Dawn” strategy 
focuses on resource efficiency and 
waste management as an integral 
part of its sustainability approach, 
helping to reduce environmental 
impacts such as carbon dioxide 
emissions. Nadec’s approach to waste 
management aims to turn waste into 
usable natural resources instead of 
disposing of it.

Nadec’s Waste 
Management Initiatives 
in 2023G - Waste 
Disposal Program:
1-	 In 2023G, the company launched 

several initiatives, including the 
recently introduced “Waste Disposal 
Program” and the “Zero Waste 
Journey,” which will be expanded over 
the next five years.

2-	 As part of this initiative, the company’s 
digitization and automation programs 
are positively contributing to waste 
reduction and increased efficiency. 
Other projects include compostable 
packaging, biofuels, food waste reuse, 
and wastewater treatment.

3-	 In 2023G, Nadec signed several 
agreements related to programs 
and initiatives aimed at reducing 
unnecessary waste, including a 
partnership with “SERC” for the 
recycling of organic waste.
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Environmental, Social, and 
Governance (ESG) Management

Environmental
Management 

Responsible
Marketing

Human
Rights

Corporate Social
Investment 

Energy
Management

Animal
Welfare

Protecting the environment and ensuring sustain-
able development are critical issues. With the ever 
increasing population and consumption of resources, 
environmental degradation is inevitable unless co-
ordinated efforts are made to mitigate the negative 
impact on the planet. Nadec is committed to a sus-
tainable future by implementing sustainable practic-
es throughout its supply chain.

The concept of sustainability represents a clear direc-
tion in Nadec’s strategy in all its activities and oper-
ations. The company is committed to designing and 
building working environments that deliver responsi-
ble social, business, and environmental performance. 
Going beyond contractual performance and regulato-
ry compliance, the company exerts efforts to main-
tain sustainable operations that benefit its custom-
ers, partners, employees, and the local communities 
in which it operates. This is achieved by embracing 

a culture of sound health, safety, and environmen-
tal management throughout its operations, supply 
chains, and partnerships.

In line with the Kingdom’s goals of achieving net-ze-
ro emissions, decarbonizing the economy, and tran-
sitioning to a more sustainable future, Nadec has 
launched an ambitious investment strategy. As part 
of this strategy, it has initiated the development of 
a solar photovoltaic energy park, the first of its kind 
in the Kingdom. The project has a 25-year power pur-
chase agreement with French company ENGIE and 
has a capacity of 30 megawatts. The solar park fea-
tures 75,000 dual-axis tracking photovoltaic units, 
linear inverters, and a fully automated cleaning sys-
tem, utilizing the latest technologies to increase 
production capacity and reduce costs. The project is 
expected to reduce carbon emissions by 53 million 
kilograms per year.
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Environmental Management at Nadec
The ISO 14001 Environmental Management System adopted by Nadec is a set of international standards de-
veloped by the International Organization for Standardization (ISO) to boost the environmental performance 
and management of companies and organizations. The ISO 14001 system enables organizations to develop a 
structured and effective approach to managing and improving their environmental performance. The following 
are some key points about the ISO 14001 Environmental Management System implemented by Nadec.

Planning, Implementing, Improving... 
Realizing a Sustainable Environment

Scope of Application:
The ISO 14001 system applies to 
all Nadec activities that may affect 
the environment.

The system can be implemented 
in a wide range of organizations, 
including industrial and service 
companies.

System Structure:
The ISO 14001 system is based 
on the PDCA (Plan-Do-Check-Act) 
model for improving environmen-
tal performance, and requires the 
establishment of an environmen-
tal policy, the setting of goals and 
a plan to achieve them, the im-
plementation of these plans, the 
monitoring of results, and the im-
provement of processes based on 
assessments.

Documentation and 
Evaluation:
Nadec has developed detailed 
documentation covering all as-
pects of the environmental man-
agement system (EMS), including 
periodic performance evaluations 
and compliance checks to ensure 
continuous improvement.

Environmental 
Impact Analysis:
Nadec identifies and evaluates the 
environmental aspects of its activ-
ities and products. This involves  
assessing emissions, consump-
tion and potential environmental 
impacts.

Regulatory 
Compliance:
The ISO 14001 system requires the 
organization to comply with local 
and national environmental legis-
lation and regulations.

Encouraging 
Participation and 
Communication:
The system encourages the active 
participation of employees and 
facilitates internal and external 
communication on environmental 
issues.

Continuous 
Improvement:
The ISO 14001 system promotes 
continuous improvement of Na-
dec’s environmental performance 
by analyzing data and taking nec-
essary actions. By implement-
ing the ISO 14001 Environmental 
Management System, Nadec can 
achieve a number of benefits, in-
cluding reduced environmental 
impact, improved regulatory com-
pliance, and an enhanced reputa-
tion for environmental responsi-
bility.

Declared Company Commitments
The following are the key environmental initiatives undertaken by Nadec:

Environmental Initiative Importance

Sustainable Energy
Reducing dependence on fuel consumption

Activating the renewable energy and energy efficiency plan

Environment
Implementing food waste reduction plans 

Reducing the environmental impact of agricultural activities

Safety
Reducing material loss or damage to people and property

Establishing a secure system

Water Treatment and 
Consumption

Reducing water consumption

Establishing wastewater treatment for Nadec

Waste Management Ensuring treatment of all sources of waste
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Nadec Community Investment Initiatives

First: Community Contribution Principles
Nadec is committed to initiating impactful programs as an integral part of its ongoing efforts to engage with 
its community and customers in various events that contribute to their support, in line with its ethical values. 
The company strives to instill and act upon these values in all its internal and external activities, recognizing 
the significance of its role in society through participation, sponsorship, and more. This commitment fulfills 
one of the goals outlined in the Kingdom’s Vision 2030: “Enhancing Corporate Social Responsibility.”

Second: Initiatives to Realize the Company’s Social Investment Objectives

LocationInitiativeM

Al-Hofuf500 food products for the National Center for Palm and Dates1

Riyadh400 food products for the Innovation Forum2

Al-Kharj6,000 food products for the Khobar Festival3

Al-Qassim650 food products for the Inaiza International Date Forum4

Riyadh80 food products for the Abdullah bin Rawahah Mosque5

Riyadh400 food products for the Suleiman Al-Rajhi Mosque6

Riyadh250 food products for the Lubabah bint Al-Harith School7

Riyadh150 food products for the Saad bin Abada School8

Riyadh540 food products for the Saudi Charitable Society for Diabetes9

Madinah2,160 food products for the Sons of Medical Summer Forum for the Disabled10

Ongoing Sustainable Investment Efforts

LocationInitiativeM

Riyadh245 food products for School 13411

Riyadh, Jeddah, 
Eastern Region

Participation in National Day celebrations and provision of 24,000 food products12

Riyadh14 food products for the Civil Development Association13

Riyadh350 food products for Almenbar School14

Dammam180 food products for the Mnarat Alsharq School15

Riyadh600 food products for School 28716

Riyadh100 food products for the Shams School17

Riyadh200 food products for the Knowledge Research Center18

Riyadh250 food products for Islamic Education Schools19

Riyadh1,080 food products for the Center for Human Studies Research20

Riyadh250 food products for the Rawdh Society21

Riyadh800 food products for the “Cat Walk” event22

Riyadh250 food products for Al-Rayan College23

Riyadh3,350 food products for the Wafa Charitable Society24

Riyadh510 food products for School 17525

Riyadh540 food products for School 6426
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LocationInitiativeM

Riyadh500 food products for King Khalid Hospital27

Riyadh
1,305 food products for the Saudi Gymnastics Union in the Girls Gymnastics 
Championship

28

Madinah550 food products for the First Secondary School29

Madinah360 food products for the Fifth Intermediate School30

Riyadh400 food products for King Saud University31

Dammam510 food products for Al-Anwar Schools32

Riyadh250 food products for the Sciences Advancement School33

Riyadh400 food products for the Civil Development Association34

Riyadh609 food products for the Sons Nursery35

Qassim160 food products for the Women’s Development Society36

Riyadh1,680 food products for the Rawafed Summer Forum37

RiyadhSponsorship of the “R7” Running Club event38

Riyadh
Sponsorship of the Prince Sultan Medical Military City campaign “Awareness of 
Mental Health”

39

RiyadhSponsorship of King Faisal Specialist Hospital event "World Cup Matches"40

RiyadhWinter Clothing Initiative41

The number of 
beneficiaries from 

Nadec's social 
initiatives

has reached 

50,573 
people in various 

regions of the 
Kingdom
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Nadec Responsible Marketing Management
In keeping with the framework and methodology of responsible marketing to which Nadec is committed, we 
ensure compliance with the prevailing regulations in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. These regulations involve 
various laws and policies governing business operations and marketing practices, including those of Nadec. 
We conduct our activities with a focus on safeguarding consumers and contributing to the improvement of 
product quality. The following points outline the provisions of responsible marketing regulations in the field 
of marketing in the Kingdom that form the basis of Nadec’s strategy.

01 Consumer Rights Regulations:
This regulation underscores the definition of consumer rights and the corresponding obligations of com-
panies. These include providing accurate and transparent information about products and services and 
ensuring fair and secure transactions with customers.

02	 Personal Information Protection Laws:
These laws help ensure the security and protection of customer information and control the collection and 
processing of personal data in accordance with local laws and regulations.

03	 Marketing through Social Media:
Rules are established for marketing Nadec’s products on social media platforms, emphasizing fairness, 
transparency, and compliance with intellectual property rights laws.

04 Advertising Laws:
Establishing standards for advertisements related to Nadec, ensuring compliance with laws and ethical 
principles. Emphasis is placed on avoiding deceptive advertisements or those that may harm consumers.

05 Pricing Policies:
These policies govern the pricing of our products, prohibiting price manipulation and ensuring transparen-
cy in the display of prices. Misleading advertisements about discounts are also prohibited.

06 Compliance with Quality Standards:
Adherence to these standards ensures that Nadec’s products and services meet specified quality and safety 
standards in accordance with the regulations and standards of relevant regulatory bodies.

07 E-commerce Marketing:
E-commerce marketing at Nadec is regulated to ensure customer protection from illegal practices, with 
defined rights and obligations for online transactions.

08 Television Advertising Standards:
Television advertising standards are set to prevent consumer deception and ensure compliance with broad-
casting and advertising laws.

09 Intellectual Property Rights:
Laws protecting the intellectual property rights of companies regulate the use of trademarks and logos in 
accordance with the law.

10 Defining Nadec’s Responsibilities:
These responsibilities include ensuring the safety of Nadec’s products, providing warranties to customers, 
and complying with certain legal standards.
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Positive Contribution to Environmental 
Protection and Quality of Life

Nadec Energy Management
Embracing Clean and Green Energy
Implementing Nadec’s energy policy in accordance with established guidelines, the adoption of clean and 
green energy is a key component of Nadec’s strategy. This commitment seeks to contribute to environmental 
protection and promote sustainable development. Nadec has outlined various steps and policies to realize 
this objective:

Formulating a strategic plan to increase reliance 
on clean and green energy.

Set time-bound goals and targeted efficiencies to 
reduce carbon emissions.

Conducting awareness campaigns on the environ-
mental significance of adopting clean energy.

Encouraging members to take personal measures 
to conserve energy.

01 Energy Needs Analysis:
Conducting an analysis of current energy con-
sumption and understanding future needs.

Evaluating existing energy sources and identify-
ing areas for improvement.

Development of Clean 
Energy Plan:

02 Raising Awareness 
Among Nadec Members:

04

Investment in Clean 
Energy Technology:

03
Supporting investments in renewable energy 
technologies such as solar and wind.

Considering the upgrading of equipment, sys-
tems, and energy-efficient technologies.

05 Strategic Partnerships:
Collaborating with companies and institutions 
that specialize in clean energy technologies.

Exploring opportunities for partnerships with re-
newable energy providers.

Committing to comply with local and international leg-
islation related to the environment and energy.

Improving compliance with environmental stan-
dards and submitting regular reports.

Regularly monitoring performance and assessing 
the impact of implemented measures.

Making adjustments and improvements based on 
periodic evaluations.

These measures underscore Nadec’s commitment 
to sustainability and its positive contribution to 
environmental protection and the improvement 
of quality of life.

Compliance with 
Legislation and Standards:

06

Evaluation and 
Improvement:

07
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Human Rights at Nadec
In the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, Nadec implements its human rights policies by taking into account local and 
international laws and regulations, which it adheres to in its policies and approach. Adherence to human 
rights is an important concern in Nadec’s business operations, especially in a vital sector such as the food 
and dairy industry.

Commitment and Care in Nadec’s 
Policies and Approach 

Nadec is committed to all local and international 
laws and regulations related to human rights and 
ensures compliance with these laws and regula-
tions in all aspects of its operations.

Nadec is committed to ensuring equality between 
all workers and employees without discrimina-
tion on the basis of gender, race, religion, or any 
other grounds.

05 Transparency and Disclosure:
Nadec adheres to a policy and approach of trans-
parency in transactions and reporting, providing 
accurate and comprehensive information about 
the company’s activities and their impact on hu-
man rights.

02 Employee Rights:
Nadecguarantees the rights of its employees, in-
cluding the right to work in a safe and healthy 
environment, providing training and development 
opportunities, and respecting the rights of the or-
ganizational framework in which Nadec operates.

Measures are taken to combat discrimination and 
exploitation in all of Nadec’s activities, empha-
sizing its non-involvement in any activities that 
violate human rights.

03 Community Collaboration:
Nadec promotes community collaboration and 
implements social initiatives that contribute to 
improving living conditions and promoting sus-
tainable development in society.

Equality and 
Non-Discrimination:

01 Compliance with Human 
Rights Laws:

04

Combating Discrimina-
tion and Exploitation:

06

Nadec Provides Care and a Healthy 
Environment Based on International 
Standards for Animal Rights
Animal Welfare at Nadec
Nadec is recognized as a leader in the food and dairy industry and is committed to high standards of animal 
welfare The company recognizes the importance of respecting and caring for animals and strives to provide a 
healthy and comfortable environment for them based on the following international animal rights principles:

03 Freedom from Malnutrition:
Nadec takes a strict approach to ensure that all ani-
mals are provided with sufficient and effective food 
and water, along with rich and balanced nutrition 
to ensure their health and well-being. Nadec be-
lieves that good nutrition is a contributing factor in 
the production of high-quality food products, and 
we therefore strive to ensure the highest level of 
quality. The company’s strategy emphasizes the im-
portance of providing proper nutrition to its animal 
chain to ensure the quality of the food products 
produced on our farms.

01 Freedom of Movement:
Nadec strives to ensure that all animals involved 
in production operations have adequate and ap-
propriate space to roam and move freely within 
the barn, while providing them with a comfort-
able and clean environment.

Nadec places special emphasis on reducing the 
risk of injury and disease by providing sustain-
able healthcare and effective vaccination pro-
grams. Necessary medical care is also provided 
when necessary to provide good veterinary care 
for the animal chain, thereby increasing their pro-
ductivity and the efficiency of the disease preven-
tion programs.

At Nadec, we are devoted to providing a natural 
environment in which animals can express their 
natural behaviors, whether by providing ample 
space to move around or by encouraging social 
interaction between the animals.

05 Freedom from Stress:
Nadec carefully designs animal environments to 
minimize sources of stress and fear, including 
keeping surroundings calm and providing safe 
isolation areas when necessary. This is based on 
the understanding that animals always require 
environments that help to reduce stress or the ex-
penditure of vital energy, which helps to increase 
the efficiency of our products during the opera-
tional stage.

Nadec’s strong commitment to animal rights is 
reflected in its realization of the five global free-
doms, demonstrating its dedication to social and 
environmental responsibility in all aspects of its 
work.

Freedom of Behavioral 
Expression:

02

Freedom from Injury and 
Disease:

04
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Parties and Competing 
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Internal Audit



Nadec Organizational and 
Administrative Structure

Support FunctionsCore Functions

Governance, Risks,
Compliance and Legal 

Finance

Procurement

Digital and Technology

Human Resource

Strategy

Supply Chain
and Logistics

Contract Farming

Dairy

Agriculture

Manufacturing

Protein

Sales and Distribution

Marketing and
Development

Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee

Executive CommitteeAudit Committee

Internal Audit Department

General Assembly

Board of Directors

Chief Executive Officer
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The Board of Directors consists of seven (7) mem-
bers elected by the Ordinary General Assembly of 
Shareholders through a cumulative voting process. 
The roles and responsibilities of the Board are clearly 
defined in the company’s Bylaws and Internal Gover-
nance Regulations. Each director, including the Chair-
man, serves for a maximum term of three (3) years, 
with the possibility of re-election, subject to the pro-
visions of the company’s bylaws. The current term of 
the Board of Directors commenced on 11 April 2021.

The executive management team has the necessary 
expertise and skills and operates under the super-
vision of the Board of Directors. The CEO assumes 
responsibility for day-to-day operations, ensuring 
alignment with directives and policies set by the 
Board to facilitate the achievement of predefined 
objectives.

Board of Directors and Senior Executives Evaluation of Board 
Performance
The evaluation of the Board of Directors and its com-
mittees is conducted in accordance with established 
governance rules and controls. This process serves to 
monitor and enhance the effectiveness of the Board 
and its committees in performing their duties in an 
optimal manner and in compliance with the Compa-
nies Law, the company’s Bylaws, and relevant laws 
and regulations, while adhering to sound corporate 
governance principles and practices.

Termination of Board 
Membership
No member of the Board of Directors had their mem-
bership terminated during the year 2023.

Appointment of Board 
Members
During 2023, the following member was appointed to 
fill a vacant position on the Board of Directors:

Mr. Khaled bin Salem Al-Ruwais was appointed as an in-
dependent member of the Audit Committee with effect 
from 08/04/2023G.

.
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Biographies of Board Members 
and Senior Executives

Membership Type:
Chairman of the Board of Directors (Non-Executive Member)

Date of Appointment 
(Current Term):
Commencement of current term: 11 April 2021.

Date of Appointment: 11 April 2021.

Committee Membership:
Chairman of the Executive Committee

Professional Experience 
and Qualifications (Current):

	� Founder and Chairman of the Board - ESR Financial 
Consultancy Office.

	� Chairman of the Board - Arrangement Event Compa-
ny for Exhibitions.

	� Member of the Board of Directors, Chairman of the 
Nominations and Remuneration Committee and 
Member of the Audit Committee - The Family Office 
International Investment Company.

	� Chairman of the Board - Naseej for Communication 
and Information Technology Company.

	� Member of the Board of Directors and Chairman of 
the Audit Committee - Al-Obeikan Glass Company.

	� Vice Chairman of the Board - Minerva Foods Com-
pany.

Abdulaziz Bin Saleh Al-Rebdi  
Chairman of the Board of Directors Memberships of the board outside of Nadec:

Current Board 
Memberships

Inside/ 
Outside 

the 
Kingdom

Legal Entity
Previous Board 
Memberships

Inside/ 
Outside 

the 
Kingdom

Legal Entity

Naseej for Communication 
and Information 
Technology Company

Inside 
the 

Kingdom

Listed Joint-
Stock Company

Al Hammadi Development 
and Investment Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Listed Joint-
Stock Company

Al-Obeikan Glass 
Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Listed Joint-
Stock Company

Walaa Cooperative 
Insurance Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Listed Joint-
Stock Company

The Family Office 
International 
Investment Company

Inside 
the 

Kingdom

Unlisted Joint-
Stock Company

Takween Advanced 
Industries Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Listed Joint-
Stock Company

Minerva 
Foods Company

Outside 
the 

Kingdom

Listed Joint-
Stock (Brazil)

Abdullah Al-Othaim 
Markets

Inside the 
Kingdom

Listed Joint-
Stock Company

-	 - -
Abdulmohsen Al-Hokair 
Group for Tourism and 
Development Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Listed Joint-
Stock Company

-	 - -
Saudi Agricultural and Livestock 

Investment Company (SALIC)
Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted

-	 - -
Al-Obeikan Industrial 

Group
Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted

-	 - -
Saline Water Conversion 

Corporation
Inside the 
Kingdom

Saudi 
Governmental 
Organization

-	 - - Social Development Bank
Inside the 
Kingdom

Financial 
Institution

-	 - -
Saudi Investment 

Recycling Company (SIRC)
Inside the

Kingdom
Unlisted

Professional Experience and 
Qualifications (Previous):

	� Managing Director - National Agricultural Develop-
ment Company (NADEC).

	� General Director - Lazurde Industrial Investment 
Group.

	� Project Manager - Saudi Industrial Development Fund.

	� Project Analyst - Saudi Industrial Development Fund.

	� Board Member and Member of the Audit Committee - 
Al Hammadi Development and Investment Company.

	� Board Member - Walaa Cooperative Insurance Company.

	� Board Member - Takween Advanced Industries Company.

	� Board Member - Abdullah Al-Othaim Markets.

	� Board Member - Abdulmohsen Al-Hokair Group for 
Tourism and Development Company.

	� Board Member - Saudi Agricultural and Livestock In-
vestment Company (SALIC).

	� Board Member - Al-Obeikan Industrial Group.

	� Board Member - Saline Water Conversion Corporation.

	� Board Member - Social Development Bank.

	� Board Member and Executive Committee Member - 
Saudi Investment Recycling Company (SIRC).

Educational Qualifications:
Bachelor’s Degree in Industrial Management from King Fahd 
University of Petroleum and Minerals.
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Membership Type:
Deputy Chairman of the Board (Non-Executive)

Date of Appointment (Current Term):
Commencement of Current Term: 11 April 2021

Date of Appointment: 11April 2021

Committee Membership:
Member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Professional Experience and 
[Qualifications (Current):

	� Chairman of the Board - Al Rajhi Holding Group.

	� Chairman of the Board - Al Rajhi Financial Solutions.

	� Board Member - Abdullah Abdulaziz Al Rajhi & Sons 
Holding Company.

	� Founder and President of Saudi Food Association.

	� Chairman - Preservation of Grace Association Bahrain.

	� Founder and Chairman of Ezoah Charity.

	� Founder and Vice Honorary Chairman - Omani Food 
Bank.

	� Board Member - Taalum Association.

	� Board Member - Hefz Al Nema Association.

Mr. Abdullatif bin Abdullah Al Rajhi      
Deputy Chairman of the Board Memberships of the board outside of Nadec:

Current Board 
Memberships:

Inside/ 
Outside the 

Kingdom
Legal Entity

Previous Board 
Memberships

Inside/ 
Outside the 

Kingdom

Legal 
Entity

Al Rajhi Solutions 
Holding

Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted 
Company

Bank Audi - Syria
Outside the 

Kingdom

Listed 
Foreign 

Company

Al Rajhi Financial 
Solutions

Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted 
company

Abdullah Al 
Rajhi Charitable 

Foundation

Inside the 
Kingdom

Charity

Abdullah Abdulaziz 
Al Rajhi and Sons 
Holding Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted 
Company

- - -

Saudi Food Bank 
(Eta’am)

Inside the 
Kingdom

Charity - -

Bahrain Food Bank
Outside the 

Kingdom

Foreign 
Charitable 
Foundation

- - -

Ezoah Charity
Inside the 
Kingdom

Charity - - -

Oman Food Bank
Outside the 

Kingdom

Foreign 
Charitable 
Foundation

- - -

Taalum Association
Inside the 
Kingdom

Charity - - -

Hefz Al Nema 
Association

Inside the 
Kingdom

Charity - - -

Professional Experience and 
Qualifications (Previous):

	� Regional Manager for the Eastern Region - Al Rajhi 
Bank.

	� Manager of Visa and MasterCard Credit Card Center 
(Riyadh) - Al Rajhi Bank.

	� Board Member - Bank Audi - Syria.

	� Board Member - Abdullah Al Rajhi Charitable Foundation.

Educational Qualifications:
Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the Ameri-
can University - Beirut.
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Membership Type:
Member of the Executive Committee

Professional Experience and 
Qualifications(Current):

	� CEO of the National Agricultural Development Com-
pany (Nadec) since 2021G

	� Member of the Board of Directors of Walaa Cooper-
ative Insurance Company since 2007G

	� Member of the Board of Directors of Amiantit Group 
since 2021

	� Chairman of the Audit Committee, Saudi Fisheries 
Company since 2023G

	� Chairman of the Audit Committee, Prince Moham-
med bin Salman Reserve since 2021G

	� Member of the Risk and Review Committee, Makkah 
Region Development Authority since 2021G

Professional Experience and 
Qualifications (Previous):

	� CEO, Saudi Arabian Amiantit and its subsidiaries 
(2008G - 2021G)  

	� Managing Director, Saudi Arabian Amiantit (2008G 
- 2018G)  

	� General Manager, Al-Othman Company for Agricul-
tural and Plant Production (Nada) (2005G - 2008G)  

	� Director of Joint Services, Zajoul for Advanced Com-
munication Technology (2003G - 2005G) 

	� Secretary General, University Higher Education 
Fund (2001G - 2003G) 

	� Head of Accounting, King Fahd University of Petro-
leum and Minerals (2000G-2001G) 

	� Member of the Audit Committee, Saudi Electricity 
Company (2018G -2023G) 

	� Member of the Board of Directors, National Agri-
cultural Development Company (NADEC) (2018G - 
2022G) 

Dr. Solaiman Abdulaziz Al-Twaijri
Chief Executive Officer

	� Member of the Nomination Committee, National 
Agricultural Development Company (Nadec) (2018G 
- 2021G)

	� Chairman of the Audit Committee, Chemical Devel-
opment Company (2012G - 2015G) 

	� Member of the Audit Committee, Higher Education 
Fund (2010G - 2012G)

	� Member of the Internal Audit Committee, Saudi Or-
ganization for Certified Public Accountants (2009G 
- 2011G)

	� Member of the Audit Committee, Riyad Bank (2005G 
- 2010G)  

	� Member of the Executive Committee, Zajoul for 
Advanced Communications Technology Company 
(2004 - 2005)  

	� Member of the Board of Directors, Mulkia Invest-
ment Company (2015G - 2020G)

	� Chairman of the Audit Committee, Mulkia Invest-
ment Company (2015G - 2021G) 

	� Vice Chairman, Takween Advanced Industries Com-
pany (2011G - 2021G)

	� Chairman of the Executive Committee, National Ag-
ricultural Development Company (Nadec) (2018G - 
2021G)

	� Member of the Board of Directors, National Electric-
ity Transmission Company (2010G - 2012G) 

	� Member of the Audit Committee, Alawwal Bank 
(2018G - 2019G) 

	� Member of the Nomination Committee, Institute of 
Financial Accountancy, USA (2014G - 2015G) 

	� Member of the Board of Directors, Institute of Fi-
nancial Accountancy, USA (2012G - 2018G) 

	� Member of the Audit Committee, Institute of Finan-
cial Accountancy, USA (2014G - 2018G) 

	� Member of the Audit Committee, GIB Capital (2012G 
- 2013G) 

	� Member of the Audit Committee, Al-Khozama Man-
agement Company (2009G - 2013G)  

	� Chairman of the Audit Committee (2007G - 2015G)

	� Chairman of the Board of Directors, Austrian Amiblu 
Company (2008G - 2018G) 

	� Chairman of the Board of Directors, Internation-
al Water Distribution Company (Tawzea) (2008G - 
2021G)    

Educational Qualifications:
Dr. Solaiman Abdulaziz Al-Twaijri holds a Ph.D. in Account-
ing from Case Western Reserve University, USA, 1998G; a 
Master’s Degree in Accounting from the University of Il-
linois, USA, 1994G; and a Bachelor’s Degree in Industrial 
Management from King Fahd University of Petroleum and 
Minerals, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, Dhahran, 1990G. He 
also holds an International Master’s Degree in Internation-
al Sports Law from the Higher Institute of Law and Eco-
nomics, Spain, 2019G.
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Memberships of the board outside of Nadec:

Current Board 
Memberships

Inside/ 
Outside the 

Kingdom
Legal Entity

Previous Board 
Memberships

Inside/ 
Outside the 

Kingdom
Legal Entity

Walaa 
Cooperative 
Insurance 
Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Listed 
Company

Amiantit Rubber Industry 
Co., Ltd

Inside the 
Kingdom

A Limited 
liability 

Company

Amiantit 
Group

Inside the 
Kingdom

Listed 
Company

Amiantit Fiberglass 
Manufacturing Company 

Limited

Inside the 
Kingdom

A Limited 
liability 

Company

First Abu Dhabi 
Investment 

Bank

Inside the 
Kingdom

Public Joint 
Stock 

Company
Ameron Saudi Arabia Ltd

Inside the 
Kingdom

A Limited 
liability 

Company

- - - Bondstrand Ltd.
Inside the 
Kingdom

A Limited 
liability 

Company

- - -
Saudi Arabian Ductile Iron 

Pipes (SADIP)
Inside the 
Kingdom

A Limited 
liability 

Company

- - -
Saudi Arabia Concrete 
Products (Sacop Ltd)

Inside the 
Kingdom

A Limited 
liability 

Company

- - -
Fiberglass Pipe and Ductile 

Iron Pipe Factory Co., Ltd
Inside the 
Kingdom

A Limited 
liability 

Company

- - - Mulkia Investment Company
Inside the 
Kingdom

UnlistedJoint-
Stock 

Company

- - -
Takween Advanced 
Industries Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

ListedJoint-
Stock 

Company

- - - National Grid SA Company
Inside the 
Kingdom

A Limited 
Liability 
Company

- - -
Infrastructure Engineering 
and Contracting Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

A Limited 
Liability 
Company

- - - BWT Saudi Arabia
Inside the 
Kingdom

A Limited 
Liability 
Company

- - -
International Water 

Distribution Company 
(Tawzea)

Inside the 
Kingdom

A Limited 
Liability 
Company

- - -
International Infrastructure 
Management and Operation 
Company Ltd. (AMIWATER)

Inside the 
Kingdom

A Limited 
Liability 
Company
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Mr. Bader bin Abdulrahman Al Sayari
Board Member

Membership Type:
Non-Executive Board Member

Date of Appointment 
(Current Term):
Commencement of Current Term: 11 April 2021

Appointment Date: 11 April 2021

Committee Memberships:
Member of the Executive Committee

Member of the Investment Committee (Term ended on 31 
December 2021)

Professional Experience and 
Qualifications (Current):

	� Chief Investment Officer - Sulaiman Al Rajhi Holding 
Company

	� Board Member - GP Capital Company

	� Board Member and Member of the Executive Com-
mittee - Advanced Education Company

	� Board Member - National Poultry Company - Egypt

	� Board Member - ALEEF Company

	� Member of the Investment Committee - Real Estate 
Development Fund

	� Board Member and Chairman of the Compensations 
and Nominations Committee - National Aquaculture 
Group (NAQUA)

	� Board Member - Sulaiman Al Rajhi International 
Company

Memberships of the board outside of Nadec:

Current Board 
Memberships

Inside/ 
Outside the 

Kingdom
Legal Entity

Previous 
Board Mem-

berships

Inside/ 
Outside the 

Kingdom
Legal Entity

GIB Capital Company
Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted 
Company

United 
Cooperative 
Assurance 
Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Listed 
company

Advanced Educational 
Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted 
Company

- - -

National Poultry Company 
- Egypt

Outside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted 
Company

- - -

Aleef Company
Outside the 

Kingdom
Unlisted 
Company

- - -

Real-Estate Development 
Fund

Inside the 
Kingdom

A Saudi 
Government 
Institution

- - -

National Aquaculture 
Group (NAQWA)

Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted 
company

- - -

Sulaiman Al Rajhi 
International Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted 
Company

- - -

Professional Experience and 
Qualifications (Previous):

	� Chief Investment Officer - Al Azizia Investment Com-
pany

	� Chief Executive Officer - Mevex Capital Company

	� Chief Investment Officer - Al Faisaliah Group

	� Chief Executive Officer - Fincorp Saudi Arabia

	� Member of the Board of Directors and Chairman of 
the Investment Committee - United Cooperative As-
surance Company.

	� Chairman of the Investment Committee - National 
Agricultural Development Company (Nadec).

Educational Qualifications:
Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting from King Saud University.
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Mr. Amr Abdulaziz Aljallal
Board Member

Membership Type:
Independent Board Member

Date of Appointment 
(Current Term):
Commencement of Current Term: 11 April 2021

Appointment Date: 11 April 2021

Committee Memberships:
Chairman of the Compensations and Nominations Committee

Member of the Executive Committee (Membership ended 
on 6 October 2022)

Professional Experience and 
Qualifications (Current):

	� Chief Executive Officer - Namara Investment Com-
pany - Dr. Sulaiman Al Habib Investment Company

	� Chief Executive Officer - Thabat Al A’mal Limited 
Company

	� Chief Executive Officer - Wajahat Al Hamra for In-
vestment Company

	� Chief Executive Officer - Qimam Investment Company

	� Chief Executive Officer - Wajahat Al Manar for In-
vestment Company

	� Chief Executive Officer - Tahaluf Al Habib Invest-
ment Company

	� Chief Executive Officer - Saki Investment Company

	� Member of Board of Directors - Marafiq - Jubail and 
Yanbu Utilities Company

	� Member of Board of Directors - Abdulmohsen Al 
Hokair Tourism and Development Company

	� Member of Board of Directors - Saudi Investment 
Recycling Company (SIRC)

	� Member of Board of Directors and Chairman of the 
Investment Committee - Saudi Egyptian Industrial 
Investment Company

	� Member of Board of Directors - October Pharma 
Company

Memberships of the board outside of Nadec:

Current Board 
Memberships

Inside/ 
Outside 

the 
Kingdom

Legal Entity
Previous Board 
Memberships

Inside/ 
Outside 

the 
Kingdom

Legal 
Entity

Power and Water Utility 
Company for Jubail and 
Yanbu (MARAFIQ)

Inside the 
Kingdom

Listed 
Company

Saudi 
Agricultural 

and Livestock 
Investment 

Company (SALIC)

Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted 
Joint-Stock 
Company

Abdulmohsen Al-Hokair 
Group for Tourism and 
Development Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Listed 
Company

JADA Fund of 
Funds Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted 
joint stock 
company

Saudi Investment 
Recycling Company (SIRC)

Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted Joint-
Stock Company

- -

Saudi Egyptian Industrial 
Investments Company

Outside 
the 

kingdom

Unlisted 
Foreign 

Joint-Stock 
company

- - -

October Pharma Company
Outside 

the 
kingdom

Listed Foreign 
Joint-Stock 
Company

- - -

Hamat Holding Company
Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted Joint-
Stock Company

- - -

Merak Capital Company
Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted Joint-
Stock Company

- - -

Professional Experiences and 
Qualifications (Previous):

	� Head of Private and Investment Banking - Jadwa In-
vestment Company

	� Deputy Head of Investment Banking - Saudi French Capital

	� Credit Officer, Corporate Banking Services Manage-
ment - Samba Financial Group

	� Director of Listing and Registration Unit for the In-
dustrial and Services Sector - Capital Market Au-
thority - •Various Positions 

	� Board Member and Member of the Compensations and 
Nominations Committee - JADA Fund of Funds Company

	� Member of the Investment Committee - Saudi Agri-
cultural and Livestock Investment Company (SALIC)

Educational Qualifications:
Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Rice Uni-
versity in Houston, USA, and Bachelor’s Degree in Manage-
ment Information Systems from King Fahd University of 
Petroleum and Minerals.
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Mr. Abdulaziz bin Mohammad Alrugaib
Board Member

Membership Type:
Independent Board Member

Date of Appointment 
(Current Term):
Commencement of Current Term: 11 April 2021

Appointment Date: 5 April 2022

Committee Membership:
Member of the Executive Committee

Professional Experience and 
Qualifications (Current):

	� General Manager and Managing Director - Imtiaz Al 
Arabiya Company

	� Board Member - Hamad Mohammed Alrugaib & 
Sons Trading Company

	� Board Member - Future Fun Trading Company

	� Board Member - AlReemah Real Estate Develop-
ment Company

	� Board Member - Herfy Food Services Company

	� Board Member - Alimtyaz Alriyadi Company

	� Board of Directors - AL-Ahsa Valley Investment Company.

Memberships of the board outside of Nadec: 

Current Board 
Memberships:

Inside/ 
Outside the 

Kingdom
Legal Entity

Previous Board 
Memberships

Inside/ 
Outside the 

Kingdom
Legal Entity

Hamad Mohammed 
Alrugaib & Sons Trading 
Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Unlisted 
Joint-Stock 
Company

- - -

Future Fun Trading 
Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Closed 
Joint-Stock 
Company

- - -

AlReemah Real Estate 
Development Company

Outside the 
kingdom

Closed 
Joint-Stock 
Company

- - --

Herfy Food Services 
Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Listed 
Joint-Stock 
Company

- -

Alimtyaz Alriyadi 
Company

Outside the 
kingdom

Closed 
Joint-Stock 
Company

- - -

Professional Experience and Qual-
ifications (Previous):

	� Petroleum Engineer at Saudi Aramco

	� Consultant at Bain & Company

Educational Qualifications:
Master’s Degree in Chemical Engineering from Cornell Uni-
versity, USA, and Bachelor’s Degree in Petroleum Engineer-
ing from the University of Kansas, USA.
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Mr. Ahmed Saud Shahini
Board Member

Membership Type:
Non-Executive Board Member

Date of Appointment (Current Term):
Commencement of Current Term: 11 April 2021

Appointment Date: 5 October 2022

Committee Memberships:
Chairman of the Audit Committee

Member of the Executive Committee

Professional Experience and Qual-
ifications (Current):

	� CEO of Local Investments - Saudi Agricultural and 
Livestock Investment Company (SALIC)

	� Board Member and Chairman of the Nominations 
and Remunerations Committee - Khair Inorganic 
Chemical Industries (InoChem)

	� Board Member - Shahini Holding Group

	� Board Member - Naba Al Saha Medical Services 
Company

Memberships of the board outside of Nadec: 

Current Board 
Memberships:

Inside/ 
Outside the 

Kingdom
Legal Entity

Previous Board 
Memberships

Inside/ 
Outside the 

Kingdom
Legal Entity

National Aquaculture 
Group NAQUA

Inside the 
Kingdom

Closed 
Joint-Stock 
Company

- - -

Khair Inorganic Chemical 
Industries (InoChem)

Inside the 
Kingdom

Closed 
Joint-Stock 
Company

- - -

Shahini Holding Group
Inside the 
kingdom

Limited 
Liability 
Company

- - -

Naba Al Saha Medical 
Services Company

Inside the 
Kingdom

Listed 
Company

- - -

Professional Experience and 
Qualifications (Previous):

	� Advisor to the CEO - Saudi Agricultural and Livestock 
Investment Company (SALIC)

	� Business Development Executive - Shahini Holding 
Group

	� Supply Chain Management - Procter & Gamble

	� General Manager - Shahini Distribution Company

Educational Qualifications:
Master’s Degree in Business Administration from IMD Busi-
ness School, Switzerland, and Bachelor’s Degree in Indus-
trial Management from King Fahd University of Petroleum 
and Minerals, Dhahran.

	�

Nadec
Annual Report 2023

148  _ 149



Mr. Ibrahim Muhammad Al-Amer
Board Member

Membership Type:
Independent Board Member

Date of Appointment (Current Term):
Commencement of Current Term: 11 April 2021

Appointment Date: 5 October 2022

Committee Memberships:
Member of the Audit Committee

Member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Professional Experience and 
Qualifications (Current):

	� Founder and CEO - HR-TRUST Office for Management 
Consulting

	� Member of the Remunerations and Nominations 
Committee - Al-Yusr Leasing and Financing Company

	� Board Member - Cipher Cybersecurity Company

	� Member of the Remuneration and Nominations 
Committee of Modern Building Leaders Company 
MBL.

	� Member of the Nominations and Rewards Commit-
tee of AlRajhi United Real Estate.

Professional Experience and 
Qualifications (Previous):

	� Senior Executive Vice President of Human Capital - 
Ma’aden Company

	� Deputy Minister for Shared Services - Ministry of 
Commerce

	� Deputy Vice President of Human Resources - Dr. Su-
laiman Al Habib Medical Group

	� Deputy Vice President of Human Resources - Channels 
Communication Company

	� Deputy Vice President of Human Resources - Al Oth-
aim Holding Company

	� Board Member - Ma’aden Waad Al Shamal Company

	� Board Member - Cooperative Health Insurance 
Council

	� Advisor to the CEO - Saudi Mining Services Company

	� Secretary of the Remunerations and Nominations 
Committee - Saudi Mining Services Company

Educational Qualifications:
Executive Program from London Business School; Master’s 
Degree in Business Administration from the University of 
Hull, United Kingdom; and Bachelor’s Degree in Account-
ing from Imam Muhammad ibn Saud University.

Memberships of the board outside of Nadec:

Current Board Memberships:
Inside/ 

Outside the 
Kingdom

Legal Entity
Previous 

Board 
Memberships

Inside/ 
Outside the 

Kingdom

Legal 
Entity

Cipher Company for Cyber 
Security

Inside the 
Kingdom

Limited 
Liability 
Company

Ma’aden 
Wa’ad Al-
Shamal

Company

Inside the

Kingdom

Unlisted

company

- - -

Council of 
Cooperative 

Health

Insurance

Inside the

Kingdom

Govern-
mental

institu-
tion
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Employees

02 Non-Saudi Employees:
Foreign employees on fixed-term contracts are 
entitled to end-of-service benefits in accordance 
with the labor laws of their respective countries 
of employment. These benefits are determined 
based on their length of service and final enti-
tlements. Providing these non-funded end-of-
service benefits is determined by calculating the 
total eligible compensation of all employees as 
at the financial statement date.

01 Saudi Employees:
Retirement rights and other social benefits for 
company employees are covered by the Social 
Insurance System, which operates as a defined 
contribution structure. Monthly contributions 
are made to the system by both employees and 
employers, calculated as a fixed percentage of 
salaries.

Company Responsibilities and Commitments to Employees
The company has a structured plan to ensure the well-being and benefits of its employees, 
which includes the following:

Employee Benefits Plan
The company assesses its net obligation for a clearly 
defined benefits plan by projecting the future bene-
fits that will accrue to employees in current and pri-
or periods. This projected amount is then subtracted 
from the plan assets along with the fair value of the 
plan assets. Qualified actuaries use the projected unit 
credit method to determine the benefit obligation. In 
cases where a potential asset exists, the recognition 
of the asset is limited to the present value of econom-
ic benefits available in the form of future refunds or 
reductions in future contributions to the plan, taking 
into account current financing requirements. The net 
defined benefit obligation, encompassing actuarial 
gains and losses and the return on plan assets (ex-

cluding interest and the effect of the asset ceiling, if 
applicable), is recognized directly in other compre-
hensive income. The net interest expense or income 
for the period is calculated using the discount rate 
from the beginning of the year, taking into account 
the changes in the net benefit obligation resulting 
from contributions and benefit payments. These and 
others expenses relating to defined benefit plans are 
recognized in the profit or loss statement. Changes in 
plan benefits that result in changes in service-related 
benefits are recognized directly in the profit or loss 
statement. The company recognizes gains or losses 
arising from the settlement of a defined benefit plan 
when the settlement event occurs.
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Other Long-Term Employee 
Benefits
The company’s net obligation for other long-term em-
ployee benefits represents future benefits to which 
employees are entitled for their service in current and 
past periods. These entitlements are discounted to de-
termine their present value. Any difference in the pres-
ent value of employee entitlements is recognized in the 
profit or loss statement in the period in which it occurs.

Employee Stock Ownership
The company did not have any existing employee stock 
ownership plans prior to the filing and offering of the 
securities subject to this report. None of the company’s 
employees owns any shares of the company and there 
are no other arrangements for employee participation 
in the company’s capital.

Employee Training and 
Development Programs
At Nadec, employee training and development are cor-
nerstone elements in nurturing the company’s work-
force and realizing its vision of sustainable growth. Rec-
ognizing employees as an invaluable asset, their skills 
are enhanced and their abilities cultivated to meet the 
dynamic demands of the market through ongoing train-
ing and advanced development initiatives.

This strategic approach, backed by concerted efforts, 
has resulted in the formation of a resilient team, em-
blematic of the company’s unwavering commitment 
to fostering a stimulating work environment. Nadec’s 
training and development initiatives not only enhance 
employees' performance and productivity, but also 
seamlessly align with the company’s overarching ob-
jectives and strategies.

The company’s commitment to nurturing and equipping 
its workforce goes beyond mere skill enhancement; it 
fosters a culture of positivity and camaraderie. By pro-
viding avenues for learning and growth, leadership 
demonstrates a steadfast commitment to fostering con-
tinuous employee advancement.

In addition, Nadec’s investment in employee training 
and development plays a pivotal role in talent acquisi-
tion and retention by fostering an environment condu-
cive to both professional and personal growth. These 
efforts position the company as a frontrunner in sus-
tainable food production.

The “New Dawn” strategy for employee training and 
development is based on the belief that well-trained 
employees significantly strengthen the company’s op-
erations and help achieve its goals. This commitment 
serves as a cornerstone for sustained success and con-
tinued advancement, cementing Nadec’s position as a 
trailblazer in sustainable food production.

Leadership Development Program
This program is designed to effectively develop leader-
ship talent within Nadec and accelerate the profession-
al growth of future leaders, while improving the com-
pany’s overall performance, resilience to change, and 
strategic vision for management.

Implementation of Training Programs
The implementation of the training program involves a care-
ful analysis of training needs and the selection of methods 
that are aligned with program objectives, ensuring a har-
monious balance between departmental requirements and 
employee aspirations for future growth within the company.

Launch of the E-Learning Platform
In collaboration with LinkedIn Learning, an e-learning 
platform was launched to enhance employee compe-
tencies and inspire self-directed learning, ensuring a 
continuous path to knowledge acquisition.

Strategic Transformation
Nadec’s strategic transformation seeks to enrich the 
experience of its young workforce through the provi-
sion of professional certifications. These certifications 
serve to keep them abreast of the latest developments 
in their respective fields and equip them with the nec-
essary knowledge to enhance their performance.

Sales Interface Development Program
Launching this program involves a comprehensive as-
sessment of employees’ professional competencies, 
leveraging problem-solving methodologies and lead-
ership skills. This assessment process includes per-
formance-based interviews, group discussions, and 
analytical evaluations. Tailored development plans are 
then developed to strengthen individual performance 
and increase overall productivity.

Training Programs at Nadec

Program type
Number 

of training 
courses

Number 
of Nadec 
employee 

participants

Number of 
working 

hours spent 
in training 
programs

Number of external 
participants as 

representatives of the 
Agricultural Development 

Foundation

Number of 
participants 

as Cooperative 
Education 

(COOP) students

Internal programs 23 598 12,626

88 50

Online programs 9 700 724

E-learning 1,171 101 1,500

English language 24 59 5,664

Individual programs 13 13 3,694

“Agricultural 
Development Fund” 
programs

8 - 1,620

Organizing confer-
ences and exhibitions

6 18 347

Total
1,254 

training 
courses

1,489 
participants

26,175 
training 

hours
88 50
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Investor Relations

Company Announcements on Tadawul
Nadec has announced a number of strategic events and activities throughout the year, which have been listed 
on the official website of the Saudi Stock Exchange (Tadawul). Below, we present a brief overview of each of 
these events and activities, which are classified according to the date, type, and topic of the announcement:

Date of 
Announcement

Announcement 
Type

Address

1 30-01-2023
Notice to 

Shareholders

Referring to the approved strategic plan 2027, which was announced on 
December 6, 2022 and intends to enhance the company's leading posi-
tion in its core business at the local and regional levels,

The company is pleased to inform its valued shareholders that a launch 
ceremony will be held on Monday evening, January 30, 2023 to introduce 
all stakeholders with its strategic plan 2023-2027. The ceremony will be 
attended and sponsored by a number of Excellencies, as well as a group 
of officials, success partners, and company employees.

2 31-01-2023
Notice to 

Shareholders

Referring to the yesterday’s announcement dated January 30, 2023, re-
garding NADEC's intention to introduce its strategic plan 2023-2027,

NADEC is delighted to inform its shareholder regarding the development 
in launch ceremony of its strategic plan 2023-2027 under the slogan (A 
New Dawn) held on Monday, January 30, 2023, at the Hilton Hotel - Ri-
yadh Granada, under the sponsorship of His Excellency the Minister of 
Environment, Water, and Agriculture Eng. Abdulrahman Abdulmohsen A. 
AlFadley. The ceremony was attended by a number of Excellencies and a 
group of officials, success partners, and company employees were also 
present.

3 31-01-2023
Signing a 

Memorandum of 
Understanding

Referring to the announcement made by the National Agricultural De-
velopment Company (NADEC) on Tadawul website on November 4, 2021, 
regarding the lasted development of NADEC’s signing memorandum of 
understanding with Pure Harvest Smart Farms Company to build and op-
erate approximately 6 hectares (60,000 square meters) high-tech agricul-
tural greenhouses within the city of Nadec in Haradh, and the company 
signing a number of agreements and joint services.

4 31-01-2023
Signing a 

Memorandum of 
Understanding

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) announces the 
signing of a memorandum of understanding with the Saudi Investment 
Recycling Company (SIRC), on Monday 07/08/1444 AH corresponding to 
January 30, 2023 AD, for the purpose of recycling biowaste to contribute 
to protecting the environment.

Date of 
Announcement

Announcement 
Type

Address

5 31-01-2023
Signing a 

partnership 
agreement

NADEC wishes to announce the signing of the Shareholders Agreement 
with Leha Agricultural Company on Monday 08 07 1444 H Corresponding 
to January 30 2023 to establish a limited liability company that will be 
engaged in the production of potato seeds and multiplicate its produc-
tion in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia with a set capital of SAR 5000000 
and a specific ownership percentage for each partner where the propor-
tion of NADEC will be equivalent to 51 percent of the company’s capital. 
In addition the Shareholders Agreement includes terms and conditions 
that regulate the process of incorporation. Management operation of the 
Company and the businesses between the two partners. The financial 
impact will be announced later, and any material developments will be 
announced in due time

6 19-02-2023
Financial 
Results

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) announces its 
annual financial results for the year ended 31 December 2022

7 14-03-2023 Phone Interview

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) announces that 
it has conducted an Earnings conference call to discuss the annual finan-
cial results of the financial year 2022 with Investors and Financial Ana-
lysts on 14/03/2023, where NADEC's executive management illustrated 
the most prominent efforts and achievements of the financial year 2022. 
Inquiries of all analysts and investors inside and outside the Kingdom 
were addressed in the call.

8 04-04-2023
Notice to 

Shareholders

In reference to Nadec's launch of its strategic plan to strengthen its lead-
ership position in food markets at local and regional levels, and to expand 
its current business operations, develop new markets, expand its product 
range and enter into new ventures, Nadec aims to become a vertically 
integrated food company and targets to achieve a 6 billion Saudi Riyal 
of revenues by the year 2027. To achieve this, a comprehensive plan to 
enable Nadec to implement its strategic and operational objectives and 
support its future businesses.

9 09-04-2023
Notice to 

Shareholders

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) declares the 
approval of the Board of Directors on 17/09/1444 AH corresponding to 
08/04/2023 AD on the resignation of the Audit Committee member, Dr. 
Amr bin Khaled Kurdi (an independent member from outside the Board) 
from the Audit Committee membership, the resignation shall be effective 
from 17/09/1444 AH corresponding to 08/04/2023, and the Board of Di-
rectors approved the appointment of Mr. Khaled bin Salem Al-Ruwais (an 
independent member from outside the Board) as a member of the Audit 
Committee succeeding the resigned member effective form 17/ 09/1444 
AH corresponding to 08/04/2023 AD until the end of the current term of 
the Audit Committee, which ends on 04/10/2024 AD. This appointment 
shall be presented to the General Assembly at its first meeting for ap-
proval.
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Date of 
Announcement

Announcement 
Type

Address

10 12-04-2023
Notice to 

Shareholders

The Board of Directors of The National Agricultural Development Compa-
ny (NADEC) is pleased to invite the Company’s shareholders to attend the 
36th Ordinary General Meeting (First Meeting) on Wednesday 07:00 PM, 
on 03/05/2023 AD corresponding to 13/10/1444 H via modern technology 
means.

11 27-04-2023
Notice to 

Shareholders

Referring to the National Agricultural company (NADEC) announcement 
in Tadawul on 12/04/2023 corresponding to 21/09/1444 regarding invit-
ing all shareholders to participate and vote in the 36th Ordinary General 
Assembly Meeting (the first meeting) scheduled to be held at 07:00 PM 
on Wednesday 03/05/2023 corresponding to 13/10/1444 via modern tech-
nology means.

12 03-05-2023
Financial 
Results

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) announces its 
financial results for the period ended 31 March 2023 (Three Months)

13 04-05-2023

Results of the 
Ordinary 
General 

Assembly 
Meeting

The Board of Directors of the National Agricultural Development Company 
(NADEC) is pleased to announce the results of the 36th Ordinary Gen-
eral Assembly meeting (1st meeting), which was held via modern tech-
nology means at 07:00 pm on Wednesday 03/05/2023 corresponding 
to 13/10/1444 The attendance rate was 42.78 % of the company’s total 
shares, and after completed the Quorum for Convening as per the compa-
ny bylaws and the company’s law, the results of voting on the assembly’s 
agenda were as follows:

14 13-06-2023
Notice to 

Shareholders

With reference to The National Agricultural Development Company’s (NA-
DEC) (the “Company”) announcement on 13/09/1444H. (corresponding to 
04/04/2023G.) related to the recommendation of its board of directors 
to increase the Company's capital by offering rights issue at a value of 
(2,000,000,000) Saudi Riyals, conditional on obtaining the approval of 
the relevant official authorities and the extraordinary general assembly.

15 25-07-2023

Signing 
a Memorandum 

of 
Understanding

In reference to the announcement of the National Agricultural Develop-
ment Company (NADEC) on the Tadawul website dated 31/01/2023 AD (cor-
responding to 09/07/1444 AH) regarding the signing of a memorandum of 
understanding with the Saudi Investment Recycling Company (SIRC) on 
Monday 30/01/2023 AD (corresponding to 07/08/1444 AH) for the purpose 
of recycling biowaste to contribute to protecting the environment.

16 30-07-2023
Financial 
Results

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) announces its 
financial results for the period ended 30 June 2023 (Six Months)

17 03-08-2023
Signing a 

Memorandum of 
Understanding

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) announces to 
its valued shareholders that it has signed a memorandum of understand-
ing with the United Feeds Company (a limited liability company - spe-
cialized in the field of purchasing, processing, storing, packaging and 
distributing grain and barley products for animal feed use) in order to 
explore cooperation in establishing a livestock project specializing in 
(Sheep and Goats).

Date of 
Announcement

Announcement 
Type

Address

18 20-08-2023
Signing a 

partnership 
agreement

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) is pleased to 
announce to its esteemed shareholders the signing of head of terms with 
Elion Himmah Environmental Services Company (a limited liability com-
pany) specialized in the field of green development. The head of terms 
aims to establish a joint venture with specific ownership shares for each 
party from the capital of the company to be established. This joint ven-
ture will be responsible for developing projects related to the Saudi Green 
Initiative, including vegetation development and desertification control, 
contributing to sustainable development and environmental preservation 
in alignment with achieving one of the goals of the Saudi Vision 2030.

19 29-08-2023
Notice to 

Shareholders

Further to the company's announcement published on the Tadawul web-
site on Tuesday 09/07/1444H corresponding to 31/01/2023G, to establish 
a limited liability company for the production and breeding of potato 
seeds in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia - (referred to as "the company")- 
with a specified capital of 5,000,000 Saudi riyals. The ownership per-
centages for each party are determined, with NADEC's share being 51% 
of the company's capital and the possibility of entering a foreign techni-
cal shareholder into the company is also considered, with their share to 
be acquired from the shares of Leha Agricultural Production Company, as 
per the forthcoming agreement.

20 18-09-2023
Notice to 

Shareholders

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) announces 
that it has received a letter from The Saudi Agricultural and Livestock In-
vestment Company (SALIC) one of the main shareholders who owns more 
than (5%) of the company’s capital on 03/03/1445 AD corresponding to 
18/09/2023 AH Regarding SALIC Company's intention to complete the 
process of transferring ownership of shares owned indirectly and depos-
iting them in their direct investment portfolio, totaling (6,290,000) six 
million, two hundred and ninety thousand shares representing (6.19%) 
of NADEC's shares. This will result in SALIC Company's total ownership 
in NADEC to be (38.65%) of the capital.

21 05-10-2023
Notice to 

Shareholders

Reference to the company's announcement published on the Saudi Ex-
change website on 24/11/1444 H corresponding to 13/06/2023 AD in rela-
tion to the submission of the application for the increase of the Compa-
ny’s capital by way of a rights issue to the Capital Market Authority (the 
CMA) based on the recommendation of the Board of Directors issued on 
13/09/1444 H Corresponding to 04/04/2023 AD, to increase the Compa-
ny’s capital by way of a rights issue for a total amount of (2,000,000,000) 
Saudi riyals.
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Date of 
Announcement

Announcement 
Type

Address

22 08-10-2023
Notice to 

Shareholders

Referring to the announcement made by the National Agricultural Devel-
opment Company (NADEC) on Tadawul's website on Wednesday, dated 
26/04/1443 H, corresponding to 01/12/2021 AD, regarding the completion 
of the acquisition deal of the Second Milling Company in Riyadh, Kingdom 
of Saudi Arabia ("the concerned mill") with OLAM International Limited, 
Al Rajhi International for Investment Company and Abdul Aziz Al Ajlan 
& Sons Company for Commercial and Real Estate Investment. ("the alli-
ance members"), whereby all assets of the Second Milling Company ("the 
concerned mill") were transferred to Food Security Holding Company, a 
limited liability company ("the Company"). noting that NADEC holds a 
10% share with responsibilities as per the agreement to purchase specific 
products from the Second Milling Company and an agreement through 
which NADEC provides administrative, marketing, and support services 
to the Second Milling Company.The company would like to inform its es-
teemed shareholders that, following the completion of the transfer of all 
assets of the Second Milling Company ("the concerned mill") to Food Se-
curity Holding Company, a limited liability company ("the Company"), the 
two companies was merged under the name "Second Milling Company."

23 15-10-2023
Notice to 

Shareholders

The Board of Directors of The National Agricultural Development Company 
(NADEC) (the “Company”) is pleased to invite the Company’s shareholders 
to attend the Extraordinary General Meeting that includes increasing the 
company’s capital (First Meeting) on Sunday at 6:30 PM, on 21/04/1445 
AH, corresponding to 05/11/2023 AD, through modern technology means.

24 16-10-2023
Notice to 

Shareholders

With reference to the approval of the Capital Market Authority to in-
crease the capital of The National Agricultural Development Company 
(NADEC) (the “Company” or “Nadec”) through the issuance of rights is-
sue worth (2,000,000,000) Saudi riyals on 20/03/1445H Corresponding to 
05/10/2023AD.

25 29-10-2023
Financial 
Results

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) announces its 
financial results for the period ended 30 September 2023 (Nine Months)

26 31-10-2023
Notice to 

Shareholders

Referring to the National Agricultural company (NADEC) announcement 
in Tadawul on 30/03/1445H corresponding to 15/10/2023AD regarding in-
viting all shareholders to participate and vote in the Extraordinary Gen-
eral Assembly Meeting that includes capital increase (the first meeting) 
scheduled to be held at 6:30 PM on Sunday 21/04/1445H corresponding 
to 05/11/2023AD via modern technology means.

27 01-11-2023 Phone Interview

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) announces that 
it has conducted an earnings conference call to discuss the financial re-
sults for the third quarter of 2023 with Investors and Financial Analysts 
which was held on Tuesday 16/04/1445H corresponding to 31/10/2023AD, 
where NADEC's executive management presented the financial results for 
the third quarter of the year 2023. NADEC’s management also discussed 
the company's future strategic plans related to utilizing the proceeds 
from the increase of the Company’s capital by way of a rights issue. It is 
worth noting that the approval of the capital increase is subject to the 
approval of the extraordinary general assembly of the company and the 
completion of the relevant regulatory procedures and requirements.

Date of 
Announcement

Announcement 
Type

Address

28 06-11-2023

Extraordinary 
General 

Assembly 
Outcome

The Board of Directors of the National Agricultural Development Compa-
ny (NADEC) (the “Company”) is pleased to announce the results of the 
Extraordinary General Assembly meeting including the capital increase 
(first meeting), which was held via modern technology means at 6:30 
PM on Sunday 21/04/1445H corresponding to 05/11/2023AD, as the at-
tendance rate was %53.45 of the Company’s total shares, and after com-
pleted the Quorum for Convening, the results of voting on the assembly’s 
agenda were as follows:

29 07-11-2023
Notice to 

Shareholders

National Agricultural Development Co. (NADEC) (the “Company”) Compa-
ny announces determining of the period of rights issue trading and sub-
scription in the new shares.

30 09-11-2023
Notice to 

Shareholders

The National Agricultural Development Co. (NADEC) (the “Company”) an-
nounces the start of the rights issue trading period and subscription to 
new shares (Reminder).

31 12-11-2023

Signing 
a Memorandum 

of 
Understanding

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) announces to 
its valued shareholders the signing of a memorandum of understanding 
with Del Monte Saudi Arabia Factory Company Ltd. (a limited liability 
company owned by the multinational company Fresh Del Monte -owns 
the majority of the company’s capital-, a company specializing in the field 
of growing, producing, and distributing of both fresh-cut and whole fruits 
and Abdulkader Al Muhaidib and Sons Company) on Thursday 25/04/1445 
AH corresponding to 09/11/2023 AD for the purpose of a strategic joint 
venture, through an establishment of a joint company specializing in 
fresh products such as fruits, vegetables, fresh juices, potato processing, 
and their distribution in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

32 16-11-2023
Notice to 

Shareholders

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) (the “Compa-
ny”) announces a reminder of the last day of rights trading and the last 
day for the subscription in the new shares.

33 22-11-2023
Rights Issue and 

Subscription 
Results

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) (the “Compa-
ny”) announces the results of the rights issues trading and new share 
subscription, as well as the details of the rump offering.

34 28-11-2023
Results of the 

remaining 
subtraction

National Agricultural Development Co. (NADEC) (the “Company”) an-
nounces the results of the rump offering and the final allocation of the 
rights issue shares. By the end of the rump offering period, the shares bid 
amounted to 542.36%

35 10-12-2023
Notice to 

Shareholders

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) is pleased to 
inform its shareholders of the opening of nominations for membership in 
its Board of Directors to elect seven members for the next session starting 
on April 11, 2024AD until April 10, 2028AD and will last for four years.

36 12-12-2023

Distribution of 
compensation 

amounts to 
rights holders

The National Agricultural Development Co. (NADEC) (the “Company”) 
announces the distribution of the compensation amounts to holders of 
rights issue who have not exercised their right to subscribe to the new 
shares.
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Investor Relations Management
Nadec is steadfast in its implementation of disclosure pol-
icies and procedures in compliance with relevant regula-
tions and directives, with the overall objective of enriching 
communication channels with local and international in-
vestors. By actively participating in local and international 
conferences and forums throughout 2023 through its inves-
tor relations management framework, the company remains 
resolute in its commitment to promoting transparency and 
fairness by providing timely and accurate information. This 

proactive approach helps investors make well-informed 
decisions based on accurate insights provided by the com-
pany, including comprehensive disclosures on its perfor-
mance and endeavors, which are meticulously presented 
in the Annual Report approved by the Board of Directors. 
Furthermore, investors are kept abreast of notable devel-
opments that have the potential to impact the company’s 
financial position while safeguarding its competitive edge.

New Dawn: Maintaining Transparency 
and Fairness with Investors

Shareholder Rights
In fostering robust relationships with shareholders, investors, and stakeholders, Nadec places great importance on the 
principles of corporate governance. This commitment includes safeguarding shareholders’ rights and fortifying internal 
controls through the roles of the Board of Directors and its committees. Nadec remains steadfast in its compliance with 
the Corporate Governance Regulations issued by the Capital Market Authority, as well as other relevant regulations. In 
addition to diligently reporting its performance and financial results, Nadec adheres to a culture of transparency and 
disseminates pertinent information to shareholders, the investment community, and stakeholders in accordance with 
regulatory mandates and international best governance practices. Key focal points encompass:

First: Shareholders’ 
Rights and 
Communication 
Mechanism:

In line with its unwavering commitment to upholding shareholders’ rights and 
in compliance with applicable regulations, Nadec has incorporated sharehold-
er rights into its Bylaws and Corporate Governance Regulations, both of which 
are available on the company’s official website.

Second: Enhancing 
Shareholders’ and 
Investors’ Access to 
Information:

Nadec publishes its financial reports, announcements, and important resolu-
tions through website of the Saudi Stock Exchange (Tadawul) and prominent 
daily newspapers. In addition, the company ensures transparency by publishing 
an annual report approved by the Board of Directors. In order to facilitate effec-
tive communication with shareholders, Nadec has established a dedicated de-
partment to oversee shareholder affairs and respond promptly to their inquiries.

Third: Procedures 
for Informing 
Board Members 
of Shareholder 
Suggestions and 
Opinions on the 
Company and its 
Performance:

The company communicates shareholder suggestions and opinions about the 
company and its performance to members of the Board through the following 
procedures:

1-	 Ongoing submission of shareholder suggestions and opinions (if any) to 
Board members at the next Board meeting or through any other means of 
communication that makes it possible.

2-	 Organizing constante meetings with investors (IR Programs) and informing 
the Board of important proposals submitted by them.

3-	 Board members attend the shareholder assembly meetings. Shareholders 
present their suggestions and opinions to the Board during the assembly 
meeting, and the Board of Directors responds to them during the meeting. 
In addition, the Chairman of the Board of Directors discusses a number 
ofissues and proposals related to the shareholders and the company’s 
performance without the presence of the executives (whenever necessary).
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Fourth: 
Shareholder Register 
Requests:

In 2023, the company’s shareholder register was requested twelve (12) 
times through the Securities Depository Center (Edaa), and the following 
is a statement of the request dates and reasons:

Number of record 
requests

Request date
Reasons for 

request

Company procedures02/03/20231

Company procedures02/03/20232

Company procedures02/03/20233

Other02/05/20234

General Assembly02/05/20235

Company procedures05/08/20236

Company procedures06/24/20237

Company procedures03/08/20238

Company procedures02/10/20239

General Assembly02/11/202310

General Assembly11/15/202311

Company procedures06/12/202312

Fifth: Dividend 
Distribution Policy:

The Board’s proposal on the distribution of dividends to the company’s share-
holders are presented for review and approval at the Annual General Assembly 
meeting in accordance with the following provisions:

1-	 The decision specifies the due date and the date of distribution, as well as 
the dividend entitlement of the shareholders registered in the shareholder 
register at the end of the specified date.

2-	 The Ordinary General Assembly may, on the proposal of the Board, allocate 
a certain percentage of the net profit for the establishment of a statutory 
reserve for purposes determined by the Assembly.

3-	 The Ordinary General Assembly may decide to establish other reserves to serve 
the interests of the company or to ensure the distribution of fixed dividends 
to shareholders as far as possible. The Assembly may also allocate sums from 
the net profit for the establishment of social institutions for the company’s 
employees or to support existing institutions.

4-	 The remaining amount shall then be distributed to the shareholders as 
a payment equal to 5% of the company’s paid-up capital, subject to the 
provisions of the company’s Bylaws, Companies Law, and relevant laws and 
regulations. The Assembly may also allocate a certain percentage of the 
remaining net profit as a remuneration for the Board, in proportion to the 
number of meetings attended by each member.

5-	 If no dividends are distributed for any fiscal year, dividends for subsequent 
years may not be distributed until the specified percentage for preferred 
shareholders (if any) for that year has been paid in accordance with the 
regulations.

If the General Assembly of the company decides to authorize the Board to distribute 
interim dividends, the Board shall, if it deems it necessary, distribute dividends for 
the year in question periodically after fulfilling the requirements set forth in the 
laws and regulations issued by the competent authorities and the provisions of the 
company’s Bylaws, including, but not limited to, the following:

1-	 The Ordinary General Assembly authorizes the Board to distribute interim 
dividends by means of an annual renewal resolution.

2-	 The company must have good and regular profitability.

3-	 The company must have adequate liquidity and be able to reasonably 
forecast its earnings.

4-	 The company must have distributable profits according to its most recent 
audited financial statements sufficient to cover the proposed dividends 
after deducting any previously distributed dividends after the date of such 
financial statements.
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Board of Directors

Board Meetings and Attendance of Members
The Board of Directors held a total of eleven (11) meetings in 2023, including four (4) in-person meetings and 
seven (7) meetings conducted by other means, as detailed in the table below. No member of the Board was 
delegated to attend on behalf of another member during 2023G. The Board devoted ample time to fulfilling its 
responsibilities to the company, including preparing for and attending Board and committee meetings.

The following table sets forth the attendance record of each member of the Board of Directors at these meetings:

Attendance Record for Members of the Board of Directors for the year 2023
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20 
Jan

30 
March

3 
April

8 
April

14 
May

7 
June

20 
June

18 
July

10 
Oct

26 
Nov

19 
Dec

1 Mr. Abdulaziz 
Saleh Al- Alrebdi ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü

2 Mr. Abdul Latif 
Abdullah Al Rajhi ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü

3 Mr. Badr Abdul 
Rahman Al Sayari ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü

4 Mr. Amr Abdulaziz 
Aljallal ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü

5
Mr. Abdulaziz 
Muhammad Al-
Rugaib

ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü

6 Mr. Ahmed Saud 
Shahini ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü

7
Mr. Ibrahim 
Muhammad Al-
Amer

ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü

Measures Taken by the Board of Directors to Keep Members, 
Particularly Non-Executives, Informed About Shareholder 
Suggestions and Opinions on the Company and Its Performance:
The Chairman of the Board of Directors informs its members, particularly non-executives, about any sugges-
tions and feedback received from shareholders regarding the company and its performance at the first Board 
meeting of the year. The Board of Directors has delegated the company to take the necessary measures to 
facilitate the shareholders in submitting their proposals and feedback through the available communication 
channels of the Investor Relations Department, which are as follows:

Main Phone: 0112027777

Email: IR@NADEC.COM.SA

Annual General Assembly Meeting:
In accordance with the Board of Directors’ regulations, which stipulate the obligation of Board members to 
attend General Assembly meetings, the company convened a single Annual General Assembly meeting on 5 
March 2023. This underscores the Board’s commitment to interacting with shareholders, receiving their sug-
gestions, and gathering feedback on the company and its performance. Furthermore, an extraordinary General 
Assembly Meeting on the Capital Increase was held on 11 May 2023.

Member names
General Assembly Meeting

Extraordinary General 
Assembly Meeting on the 

Capital Increase

03/05/2023 05/11/2023

1 Mr. Abdulaziz Saleh Al-Rebdi ü ü

2 Mr. Abdullatif Abdullah Al-Rajhi ü ü

3 Mr. Bader Abdul Rahman Al-Sayari û ü

4 Mr. Amr Abdulaziz Aljallal ü ü

5 Mr. Abdulaziz Mohammad Alrugaib ü ü

6 Mr. Ahmed Saud Shahini ü ü

7 Mr. Ibrahim Muhammad Al-Amer ü ü
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Committees and Their 
Main Functions

Board Committees
The company’s Board of Directors has established several committees, based on its needs, circumstances, 
and conditions, to enable it to perform its duties effectively and to comply with the relevant regulatory re-
quirements. These committees include the “Audit Committee,” the “Nominations and Remunerations Com-
mittee,” and the “Executive Committee”. The following is a summary of the structure, responsibilities, and 
membership of each committee:

Executive 
Committee

Audit 
Committee

Nominations and 
Remunerations Committee

B. Audit Committee Meetings for the Year 2023

Audit Committee Meetings

Member 
Names

Membership 
Status

First 
Meeting

Second 
Meeting

Third 
Meeting

Fourth 
Meeting

Fifth 
Meeting

Sixth 
Meeting

Seventh 
Meeting

22 
Jan

12 
Feb

14 
Feb

2 
May

13 
June

26 
July

24 
October

1 Ahmed Saud 
Shahini

Committee 
Chair 

- Non-Executive
ü ü ü ü ü ü ü

2
Ibrahim 
Mohammed 
Al-Amr

Member - 
Independent ü ü ü ü ü ü ü

3
Amro Khaled 
Abdel Fattah 
Kurdi

Member - 
Independent, 

External
ü ü ü

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

Mem-
bership 
Ended

4
Khaled 
Salem 
Al-Ruwais

Member - 
Independent, 

External

Mem-
bership 

Not 
Started

Mem-
bership 

Not 
Started

Mem-
bership 

Not 
Started

ü ü ü ü

Audit Committee
A.	Composition of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is composed of three (3) members appointed by the Ordinary General Assembly, which 
approved the establishment of the Audit Committee, defined its tasks and operating procedures, and deter-
mined the  remuneration of its members. Below is the list of the Audit Committee members:

01
Ahmed bin Saud bin Abdulaziz 
Shahini - Chair of the Audit 
Committee - Non-Executive/
Non-Independent Member 
(appointed by the Board of Di-
rectors on 5 October 2022 to 
replace the previous Chair of 
the Audit Committee, Saleh bin 
Hassan Al-Afaleq).

02
Ibrahim bin Mohammed bin 
Abdullah Al Amer - Member of 
the Audit Committee - Non-Ex-
ecutive/Independent Member 
(appointed by the Board of Di-
rectors on 5 October 2022 to 
replace the previous member 
of the Audit Committee, Omar 
bin Hamad Al-Madi).

03
Khaled bin Salem bin Moham-
med Al-Ruwais - Member of 
the Audit Committee - Exter-
nal Member (appointed by the 
Board of Directors on 8 April 
2023 to replace the resigned 
member of the Audit Commit-
tee, Amro Khaled Abdel Fattah 
Kurdi).

Nadec
Annual Report 2023

168  _ 169



C.	Responsibilities of the Audit Committee
The responsibilities and duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

1.	 External Auditors:
	� Recommend to the Board of Directors the appoint-

ment, dismissal, determination of fees, and evalua-
tion of external auditors, after verifying their indepen-
dence and reviewing the scope of their work and the 
terms of their engagement.

	� Verify the independence, objectivity, and fairness of 
the external auditors and the effectiveness of their 
audit work, taking into account the relevant rules and 
standards.

	� Review the company’s audit plan and activities, en-
suring that they do not exceed the scope of the audit, 
and provide feedback thereon.

	� Respond to inquiries from the company’s external au-
ditors.

	� Examine the external auditors’ report and their com-
ments on the financial statements and follow up on 
actions taken in response.

	� Checking the external auditors’ proposed audit scope 
and methodology, including coordination of audit ef-
forts with internal audit.

	� The committee shall periodically meet separately 
with the external auditors to discuss any matters that 
the Audit Committee or the auditors believe should 
be discussed at special meetings, if necessary.

	� The committee has the right, at the request of its mem-
bers, to meet with the external auditors without the 
Executive Vice President of Finance being present..

2.	Financial Reports:
	� Review the interim and annual financial statements 

prior to their presentation to the Board of Directors 
and provide an opinion and recommendations to en-
sure their integrity, fairness, and transparency.

	� Provide an expert opinion as to whether the Board of 
Directors’ report and the company’s financial state-
ments are fair, balanced and understandable and 
contain information that enables shareholders and 
investors to assess the company’s financial position, 
performance, business model, and strategy.

	� Revising any significant or unusual matters contained 
in the financial reports.

	� Thoroughly investigate any issues raised by the com-
pany’s Chief Financial Officer or equivalent, the com-
pany’s compliance officer, or the auditors.

	� Study the accounting principles followed by the com-
pany and render any related opinions and recommen-
dations to the Board of Directors.

	� Verify accounting estimates for significant events in 
financial reporting, including a review of accounting 
issues, preparation of material reports, complex or 
non-routine transactions, and estimation issues, in 
addition to considering recent professional and regu-
latory pronouncements and observing their impact on 
the financial statements.

	� Review the results of the audit process with manage-
ment and the auditors, including any difficulties en-
countered.

	� Reviewing other sections of the Annual Report and 
any relevant legislation prior to publication and con-
sider the accuracy and completeness of the informa-
tion contained therein.

3.	Internal Control:
	� The Audit Committee should consider the effective-

ness of the internal control system, which includes 
control systems and information technology security.

	� Understand the scope of work of the external audi-
tors and internal auditors in reviewing the internal 
control over financial reporting and obtain reports on 
significant observations and recommendations, with 
responses from management.

	� Ensure the establishment of systems and controls for 
internal control, including:

	� Verifying the integrity of financial and accounting 
systems, including financial reporting systems.

	� Verifying the application of appropriate control 
systems to measure and manage risk by develop-
ing a comprehensive understanding of the risks 
faced by the company and creating an environ-
ment that fosters a risk management culture at the 
company level and communicating it transparently 
to stakeholders and relevant parties.

	� Preparing a report to the Board that includes its opin-
ion on the efficiency of these systems and its recom-
mendations for addressing significant issues and any 
other recommendations for the development of these 
systems, as well as reporting on other activities with-
in its mandate.

	� Providing consultation and express opinions on mat-
ters relating to control aspects prior to their adoption 
by the Board.

	� Reviewing matters referred to by the Board for recom-
mendation to the Board in light of the committee’s 
supervisory role.

4.	Internal Audit:
	� Investigate and review the company’s internal control, 

financial systems, and risk management.

	� Oversee the performance and activities of the internal 
auditors and the management of the company’s inter-
nal audit to ensure the availability and effectiveness 
of resources necessary to carry out their assigned du-
ties and responsibilities.

	� Review internal audit reports and monitor the imple-
mentation of corrective actions for any findings.

	� Approve the internal audit charter and the policies 
and procedures manual for internal audit.

	� Nominate the Chief Internal Auditor and approve their fi-
nancial compensation and any decisions regarding their 
appointment, replacement, or termination of services.

	� Revising and approve the budget of the internal audit 
department with the Chief Internal Auditor, includ-
ing resource planning, activities, and organizational 
structure of the internal audit function.

	� Evaluate the performance of the Chief Internal Auditor 
at least once a year and approve their annual bonus 
and salary adjustment.

	� Periodically verify the independence of internal auditors.

	� Studying the effectiveness of the internal audit activi-
ty, including compliance with the International Profes-
sional Practices Framework for Internal Auditing, the 
internal audit charter, and the fundamental principles.

	� The Audit Committee meets separately with the Chief 
Internal Auditor on a regular basis to discuss any mat-
ters that the Audit Committee or the Chief Internal Au-
ditor deems necessary.

	� Supervising internal financial investigations, such as 
fraud and other matters, with the requirement that 
the Audit Committee submits a report to the Board on 
such matters.
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5.	Ensure Compliance:
	� Review the findings of regulatory reports and verify 

that the company has taken the necessary actions in 
response.

	� Review the company’s compliance with relevant laws, 
regulations, policies, and instructions.

	� Escalate to the Board any matters deemed to require 
action and make recommendations as to the actions 
to be taken.

	� Review the effectiveness of the system for monitor-
ing compliance with laws and regulations and the 
results of any investigations conducted by manage-
ment, including disciplinary measures (i.e., instances 
of non-compliance).

	� Review the process for reporting on the company’s 
code of conduct and monitor compliance with and 
enforcement of the code.

	� Obtain regular updates from company management 
and the legal advisoron compliance matters.

	� Review contracts and proposed transactions with re-
lated parties and provide views on such matters to 
the Board of Directors.

6.	Reporting:
	� Prepare regular reports for the Board on the activities 

of the Committee, its relevant observations, and rec-
ommendations.

	� Propose to the Board any necessary policies or proce-
dures for stakeholders to follow in making complaints 
or reporting non-compliant practices.

	� Provide open channels of communication between 
internal auditors, external auditors, and the Board of 
Directors.

	� Prepare an annual report for Board members and share-
holders that demonstrates the effectiveness of the 
company’s internal control system and highlights oth-
er relevant activities within its scope. The Board com-
mits to depositing sufficient copies of this report at the 
company’s registered office at the time of issuing the 
notice of the General Assembly meeting so that inter-
ested shareholders can obtain a copy. The report shall 
be read at the assembly and copies of the Audit Com-
mittee’s reports shall be kept at the company’s head-
quarters for a period of no less than ten (10) years.

	� Review any reports issued by the company that are rel-
evant to the responsibilities of the Audit Committee.

7.	Other Responsibilities:
	� The Audit Committee is responsible for establishing a 

mechanism by which employees of the company may 
confidentially report any financial or other irregulari-
ties in the reports. The Committee is also responsible 
for reviewing the implementation of this mechanism 
through an independent investigation commensurate 
with the magnitude of the error or irregularity and tak-
ing appropriate follow-up action.

	� Perform any other activities related to this charter 
upon request from the Board of Directors.

	� Conduct and supervise any special investigations as 
required.

	� Review and evaluate the adequacy of the Audit Com-
mittee charter annually, obtaining the approval of the 
Board of Directors for any proposed changes, and en-
suring appropriate disclosure in accordance with laws 
and regulations.

	� Ensure that all responsibilities outlined in this charter 
are carried out on an annual basis.

	� Conduct an annual performance evaluation of the 
Committee and its members.

Conflict between the Audit 
Committee and the Board of 
Directors
In the event of a conflict between the recommen-
dations of the Audit Committee and the decisions 
of the Board of Directors, or if the Board rejects the 
Committee’s recommendation with respect to the ap-
pointment, removal, determination of fees, or evalua-
tion of the performance of the company’s auditors or 
the appointment of the internal auditor, the Board of 
Directors must include in its report the Committee’s 
recommendation, together with its rationale and rea-
sons for not accepting it.
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Nominations and Remunerations Committee
A. Composition of the Nominations and Remunerations Committee
The Nominations and Remunerations Committee is composed of three (3) members appointed by the Board of 
Directors on 30/8/1442H, corresponding to 12 April, 2021, upon approval of the formation of the Nominations 
and Remunerations Committee. Below is the list of the Nominations and Remunerations Committee members:

01
Amr bin Abdulaziz bin Abdullah 
Aljallal: Chairman of the 
Nominations and Remuneration 
Committee - Independent.

02
Abdullatif bin Abdullah bin 
Abdulaziz Al-Rajhi: Member 
of the Nominations and 
Remunerations Committee - 
Non-Executive.

03	
Ibrahim bin Mohammed bin 
Abdullah Al-Amer: Member 
of the Nominations and 
Remuneration Committee - 
Independent.

B. Meetings of the Nominations and Remunerations 
Committee in 2023G

Nominations and Remunerations Committee

Ser Members’ Names
Member-

ship Status

First 
Meeting

Second 
Meeting

Third 
Meeting 
[by cir-

culation]

Fourth 
Meeting

Fifth 
Meeting

Sixth 
Meeting

Seventh 
Meeting

20 Jan 8 April 28 May 30 July 23 Sep 9 Oct 29 Oct

1 Amr Abdulaziz 
Aljallal

Committee 
Chair - 

Independent
ü ü ü ü ü ü ü

2 Abdullatif 
Abdullah Al-Rajhi

Member 
-non-executive ü ü ü ü ü ü ü

3 Ibrahim Mohammed 
Al-Amer

Member - 
Independent ü ü ü ü ü ü ü
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C. Responsibilities of the Nominations and 
Remunerations Committee
The responsibilities and duties of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee include the following:

1.Remunerations: 
	� Develop a clear policy for the remunerations of Board 

members, committees derived from the Board, and ex-
ecutive management, and submit it for review in prepa-
ration for approval by the General Assembly. This pol-
icy should be based on performance-related criteria, 
should be disclosed, and should ensure that its imple-
mentation is verified.

	� Clarify the relationship between the remuneration grant-
ed and the applicable remuneration policy, and disclose 
any material deviation from the policy.

	� Regularly review the remuneration policy to ensure that 
it remains appropriate in light of any changes in legisla-
tion and regulations, the company’s strategic objectives 
and the skills required to achieve them, and to assess its 
effectiveness in achieving the desired objectives. The 
Committee should recommend any proposed changes 
to this policy to the Board.

	� Recommend to the Board the remuneration of Board 
members and its committees, in accordance with the 
policy approved by the General Assembly of the com-
pany.

	� Recommend to the Board the remuneration of the exec-
utive management of the company, in accordance with 
the policy approved by the Board.

	� Approve the payment of remunerations to the compa-
ny’s employees in accordance with the internal policies 
of the company.

	� Review the recommendations of the CEO regarding the 
directions and criteria for financial remuneration and 
other benefits for the executive management, their va-
lidity, and their alignment with the adopted policy.

	� Prepare an annual report on the remuneration granted to 
members of the Board, its committees, and the execu-
tive management.

	� Develop criteria for evaluating the performance of the 
Board, its members, and its committees derived there-
from and submit such criteria to the Board for approval. 
The Committee may conduct or oversee evaluations if 
conducted by a third party. Additionally, the Committee 
is responsible for proposing mechanisms for the devel-
opment of the Board and its committees.

2.Nominations:
	� Recommend to the Board appropriate policies and 

criteria for Board and executive management mem-
bership to determine the skills and qualifications 
required. Review these criteria periodically to ensure 
that they remain appropriate in light of any changes in 
relevant legislation, regulations, the company’s stra-
tegic objectives and the skills and qualifications re-
quired to achieve them. Ensure that individuals with 
a history of convictions for crimes that undermine in-
tegrity are not nominated.

	� Regularly review the Board membership policy to en-
sure its alignment with changes in legislation, regu-
lations, the company’s strategic objectives and the 
skills and qualifications required to achieve them. 
Recommend any proposed changes to this policy to 
the Board.

	� Recommend to the Board nominees for Board mem-
bership and executive management positions in ac-
cordance with the Board membership policy.

	� Develop job descriptions for the skills and qualifica-
tions required for Board membership and executive 
management positions.

	� Review the organizational structure of the company 
and make recommendations for any changes.

	� Develop job descriptions for executive and non-exec-
utive members and independent members.

	� Determine the time commitment required from Board 
members for their Board duties.

	� Review cases of conflict of interest for individuals 
seeking nomination to the Board and make recom-
mendations in this regard.

	� Establish and recommend procedures in the event of 
a vacancy on the Board or any committee thereof.

	� Verify the independence of independent members 
and ensuring the absence of any conflicts of interest 
if the member serves on the board of another com-
pany.

	� Review and make recommendations to the Board re-
garding the competition of a Board member with any 
of the activities of the company or its competitors in 
the activities or fields of activity pursued by the com-
pany, after receiving a report from the member on the 
competing activities they wish to pursue, based on 
the concept of competition and in accordance with 
the following procedures and criteria:

	� Reviewing the Board member’s report on the pro-
posed competing activities from a technical perspec-
tive.

	� Examination of the market or markets in which the 
competing business or any related products operate.

	� Reviewing the relationship between the competing 
business and the company’s strategy and future di-
rections.

	� Annually review a Board member’s conflict of inter-
est with the company’s activities (as approved by the 
General Assembly) and have the authority to obtain 
the information necessary to conduct such review.

	� Recommend to the Board the reappointment or re-
moval of any member of the Board or of any commit-
tee derived from the Board.

	� Identify strengths and weaknesses of the Board and 
propose measures to address them in the best inter-
est of the company.

	� Perform such duties as are assigned to it by the Board 
in connection with its functions.

	� Provide appropriate training and orientation to new 
Board members regarding the company’s operations 
and performance to enable them to perform their du-
ties effectively.

	� Consider and review succession plans for the compa-
ny in general, as well as for the Board, CEO, and exec-
utive management positions.
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The Executive Committee
A. Composition of the Executive Committee
The Executive Committee consists of five (5) members appointed by the Board of Directors on 30/8/1442H, 
corresponding to 12 April, 2021 , upon approval of the formation of the Executive Committee. Below is the list 
of the Executive Committee members:

01	
Abdulaziz bin Saleh bin 
Abdullah Al-Rebdi – Chairmen 
of the Executive Committee – 
Non-Executive

02	
Bader bin Abdulrahman bin 
Abdullah Al-Sayari – Member 
- Non-Executive

03	
Ahmed bin Saud bin Abdulaziz 
Shahini – Member - Non-
Executive

04	
Abdulaziz bin Mohammed bin 
Hamad Al-Rageeb – Member - 
Independent

05	
Sulaiman bin Abdullah bin 
Saleh Al-Twaijri – Member - 
executive

B. Executive Committee Meetings for the year 2023
Executive Committee meetings

Ser Member names
Membership 

status

First 
meeting

Second 
meeting

Third 
meeting

Fourth 
meeting

Fifth 
meeting

Sixth 
meeting

17 Jan 4 April 30 May 11 July 22 August 10 October

1 Mr. Abdulaziz 
Saleh Al-Rebdi

Chairman, 
Non-

Executive
ü ü ü ü ü ü

2
Dr. Solaiman 
Abdulaziz Al-
Twaijri

Member, 
Executive ü ü ü ü ü ü

3 Mr. Badr Abdul 
Rrahman Al-Sayyari

Member, 
Non-

Executive
ü ü ü ü ü ü

4 Mr. Abdulaziz 
Mohammed Alrugaib

Member, 
Independent ü ü ü ü ü ü

5 Mr. Ahmed Saud 
Shahini

Member, 
Non-

Executive
ü ü ü ü ü ü
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C. Responsibilities of the Executive Committee
The responsibilities of the Executive Committee include the following:

Executive Tasks
	� Recommend any amendments to the company’s 

Bylaws.

	� Recommend the vision and strategic objectives 
of the company.

	� Review systems, regulations, policies, and ex-
ecutive programs and make necessary modifica-
tions or additions.

	� Review annual budget objectives prior to sub-
mission to the Board of Directors for approval 
and monitor their implementation.

	� Make recommendations to the Board of Directors 
regarding the distribution of profits.

	� Oversee the preparation of economic and advi-
sory studies.

	� Monitor the implementation of the company’s 
integrated information systems programs.

	� Supervise the study of financing and the man-
agement of the financial needs of the company.

	� Make recommendations to the Board regarding 
loan and mortgage operations.

	� Recommend strategic plans and long, medium, 
and short-term objectives, update and review 
them periodically, and submit them to the Board 
of Directors for approval.

	� Supervise the study of plans related to the com-
pany’s current activities, financial status, and 
competitiveness, and monitor and evaluate 
these plans.

	� Supervise the study of all matters and issues that 
may affect the image of the company.

	� Supervise the study of new projects and invest-
ments and make recommendations to the Board 
of Directors.

	� Monitor the implementation of the decisions 
taken by the Board of Directors and the Executive 
Committee.

	� Monitor the company’s financial situation and 
its operational and marketing policies.

	� Submit reports to the Board of Directors on the 
Committee’s accomplishments, decisions, and 
recommendations.

	� Perform any duties or responsibilities assigned 
by the Board of Directors.

	� Review the social responsibility policy and me-
dia plan, and review and report to the Board on 
social work initiatives.

	� Represent the Board of Directors at general as-
semblies of subsidiaries or affiliates.

Investment Responsibilities:
	� Review and approve the company’s generalin-

vestment policy, including investment philoso-
phy and strategy, etc.

	� Review and prioritize investment opportunities 
based on established investment evaluation cri-
teria and approve new investments with a maxi-
mum value of SAR50 million. For investments ex-
ceeding this value, the committee is required to 
make recommendations to the company’s Board 
of Directors.

	� Review and approve acquisition and investment 
proposals in accordance with the company’s 
overall strategy.

	� Monitor the financial performance and integra-
tion of the company’s investments and all invest-
ment transactions, such as acquisitions, entering 
into joint ventures, and liquidation activities.

	� Review and recommend any strategic alliances 
that the company may enter into.

	� Review and approve the company’s investment 
plan.

	� Review the company’s policy on financial deriv-
atives and all hedging transactions to provide a 
framework for the company’s use of derivatives 
and hedging, monitor such transactions, and as-
sess the investment risks to which the company 
may be exposed.

	� Submit periodic reports to the Board on the ac-
tivities of the Investment Committee and related 
issues and recommendations.

	� Directly oversee the company’s internal and ex-
ternal investments and make regular reports to 
the Board of Directors.

	� Giving recommendations to the Board regarding the 
divestment or liquidation of existing investments.

	� Approve the corporate governance framework 
and management mechanisms for subsidiaries 
and affiliates.

	� Approve nomination policies for Board members 
and executives of subsidiaries and affiliates, 
including the mechanisms for selecting board 
members and executives for such companies.

	� Submit to the Board for approval relevant recom-
mendations for the appointment of Board mem-
bers and executives of subsidiaries and affiliates.

	� Ensure the integrity of investment procedures and 
establish controls to safeguard the company’s 
interests, and fully supervise the acquisition or 
merger stages for each investment opportunity.

	� Periodically review the performance evaluation 
and progress according to the approved plans of 
the Boards of subsidiaries and affiliates and sub-
mit recommendations to the Board.
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Executive Management

Name Current Position
Previous 
Position

Qualifications
Years of 

Experience

Dr. Solaiman 
Abdulaziz Al-
Twaijri

Chief Executive 
Officer

CEO of Saudi 
Arabian Amiantit 

Company

	• Ph.D. in Accounting - 
Case Western Reserve 
University, Cleveland, 
Ohio, USA.

	• Master’s in Accounting - 
Illinois State University, 
USA.

	• Bachelor’s Degree in 
Industrial Management 
- King Fahd University of 
Petroleum and Minerals.

	• Winner of the Prince 
Mohammed bin Fahd 
Award for Scientific 
Excellence in 1989.

	• He holds many positions 
and memberships in 
prestigious international 
and local companies.

	• Expert in finance and 
accounting.

More than 26 
years

Mr. Abdullah 
Ibrahim Al-
Dehimi

Vice President, 
Governance, 

Risk, 
Compliance and 

Legal

Executive 
Director of 

Communications 
and Corporate 

Affairs and 
Secretary of 
the Board of 

Directors

	• Diploma in 
Management.

	• Bachelor’s Degree 
in Business 
Administration.

More than 16 
years

Mr. Saad 
 S. Alhowaimel

Vice President 
of Information 

Technology

Director of 
Information 
Technology 
Department

	• Master’s Degree in 
Computer Science.

	• Bachelor's Degree in 
Computer Engineering

More than 19 
years

Name Current Position
Previous 
Position

Qualifications
Years of 

Experience

Mr. Marwan 
Mohammed Al- 
Mubarak

Vice President 
for Internal 

Audit

Manager of 
Internal Audit 
Department

	• Master's Degree in 
Accounting.

	• Bachelor’s Degree in 
Business Administration

More than 12 
years

Mr. Jamal Eddin 
Malek

Vice President 
for Operations

General Man-
ager of Product 

Supply

	• Bachelor’s Degree in 
Electrical Engineering

More than 38 
years

Mr. Hassan 
Khalil Aqrouq

Vice President 
for Finance

Chief Financial 
Officer

	• MSc  in Finance.

	• Bachelor’s Degree in 
Science in Finance and 
Accounting

More than 19 
years

Mr. Alistair 
McGowan 
Crawford

Vice President - 
Protein

General 
Manager, Gulf 

Region, Horizon 
Food S/E

	• Master’s Degree in 
Business Administra-
tion

	• Bachelor’s Degree 
of Business Studies, 
Marketing and French 
Language

More than 20 
years

Mr. Marcelo 
Joseph Wegman

Vice President - 
Strategy

General Manag-
er (Strategy and 
Supply Chains), 

Tyson Foods 
Europe B.V.

	• Master’s Degree in 
Business Administration

	• Bachelor’s Degree of 
Science in Economics.

More than 20 
years
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Remunerations

Remunerations Policy
The Remunerations Policy applies to the Board of Directors, its subcommittees, and the executive man-
agement of the company. The Remunerations and Nominations Committee is responsible for working 
with the executive management to ensure the smooth implementation of the policy and to verify the 
adequacy of the procedures implemented. Any deviations encountered during implementation are me-
ticulously evaluated and reported to the Board for guidance. The essence of the policy therefore consists 
of the following:

	� Incentivizing the Board of Directors, its sub-
committees, and the executive management 
through the provision of remunerations to pro-
mote the long-term success and growth of the 
company.

	� This policy must be consistent with the risks 
associated with the company’s operations. The 
company’s internal laws and regulations must 
be consistent with this policy.

	� The policy shall observe industry practices in 
determining remuneration, while prudently 
avoiding unjustified increases in remunerations 
and benefits.

	� The primary objective of this policy is to attract, 
retain, and motivate professional competence 
while exercising prudence.

	� All new appointments should be made with due 
regard to the rules and regulations, in coopera-
tion with the Remunerations and Nominations 
Committee.

	� Suspension and reimbursement of remunera-
tion should be considered in cases where indi-
viduals have provided inaccurate information 
to prevent the exploitation of job positions for 
unwarranted gain.

Number of Meetings of Board Members and its Subcommittees

Record of Board and committee meetings

Ser Member Names
Membership 

Status

Number 
of Board 

of Directors 
sessions

Number 
of Audit 

Com-
mittee 

Sessions

Number of 
Remunerations 

and Nominations 
Committee 

sessions

Number of 
Executive 

Committee 
Sessions

Total

Present
By 

circula-
tion

Present
By circu-

lation

1 Mr. Abdulaziz 
Saleh Al- Alrebdi

Non-
executive

4 7 0 0 0 6 17

2
Mr. Abdul Latif 
Abdullah Al 
Rajhi

Non-
executive

4 7 0 6 1 0 18

3
Dr. Sulaiman 
Abdulaziz Al-
Twaijri

Executive 4 7 0 0 0 6 17

4
Mr. Badr Abdul 
Rahman Al-
Sayyari

Non-
executive

4 7 0 0 0 6 17

5 Mr. Amr Abdel 
Aziz Al-Jalal

Independent 4 7 0 6 1 0 18

6
Mr. Abdulaziz 
Muhammad Al-
Raqeeb

independent 4 7 0 0 0 6 17

7 Mr. Ahmed Saud 
Shahini

Non-
executive

4 7 7 0 0 6 24

8
Mr. Ibrahim 
Mohammed 
Al-Amer

Independent 
Member

4 7 7 6 1 0 25

9
Mr. Amr Khaled 
Abdul Fattah 
Kurdi

Independent 
Non-Board 
Member

0 0 3 0 0 0 3

10 Mr. Khalid Salem 
Al-Ruwais

Independent 
Member

0 0 4 0 0 0 4

Board Members Remuneration

	� The company's bylaws show the mechanism for 
disbursing the remuneration of the members of 
the Board of Directors. This remuneration may 
be a specific amount, an allowance for attend-
ing meetings, in-kind benefits, or a certain per-
centage of the net profits.

	� The Nominations and Remunerations Commit-
tee annually, when studying the proposed re-
muneration for the Board and its committees, 
verifies the annual plans drawn up for the com-
pany, the objectives achieved and the efforts 
made by the members of the Board and its com-
mittees during the year.

During the recommendation of the remunerations, the Nominations & Remuneration Committee studied 
the relation between remunerations granted and applicable remuneration policy that was approved by the 
General Assembly on 05/11/2023, and the committee did not discover any material deviations from the 
remuneration policy.
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Remuneration of the Board of Directores 

Member Name

Fixed Remunerations Variable Remunerations

End of 
Service 
Award

Total 
Summation

Expense 
AllowanceCertain 

Amount
Attendance 
Allowance

Total 
Allowance 

for 
Attending 

Committee 
Sessions

Benefits 
in kind

Remuner-
ations for 
Technical, 
Adminis-

trative, and 
Consulting 

work

Remunera-
tion of the 
Chairman, 
Managing 

Director, or 
Secretary 
if he is a 
Member

Total
Percent-
age from 
Profits

Periodic 
Remuner-

ations

Short-
Term 

Incentive 
Plans

Long-Term 
Incentive 

Plans

Granted 
Shares

Total

First: Independent members

Mr. Amr 
Abdulaziz 
Aljallal

250,000 16,000 24,000 0 0 0 290,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 290,000 0

Mr. Abdulaziz 
Mohammad 
Alrugaib

250,000 16,000 24,000 0 0 0 290,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 290,000 0

Mr. Ibrahim 
Muhammad 
Al-Amer

250,000 16,000 52,000 0 0 0 318,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 318,000 0

Second: Non-Executive members

Mr. Abdulaziz 
Saleh Al-Rebdi

300,000 16,000 24,000 0 0 0 340,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 340,000 0

Mr. Abdullatif 
Abdullah Al-
Rajhi

250,000 16,000 24,000 0 0 0 290,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 290,000 0

Mr. Bader 
Abdul Rahman 
Al-Sayari

250,000 16,000 24,000 0 0 0 290,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 290,000 0

Mr. Ahmed 
Saud Shahini

250,000 16,000 52,000 0 0 0 318,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 318,000 0

Total 1,800,000 112,000 224,000 0 0 0 2,136,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,136,000 0
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Statement of Total Remuneration Received by Each Member of the Board’s Committees Membership:

Statement
Executive 
Members

Non-Executive 
Members

Independent 
Members

Committee 
Members

Total

Attendance Allowance - 64,000 48,000 - 112,000

Board Remunerations - 1,050,000 750,000 - 1,800,000

In Lieu of Attending 
Committees

24,000 124,000 128,000 - 276,000

Committee 
Remunerations

150,000 700,000 500,000 150,000 1,500,000

Total 174,000 1,938,000 1,426,000 150,000 3,688,000

Interest Description Total

Fixed Benefits

Salaries 5,920,919

Allowances 3,935,655

In-kind benefits 740,499

Total 10,597,074

Variable benefits

Periodic remunerations -

Profits -

Short-term incentive plans -

Long-term incentive plans 2,070,846

Offered Shares (value to be added) -

Total 2,070,846

Total Remunerations

End of Service Award -

Total Executive Remunerations if any 4,269,730

Total 16,937,650

Clarification: The company has committed itself to disclose the details of executive management remuneration in total, in line with 
the statutory requirements contained in subparagraph (b) of paragraph (4) of Article (90) stipulated in the Corporate Governance Reg-
ulations, to protect the interest of the company, its shareholders, and its employees to avoid any harm to the company that may result 
in a competitive result of human capital.

Executive Management Remunerations
	� In determining remuneration for the executive manage-

ment, due consideration must be given to the internal 
policies of the company to ensure alignment with the 
intended objectives.

	� The allocation of specific remuneration to individu-
al members of the executive management may vary 
depending on the results achieved during the perfor-
mance period.

	� The maximum limit for executive management remuner-
ation is reviewed annually and any proposed revisions 
are submitted to to the Board of Directors for review 
and subsequently to the General Assembly for approval.

	� These policies are tightly woven into the fabric of the 
company’s strategy and objectives, with due regard to 
the existing executive management evaluation policy. It 
is imperative to emphasize that should any discrepan-
cies arise in the stated remunerations of the executive 
management as a result of inaccurate information or er-
roneous results, regardless of the underlying reasons, 
such matters will be escalated to the Board for prudent 
decision making, while ensuring compliance with rele-
vant regulations to safeguard the rights of the compa-
ny’s shareholders.

	� The entitlements and remuneration of the five members 
of the company’s executive management, including in 
particular the CEO and CFO, who received the highest 
remuneration for the fiscal year 2023, are set out below.
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Ownership of Members of the Board of Directors and 
Executive Management

Members of Board of Directors Committees

Ser Name
Fixed Remu-

nerations

Total 
Attendance 
Allowance

Total Expense 
Allowance

Total

Review Committee

1 Mr. Ahmed Saud Shahini 150,000 28,000 0 178,000

2 Mr. Ibrahim Muhammad Al-Amer 150,000 28,000 0 178,000

3 Amro Khaled Abdel Fattah Kurdi 40,274 12,000 0 52,274

4 Mr. Khaled Salem Al-Ruwais 109,726 16,000 0 125,726

Remunerations and Nominations Committee

1 Mr. Amr Abdulaziz Aljallal 100,000 24,000 0 124,000

2 Mr. Abdullatif Abdullah Al-Rajhi 100,000 24,000 0 124,000

3 Mr. Ibrahim Mohammed Al-Amer 100,000 24,000 0 124,000

Executive Committee

1 Mr. Abdulaziz Saleh Al-Rebdi 150,000 24,000 0 174,000

2 Dr. Solaiman Abdulaziz Al-Twaijri 150,000 24,000 0 174,000

3 Mr. Badr Abdulrahman Al-Sayyari 150,000 24,000 0 174,000

4 Mr. Abdulaziz Mohammed Alrugaib 150,000 24,000 0 174,000

5 Mr. Ahmed Saud Shahini 150,000 24,000 0 174,000

Relationship between the remunerations granted and 
the applicable remunerations policy.
When recommending remuneration, the Remunerations and Nominations Committee reviews the relationship 
between the remuneration granted and the Remunerations Policy adopted by the General Assembly of the 
company’s shareholders on 5 November 2023. The Committee has not identified any significant deviations 
from the Remunerations Policy.

Ownership of Members of the Board of Directors and 
Executive Management

Name of the person with 
the interest

Start of year End of year
Net 

change
Percentage 

changeNumber 
of Shares

Debt 
instruments

Number of 
Shares

Debt 
instruments

Mr. Abdullatif Abdullah 
Al-Rajhi

89,185 - 264,227 - - -

Executive Management Interest, Spouses And Minor 
Children In The Company's Shares, And Any Changes 
In Ownership During 2023G

The Name of the Person 
Who Has the Interest

Beginning of the year End of the Year
Net 

Change
Change 

Percentage Number 
of Shares

Debt 
Instruments

Number of 
Shares

Debt 
Instruments

- - - - - -
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Transactions with Related Parties 
and Competing Businesses
First:
Transactions with Related Parties: Nadec is committed to reviewing potential conflicts of interest within its Board 
of Directors and executive management. Conducting transactions with related parties, the company strictly ad-
heres to approved policies, regulations, and applicable laws. Contracts involving a member of the Board of Direc-
tors, executive management, or their affiliates, as well as transactions with other related parties, are as follows:

Company
Nature of relationship and 
name of relevant member

Nature of transaction/
contract

Transaction/
contract 
amount

Duration of 
the deal/
contract

Terms of 
deal/contract

Minerva Foods

Chairman of the Board 
of Directors -  holds the 

position of Deputy chairman 
in Minerva Foods 

Abdulaziz Al-Rebdi

Nadec’s procurement 
of red meat products

3,765,959 year

In accordance 
with generally 

accepted 
contract terms

Arabian Milling and 
Food Industries 
Company 
(previously: Second 
Milling  Company)

Member of the Board of 
Directors  - Representative 

of Sulaiman Al Rajhi Holding 
Company (Joint partner)

 Bader Al-Sayari

Receipt of an amount 
as compensation for 
the termination of 

Nadec’s distribution 
and services 
agreement[s]

10,000,000 year

In accordance 
with generally 

accepted 
contract terms

Arabian Milling and 
Food Industries 
Company 
(previously: Second 
Milling  Company)

Member of the Board of 
Directors  - Representative 

of Sulaiman Al Rajhi Holding 
Company (Joint partner)

 Bader Al-Sayari

Nadec purchase of 
raw materials prod-

ucts
27,511,137 year

In accordance

with 
generally

accepted

contract 
terms

The member of the Board of Directors (Badr bin Abdul Rahman Al-Sayyari - representative of Sulaiman bin 
Abdulaziz Al-Rajhi Holding Company which has a project for agricultural and food production similar to some 
of its activities to what are practiced by (NADEC), and this project has been in existence for years before being 
elected to the board membership, it was approved by the board of directors of the company & it is recorded 
in the minutes of board meetings, the assembly is required to vote on it within the items listed on the assem-
bly’s agenda. 

Second: the competing business:
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Governance
Nadec abides by rigorous governance standards to optimize long-
term shareholder value, consistent with its unwavering commit-
ment to excellence in all facets of its operations and product 
offerings. This commitment is underscored by robust strategic 
planning, risk mitigation strategies, transparency initiatives, and 
a steadfast commitment to social and environmental responsibil-
ity, all in strict compliance with corporate regulatory directives. 
In addition, Nadec seeks to elevate its comprehensive gover-
nance framework and its integral components as key enablers in 
achieving organizational objectives and advancing sustainability 
efforts. Additionally, Nadec strives to foster enduring strategic 
partnerships with its stakeholders, thereby strengthening its op-
erational resilience and enhancing its position in the market.

Governance, Risk, and Compliance
We have thoroughly implemented governance, risk, and compliance measures within the company, following the stan-
dards outlined in the OCEG Governance, Risk, and Compliance, in alignment with the Capability Model 3.5 (commonly 
referred to as the Red Book). Our goal is to establish a robust framework for governance, risk management, and compli-
ance, in strict compliance with relevant laws and regulations. This endeavor is driven by our unwavering commitment to 
maintaining the highest levels of integrity. We actively engage in governance, risk assessment, and compliance activities, 
maintaining a constant awareness of potential risks to the company and the imperative of regulatory compliance. Our ef-
forts are designed to eliminate duplication in management and governance roles while improving operational efficiency, 
thereby ensuring seamless business continuity and bolstering cybersecurity measures.

Governance Management
Nadec’s governance management follows the highest in-
ternational standards, based on frameworks such as ISO 
37000:2021 (Corporate Governance). The company’s gover-
nance protocols are enshrined in the directives outlined in 
the Companies System issued by the Ministry of Commerce 
and the Corporate Governance Regulations issued by the 
Capital Market Authority. These regulations have been me-
ticulously crafted to align with best practices both domesti-
cally and globally. The oversight of the company’s operations 
is carefully monitored by two key departments: Operational 
Governance and Corporate Governance. It rigorously enforces 
all charters governing the Board of Directors and its commit-
tees, as well as policies governing the evaluation, nomina-
tion, and compensation of board members and their com-
mittees. Additionally, it enforces other relevant policies to 
ensure comprehensive governance of all facets of the Board 
of Directors, its committees, and every department within 
the company.

Nadec’s Governance Department achieved notable mile-
stones in 2023, laying a solid foundation for ethical and 
transparent operations. Through strategic initiatives and 
unwavering dedication, we strengthened governance frame-
works and internal processes, optimizing operations while 
ensuring steadfast compliance with regulatory mandates. 
These concerted efforts culminated in fostering a culture of 
sound governance that permeates all corners of the compa-
ny. Key accomplishments for the year include:

Amendment of Company Policies to Align with Corporate 
Governance Regulations: We meticulously reviewed and 
updated company policies and charters to harmonize with 
best practices and regulatory requirements mandated by the 
Capital Market Authority.

Enhancement of Operational Framework: The development 
and implementation of various operational policies, coupled 
with the establishment of standardized operating proce-
dures, facilitated streamlined and regulated business activ-
ities.

Defined and Updated Authority Matrix: The refinement of 
the authority matrix at two distinct levels empowered senior 
management and employees to carry out their responsibili-
ties with accountability at both the corporate and operation-
al levels.

Focus on Sustainability: The initiation of the development 
of an inaugural report on Nadec’s environmental, social, and 
governance practices underscores our unwavering commit-
ment to sustainability initiatives.

Streamlined Meeting Effectiveness: Effective management 
of Board of Directors and committee meetings, characterized 
by efficient scheduling, preparation, and dissemination of 
materials, ensured that decisions were communicated and 
implemented in a timely manner.

Rights Issue Experience: Overseeing the entire rights issu-
ance project, including conducting comprehensive legal due 
diligence, preparing the issuance application, drafting the 
prospectus, and updating related documents, ensured the 
seamless and proper execution of the project and exempli-
fied the company's adherence to its obligations..
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Risk Management
Nadec’s risk management system is based on the im-
plementation of the controls described in ISO 31000 
and the “Enterprise Risk Management Framework” is-
sued by the COSO sponsoring organizations. The Risk 
Management Department works diligently to miti-
gate damages at all strategic and operational levels, 
specializing in proactive risk mitigation.

In 2023, Nadec saw significant improvement in its risk 
management capabilities. Through proactive initia-
tives and meticulous execution, a robust framework 
was established, resulting in proactive risk reduction 
and facilitating informed decision making. Nadec 
adopted a holistic approach that included the devel-
opment of risk registers for all departments, compre-
hensive risk analysis, and the use of advanced tech-
nology. These measures ultimately strengthened the 
company’s agility and paved the way for sustainable 
growth. Key achievements during the year include:

Comprehensive Coverage: Centralized risk registers 
were meticulously established across all depart-
ments, providing a comprehensive view of risks and 
potential vulnerabilities.

Business Scope Expansion: The initiation of the sec-
ond phase of risk management focused on the imple-
mentation of responsive risk mitigation plans tailored 
to the identified risks, encompassing effective risk 
mitigation strategies. In-depth analysis was conduct-
ed to refine the risk assessment process and develop 
robust mitigation strategies.

Contractual Measures: A dedicated department for 
contract risk management was established to effec-
tively identify and manage contractual risks on an on-
going basis.

Technology-Enabled Governance: The establishment 
of the Governance, Risk, and Compliance Department 
leveraged resource planning processes to enhance 
risk management, process control, automation, and 
real-time insights.

Data-Driven Decision Making: A visually intuitive 
dashboard was developed to provide real-time data 
for risk prediction, enabling informed decisions  
based on comprehensive risk information.

Fraud Prevention: A comprehensive fraud manage-
ment policy was formulated, complemented by the 
establishment of a dedicated department to combat 
potentially fraudulent activities.

Proactive Analysis: A comprehensive fraud risk anal-
ysis was initiated, including scenario development 
and necessary plans to proactively identify and ad-
dress potential fraud risks.

Compliance Management
Nadec remains steadfast in terms of its commitments  
to the highest standards of compliance and business 
ethics. Our unwavering focus is on strengthening a ro-
bust compliance management system through strict 
adherence to industry best practices and regulatory 
mandates. By vigilantly monitoring evolving com-
pliance standards and global best practices, Nadec 
ensures seamless alignment with the dynamic regu-
latory landscape.

In 2023, Nadec’s compliance department demonstrat-
ed exceptional capabilities in proactively safeguard-
ing company operations and meticulously adhering 
to regulatory requirements. Through the implementa-
tion of automated processes, the formation of spe-
cialized teams, and the skillful use of technology, we 
have established a robust and cost-effective compli-
ance framework to mitigate compliance risks. Key ac-
complishments during the year include:

Enhanced Compliance Risk Monitoring: Development 
of a comprehensive compliance monitoring program 
to ensure continuous oversight and early detection of 
potential risks.

Proactive Compliance Review Plans: Timely completion 
of internal compliance plan development, demonstrat-
ing proactive risk management practices and an unwav-
ering commitment to regulatory compliance.

Internal Compliance and Field Diligence: Regular re-
view and audit of compliance processes across mul-
tiple operational areas, resulting in comprehensive 
reports that validate operational integrity and regu-
latory compliance.

Low-Cost Awareness: Creation of a robust “Compli-
ance World” database of applicable regulations, re-
sulting in significant cost savings and improved inter-
nal knowledge management.

Cultivation of a Self-Assessment Culture: Departmen-
tal self-assessments successfully conducted, laying 
the groundwork for a comprehensive company-wide 
assessment slated for 2024.

Technology-Driven Compliance: Increased operation-
al efficiency and compliance levels through the de-
velopment of an internally built “Accreditation Plat-
form” that facilitates quick and effective responses to 
user requests and inquiries.

Increased Transparency: Development of compliance 
dashboards for regulatory and internal compliance, 
providing real-time insights for data-driven decision 
making.

Commitment to Cybersecurity: Development and im-
plementation of comprehensive cybersecurity poli-
cies and procedures, in collaboration with regulato-
ry authorities, to protect digital assets and maintain 
trust.

Nadec’s steadfast commitment to cybersecurity epit-
omizes our dedication to responsible stewardship of 
digital assets and reflects our adherence to interna-
tional standards and collaborative engagement with 
regulatory bodies.
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Nadec’s Approved Governance Rules and Policies
To ensure effective corporate governance, the executive management, represented by the Governance, Risk, and Compliance 
Department, diligently updated and developed corporate charters and policies in 2023. These updates are aligned with the 
regulations issued by the Ministry of Commerce and the Capital Market Authority, as well as prevailing best practices. The 
resulting regulations and policies were presented to the Board of Directors for approval or recommendation to the General 
Assembly at its inaugural meeting, as required by the jurisdiction.

Governance Team Structure
Corporate governance at Nadec extends beyond mere compliance obligations. A meticulously crafted comprehensive framework delineates 

roles, responsibilities, decision-making processes, and oversight mechanisms. The governance structure contains three specialized com-

mittees dedicated to assisting the Board of Directors in fulfilling its governance responsibilities within the company. These committees in-

clude the Audit Committee, the Executive Committee, and the Remunerations and Nominations Committee. Regular reviews are conducted 

to assess the performance of the Board and its committees, thereby enhancing their effectiveness in achieving the company’s objectives.

Nominatins and Remu-
nerations Committee

Audit CommiteeExecutive Committee

Governance (Structure) Team

Corporate Governance Policies 
The company’s governance policies are binding for all executives, employees, and stakeholders, with any modifications sub-
ject to the approval of the Board of Directors. These policies encompass shareholder rights and describe mechanisms to 
facilitate their exercise in accordance with regulatory standards and global best practices. Measures are taken to improve 
shareholder communication through effective shareholder management and the provision of tools aimed at enhancing the 
effectiveness of communication.

In pursuit of effective corporate governance, the executive management, represented by the Governance, Risk, and Compli-
ance Department, diligently updated and developed the governance regulations and policies in 2023. These updates are 
in line with regulations issued by the Ministry of Commerce and the Capital Market Authority, as well as prevailing best 
practices. Consequently, all governance regulations and policies were approved both the Board of Directors and the General 
Assembly in 2023.

Commitment to Implementing Governance Policies and Rules
With an unwavering commitment to upholding the rights of its shareholders and stakeholders, the Board of Directors prior-
itizes the implementation of the provisions outlined in the Corporate Governance Regulations issued by the Capital Market 
Authority. The company strictly complies with all mandatory provisions, with the following exceptions:

Article/Paragraph Article/Paragraph Provision
Reasons for 

non-implementation

Article (37) Training

Establishing necessary mechanisms for 
members of the Board of Directors and ex-
ecutive management to continuously par-
ticipate in programs and courses aimed at 
developing their skills and knowledge in 
areas relevant to the company’s activities.

Guiding Article

Article (67) Formation of the 
Risk Committee

By decision of the company’s Board of 
Directors, a committee called the “Risk 
Committee” shall be formed, with its 
chairman and a majority of its members 
being non-executive members of the 
Board of Directors. It is a requirement for 
committee members to possess a suitable 
level of knowledge in risk management 
and financial affairs.

Guiding article

Article (90), Paragraph (B) 
of Clause Four, Disclosure of 
Remunerations

Providing the necessary details regarding 
the remuneration and compensation paid 
to each individual separately:

B. Five senior executives who received the 
highest remuneration from the company, 
including the CEO and CFO.

Partially implemented.

Article (92) Formation of 
a Corporate Governance 
Committee

In the event that the Board of Directors 
forms a committee specializing in corpo-
rate governance, it shall be delegated to 
the authorities stipulated in Article 94 of 
these regulations. The committee shall 
monitor all matters related to governance 
implementation and provide the Board of 
Directors with reports and recommenda-
tions at least once a year.

guiding article

Some paragraphs of the regulations remain advisory and may be implemented in the future or upon mandate by the Capital 
Market Authority, the Ministry of Commerce, or other regulatory and supervisory bodies.
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Transparency and Disclosure
Nadec is committed to providing accurate and timely information to all relevant stakeholders on a regular basis by accurately 
and promptly disclosing all material matters. This includes the company’s financial position, performance, and governance 
practices, as well as compliance with rules regarding the disclosure of information, methods of classifying information, and 
timing of disclosure. These endeavors are consistent with the provisions outlined in the Companies Law, the Sixth Regulation 
of Listed Companies Governance issued by the Capital Market Authority, and other relevant regulations and laws, as well as 
sound corporate governance principles and practices.

Board of Directors' Report

Information Disclosed by the Company

Board Members

Annual Reports and
Financial Statements

Transactoins with
Related Parties

Membership of
Board Committees

Main Activities

Auditors' Report

When the company is confidentially provided 
with such information, and disclosure thereof 
may result in filing a lawsuit for breach of con-
fidentiality.

The disclosure of such information results in 
breach of the principles of personal information 
protection.

When such information have legal immunity.

Personal information of company employees 
and members of the Board and its committees.

If disclosure will lead or probably leads to harm 
a crime investigation procedures or prevent oc-
currence or detection thereof or realizing justice.

The conditions in which disclosure leads or may 
lead to harm the commercial interests of the 
company, its commercial partners or other third 
parties, and in the conditions in which public 
interest of disclosure has priority over the pub-
lic interest of non-disclosure.

Information Disclosed by the Company
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Penalties and Fines
No penalties or fines were imposed on the company 
by the Capital Market Authority or other regulatory 
and supervisory bodies during the year 2023.

Cases of Bankruptcy and 
Insolvency of the Board of 
Directors and Executive 
Management
As of the date of this publication, there have been 
no cases of bankruptcy of members of the Board of 
Directors, the executive management, or the Board 
Secretary. Additionally, there have been no cases of 
insolvency in the past five years in which any of the 
members of the Board of Directors, the executive 
management, or the Board Secretary was appointed 
by the insolvent company to a management or super-
visory position.

Declarations of the BOD
	� All accounting records are done appropriately.

	� The system of internal audit is designed on 
accurate basis and it is effective. 

	� There is no doubt in the company’s ability to 
maintain its activity.

Company Subsidiaries
The National Agricultural Development Company invests in a total of four (4) subsidiary and affiliated companies, namely: 

Subsidiary 
Company Name

Main Activity
Company 

Headquarters

Year 
Found-

ed

Capital 
(SAR)

NADEC 
contribu-
tion per-
centage

Company’s total reve-
nues during the year 

2023

National Seed 
Production 
Company

Seeds
Riyadh, 

Kingdom of 
Saudi Arabia 

1406H 29,515,200 13.99 %
The financial statements has 
not been issued at the time 

this report was printed.

United Dairy 
Farms Company

Veterinary 
medicine 

warehouse

Riyadh, 
Kingdom of 
Saudi Arabia 

1408H 7,250,000 8.26%
The financial statements has 
not been issued at the time 

this report was printed.

Arabian Mills Compa-
ny for Food Products 
(formerly: Second 
Milling Company)

Packing and 
grinding (wheat, 
groats, semolina, 
bulgur, fodder)

Riyadh, 
Kingdom of 
Saudi Arabia

1442H 513,150,060 14.87%

The financial state-
ments has not been 

issued at the time this 
report was printed.

National  
Company for 
Agricultural 
Production 

Its main 
activity Is 

agricultural 
production 

Riyadh,

Kingdom of

Saudi Arabia

1404H 5,000,000 51% 

The financial statements 
has not been issued at 

the time this report was 
printed.

The Opinion of the Audit 
Committee on the Adequacy of 
the Internal Control Systems
Recognizing that no control system can provide 
complete and absolute assurance as to the integrity 
and effectiveness of the company’s internal control, 
the Audit Committee, based on periodic reports 
provided by management, its supervisory role in 
monitoring the activities and reports of the inter-
nal audit department, and the evaluations of the 
control system performed by external auditors as 
part of their regular reviews, has not identified any 
significant shortcomings in the internal control sys-
tem that could impact the fairness of the financial 
statements and warrant the attention of the General 
Assembly. However, the Committee remains com-
mitted to working with executive management to 
address control procedures that require continuous 
improvement of controls and internal control sys-
tems within the company.

Audit Committee’s 
Recommendations that Conflict 
with Decisions of the Board of 
Directors
There are no recommendations from the Audit Com-
mittee that conflict with the decisions of the Board 
of Directors or that have been rejected by the Board 
with respect to the appointment or removal of the 
company’s auditors, determination of their fees, the 
evaluation of their performance, or the appointment 
of the internal auditor.

Future Plans
Nadec is committed to implementing its strategic 
plan, which seeks to fortify its position as a leading 
company in the local and regional food and consumer 
goods markets. This endeavor will enable the company 
to expand its current business and broaden the scope 
of its products by engaging in new activities. The com-
pany works to become an integrated food company 
with a sales target of SAR6 billion by 2027. To realize 
this objective, a financial restructuring plan will be for-
mulated to enhance the company’s financial resilience 
to facilitate the implementation of its strategic and op-
erational plans and support its future endeavors.
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Internal audit serves as an independent and objective activity 
aimed at providing consulting services to improve Nadec's 
operations and add value. It assists Nadec in achieving its 
objectives through a systematic and disciplined approach 
to evaluating and improving the effectiveness of its risk 
management, control, and governance processes.

Internal Audit

Nadec’s internal audit management uses a risk-based 
audit approach to prioritize critical areas for review 
within defined timeframes. The scope of internal au-
dit activities covers all internal control systems and 
procedures in order to:

	� Achieve Nadec’s objectives.

	� Ensure efficient resource utilization.

	� Ensure compliance with policies, procedures, 
laws, and regulations.

	� Safeguard Nadec’s assets and interests from var-
ious forms of loss, including fraud, violations, or 
corruption.

	� Ensure the integrity and reliability of information 
and data.

01	

Following up on outstanding audit 
observations.

03	

Recruiting qualified, competent, and 
experienced staff.

02	

Identifying new and evolving risks.

04	

Understanding Nadec’s diverse and complex 
operations.

Major Challenges
Nadec faces a number of major challenges that make it difficult for the internal audit to perform all of its tasks 
in the company. It is always working to develop the plans and policies required to overcome these challenges. 
Nadec uses these policies and plans to improve performance and maximize results. The main challenges are 
as follows:

In accordance with the International Professional Prac-
tices Framework (IPPF) issued by the Institute of Internal 
Auditors (IIA), the internal audit management adheres 
to international standards and fundamental principles, 
definitions, and guidelines for internal audit activities.

Nadec’s senior management serves as the manage-
ment of the internal audit function, acting as the “third 
line of defense” to maintain independence. It provides 
functional reports to the Audit Committee of the Board 
of Directors and administrative reports to the CEO, who 
considers it the “first and second line of defense.” It 
ensures that appropriate internal control measures are 
in place to identify the risks faced by the service ar-
eas, and the internal audit evaluates the effectiveness 
of these measures and provides assurance through 
procedures. It represents a crucial mechanism for con-
trolling, monitoring, and enhancing performance at the 
company level..
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Achievements
Nadec has realized a number of achievements at the internal audit level, including, but not limited to, the 
following:

01	

Developing individual development plans 
for internal audit managers.

03	

Launching an internal audit awareness 
program in May 2023.

05	

Updating the internal audit charter.

07	

Developing a three-year internal audit 
strategy (2023-2025).

02	

Establishing a matrix of authorities for in-
ternal audit management.

04	

Implementing a reporting violations policy.

06	

Enhancing performance indicators for the 
internal audit department.

08	

Establishing internal tools to monitor and 
track artificial intelligence operations.

Long-Term Projects

01	

Establishing an infrastructure for trend 
analysis of execution rates for each sector.

02	

Continuously monitoring developments in 
the artificial intelligence sector.

Future Projects
Nadec seeks to improve the performance of the internal audit within a comprehensive future vision. It 
plans to implement the SAP program specifically for internal audit to leverage data analysis capabilities 
and the concept of continuous auditing.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
To the Shareholders of The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of The National Agricultural Development Company 
(NADEC) (the “Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 
2023, the statements of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in 
shareholders’ equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including material accounting policy information. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2023, and its financial performance and its cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards that are 
endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements that are endorsed 
by the Saudi Organization for Chartered and Professional Accountants. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in 
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) that is endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi 
Arabia that is relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with this Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming auditor’s opinion thereon, and we do 
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit 
addressed the matter is provided in that context.  
 
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit 
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures 
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying 
financial statements.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
To the Shareholders of The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC)  
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)  
 
Key Audit Matters (continued) 
 

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Biological assets measurement:  

The Company’s assets include biological assets 
with net book value amounted SR 755.2 million 
mostly representing diary herd. 

IAS 41 “Agriculture” requires biological assets 
to be measured at fair value less costs to sell, 
unless the fair value cannot be reliably measured. 
In case the fair value of biological assets cannot 
be measured reliably, it is measured at historical 
cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any.  

We considered this to be a key audit matter as the 
carrying value of such assets is material to the 
financial statements and the fair value cannot be 
reliably measured. These assets are measured at 
historical cost and the basis for capitalising the 
costs is largely dependent on management’s 
judgement supported by internal  processes. 

Refer to note 3 for the accounting policy relating 
to biological assets measurement and note 15 for 
the related disclosures. 

Our audit procedures included, among others, the 
following: 

• We evaluated the management’s 
assumptions for not measuring the 
biological assets at fair value and 
discussed the reasonableness of 
measuring the biological assets at cost by 
taking into consideration the approach 
permitted as per the accounting standards 
and other related practices used for 
similar entities within the Kingdom of 
Saudi Arabia; 
 

• We have evaluated the design and 
implementation and tested the operating 
effectiveness of management's key 
controls identified relating to the 
capitalisation of biological assets; 
 

• We recalculated the depreciation 
expenses for the year based on the 
estimated useful life of biological assets; 
and 
 

• We reviewed the adequacy of disclosures 
in accordance with the requirements of 
relevant accounting standards relating to 
biological assets. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
To the Shareholders of The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC)  
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)  
 
Key Audit Matters (continued) 
 

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Revenue recognition: 

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the 
Company has recognized total revenues of SR 
3.19 billion (2022: SR 2.69 billion). 

The Company’s sales arrangements are on point 
in time basis with the right of return provided to 
customers in case of expiry of products sold. 

Revenue recognition is considered as a key audit 
matter since revenue is a key measure of the 
Company’s performance and the Company may 
overstate its revenues by underestimating the 
expected sales returns considering rights 
available to customers under contractual 
arrangements. 

Our audit procedures included, among others, the 
following: 

• We obtained an understanding of 
management's control process over 
revenue recognition and tested the 
operating effectiveness of management's 
key internal controls; 
 

• We have involved IT Audit specialists to 
evaluate the design and implementation 
and tested the operating effectiveness of 
key controls identified relating to revenue 
recognition; 
 

• We have tested samples of key contractual 
arrangements with customers including the 
customer’s right to return for products 
sold; 
 

• We have obtained the basis of estimating 
the sales returns provision and recalculated 
the accuracy of the sales returns provision; 
 

• We have compared the actual sales returns 
post year end with the sales returns 
provision and assessed the accuracy of the 
provision calculated by the management; 
  

• We have performed analytical procedures 
on current year revenues compared with 
prior year revenues based on segments and 
product categories; and 
 

•   We have reviewed the adequacy of 
disclosures relating to revenues in the 
financial statements. 

Refer to note 3 for the accounting policy relating 
to revenue recognition and note 6 for the related 
disclosures. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
To the Shareholders of The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC)  
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)  
 
Other information included in The Company’s 2023 Annual Report  
Other information consists of the information included in the Company’s 2023 annual report, other than 
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board of Directors is responsible for the 
other information in its annual report. The Company’s 2023 annual report is expected to be made 
available to us after the date of this auditor’s report. 
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

When we read the Company’s 2023 annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi 
Arabia and other standards and pronouncements that are endorsed by the Saudi Organization for 
Chartered and Professional Accountants and the provisions of Companies’ Law  and Company’s By-
laws, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those charged with governance, the Audit Committee, are responsible for overseeing the Company’s 
financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
To the Shareholders of The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC)  
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)  
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued) 
 
As part of an audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 
 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

 
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 

the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions 
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied. 
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The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) 

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2023 

Note
31 December  2023

SAR
31 December 2022

SAR

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

Property, plant and equipment 13 1,760,547,868 1,822,737,034

Right-of-use assets 14 57,707,476 55,868,403

Biological assets 15 727,632,518 735,222,754

Intangible assets 16 23,851,662 30,488,378

Investment in joint venture 17 116,222,014 54,191,236

Equity investment at FVOCI 17 8,949,000 8,346,000

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 2,694,910,538 2,706,853,805

CURRENT ASSETS 

Biological assets 18 27,644,670 28,050,004

Inventories 19 559,749,415 516,054,744

Biological assets - available for sale 20 28,929,505 30,232,197

Trade receivables, prepayments, and other receivables 21 463,839,474 429,189,936

Term deposits 22 500,000,000 -

Cash and cash equivalents 23 834,686,320 112,761,952

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,414,849,384 1,116,288,833

TOTAL ASSETS 5,109,759,922 3,823,142,638

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Share capital 24 3,016,400,000 1,016,400,000

Share premium 78,719 78,719

Statutory reserve 25 193,787,812 193,787,812

Other reserves 26 38,985,456 29,045,753

Retained earnings 343,592,118 55,833,425

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 3,592,844,105 1,295,145,709
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The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) 

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2023 

Note
31 December  2023

SAR
31 December 2022

SAR

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Murabaha loans and borrowings 27 97,739,216 892,905,661

Lease liabilities 14 34,777,841 39,265,623

Deferred income 4,017,287 4,559,006

Employee’ defined benefits obligation 28 147,947,099 152,770,825

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 284,481,443 1,089,501,115

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Trade and other payables 29 774,614,339 680,066,613

Murabaha loans and borrowings – short term 27 227,618,113 365,428,150

Murabaha loans and borrowings - current portion 27 51,035,972 267,153,934

Lease liabilities 14 17,894,034 16,105,659

Undistributed rights issue compensation 30 83,238,203 -

Dividend payables 31 32,340,192 32,580,323

Provision for Zakat 32 45,693,521 77,161,135

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,232,434,374 1,438,495,814

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,516,915,817 2,527,996,929

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,109,759,922 3,823,142,638

The accompanying notes 1 to 39 are an integral part of these financial statements

These financial statements appearing on pages (7) to (41) were approved by the Board of Directors and were 
signed on its behalf by

Hassan Aqrouq 
  Chief Financial Officer

Solaiman Al-Twaijri 
Chief Executive Officer

Abdulaziz Saleh Alrebdi 
Chairman

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Statement of Profit or Loss for the year ended 31 December 2023

Note
31 December

 2023 
SAR

31 December 2022
SAR

Revenue 6 3,196,966,537 2,694,247,713

Cost of sales 7 (2,013,222,848) (1,885,914,150)

GROSS PROFIT   1,183,743,689 808,333,563

Selling and marketing expenses 8 (559,555,571) (488,190,154)

General and administrative expenses 9 (213,094,619) (138,952,063)

Impairment losses for trade receivables, and other 
receivables

21 (48,870,839) (11,630,543)

Write off/ impairment losses on property, plant and 
equipment 

13 (24,026,362) (10,008,012)

Other income (expenses), net 10 6,352,791 (12,526,962)

OPERATING PROFIT 344,549,089 147,025,829

Finance cost 11 (76,020,175) (48,833,978)

Share of results of joint venture 17 21,735,857 3,302,460

PROFIT BEFORE ZAKAT   290,264,771 101,494,311

Zakat for current year 32 (14,200,000) (6,002,624)

Zakat reversal related to previous years 32 26,000,000 -

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR   302,064,771 95,491,687

EARNINGS PER SHARE BASED ON PROFIT PER YEAR 
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS 

Basic and diluted 12 1.77 0.61*

* Restated for right issues.

The accompanying notes 1 to 39 are an integral part of these financial statements

These financial statements appearing on pages (7) to (41) were approved by the Board of Directors and were 
signed on its behalf by

Hassan Aqrouq 
  Chief Financial Officer

Solaiman Al-Twaijri 
Chief Executive Officer

Abdulaziz Saleh Alrebdi 
Chairman
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The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2023

   Note
31 December 2023

SAR
31 December 2022

SAR

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR   302,064,771 95,491,687 

ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR 
LOSS

 

Actuarial gain on re-measurement of employees’ de-
fined benefit obligation

28 10,238,306 6,998,496

Movement in equity investment at fair value through 
other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

17 603,000 (4,676,000)

TOTAL ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED TO 
PROFIT OR LOSS

  10,841,306 2,322,496

ITEMS THAT ARE OR MAY BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT 
OR LOSS

Foreign operations – foreign currency translation 
differences

(901,603) 1,518,828

TOTAL ITEMS THAT ARE OR MAY BE RECLASSIFIED TO 
PROFIT OR LOSS

(901,603) 1,518,828

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 9,939,703 3,841,324

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR   312,004,474 99,333,011

The accompanying notes 1 to 39 are an integral part of these financial statements

These financial statements appearing on pages (7) to (41) were approved by the Board of Directors and were 
signed on its behalf by

Hassan Aqrouq 
  Chief Financial Officer

Solaiman Al-Twaijri 
Chief Executive Officer

Abdulaziz Saleh Alrebdi 
Chairman

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the year ended 31 
December 2023 

Share capital
SAR

Share premi-
um
SAR

Statutory 
reserve

SAR

Other reserves
SAR

Retained earn-
ings
SAR

Total share-
holders’ 
equity

SAR
Balance as at 1 Jan-
uary 2023 

1,016,400,000 78,719 193,787,812 29,045,753 55,833,425 1,295,145,709

Profit for the year - - - - 302,064,771 302,064,771

Other comprehen-
sive income for the 
year

- - - 9,939,703 - 9,939,703

Total comprehen-
sive income

- - - 9,939,703 302,064,771 312,004,474

Issue of new right 
issue shares (note 
24)

2,000,000,000 - - - (14,306,078) 1,985,693,922

Balance as at 31 
December 2023

3,016,400,000 78,719 193,787,812 38,985,456 343,592,118 3,592,844,105

Balance as at 1 Jan-
uary 2022 

1,016,400,000 78,719 184,238,643 25,204,429 (30,109,093) 1,195,812,698

Profit for the year - - - - 95,491,687 95,491,687

Other comprehen-
sive income for the 
year

- - - 3,841,324 - 3,841,324

Total comprehen-
sive income

- - - 3,841,324 95,491,687 99,333,011

Transfer to statutory 
reserve

- - 9,549,169 - (9,549,169) -

Balance as at 31 
December 2022

1,016,400,000 78,719 193,787,812 29,045,753 55,833,425 1,295,145,709

The accompanying notes 1 to 39 are an integral part of these financial statements

These financial statements appearing on pages (7) to (41) were approved by the Board of Directors and were 
signed on its behalf by

Hassan Aqrouq 
  Chief Financial Officer

Solaiman Al-Twaijri 
Chief Executive Officer

Abdulaziz Saleh Alrebdi 
Chairman
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The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2023

Note
31 December 

2023
SAR

31 December 
2022
SAR

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  

Profit before Zakat   290,264,771 101,494,311

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property plant and equipment, net 13 148,245,121 158,066,625

Depreciation of right-of-use assets 14 14,339,308 18,083,505

Depreciation of biological assets 15 63,225,609 52,109,895

Amortization of intangible assets 16 8,654,485 10,127,945

Deferred income (541,719) (541,719)

Employee benefits obligation 28 30,402,117 19,852,651

Write off/ Impairment losses on trade receivables and other 
receivables 

21 37,320,981 11,630,543

Inventory provision 19 31,546,653 17,376,685

Finance cost  11 76,020,175 48,833,978

Share of results from joint venture 17 (21,735,857) (3,302,460)

Loss on sale of property plant and equipment and biologi-
cal assets, net                  

10 48,505,220 33,389,787

Write off/ Impairment losses on property, plant and equip-
ment 

13 24,026,362 10,008,012

    750,273,226 477,129,758

Changes in:  

Inventories (75,246,356) (79,953,247)

Biological assets - available for sale 1,302,692 4,814,746

Biological assets 405,334 (3,949,413)

Trade receivables, prepayments, and other receivables (73,752,395) 114,593,698

Trade and other payables 96,344,783 (36,704,782)

  699,327,284 475,930,760

Zakat paid 32 (19,667,614) (1,091,904)

Employee benefits paid 28 (24,987,537) (23,086,773)

Net cash from operating activities   654,672,133 451,752,083

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2023

Note
31 December 

2023
SAR

31 December 
2022
SAR

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and biologi-
cal assets

13
(292,077,751) (281,129,772)

Acquisition of intangible assets 16 (2,017,770) (22,573,505)

Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment and 
biological assets

77,853,556  60,685,870

Investment in time deposits 23 (500,000,000) -

Investment in joint venture 17 (40,294,921) -

Net cash used in investing activities   (756,536,886) (243,017,407)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  

Issue of new shares 24 2,000,000,000 -

Undistributed rights issue compensation 30 83,238,203 -

Expenses relating to issue of new shares (14,306,078) -

Proceeds from Murabaha loans and borrowings  478,616,451 442,004,969

Repayment of Murabaha loans and borrowings  (1,622,295,356) (560,306,624)

Finance cost paid  (79,515,912) (39,323,536)

Payment of lease liabilities (20,797,587) (19,681,703)

Dividend paid 31 (240,131) (229,455)

Net cash from (used in) financing activities  824,699,590 (177,536,349)

Net change in cash and cash equivalent    722,834,837 31,198,327

Cash and cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year 112,761,952 81,918,355

Effect of exchange rates fluctuations on cash held (910,469) (354,730)

CASH AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT END OF THE 
YEAR

 23 834,686,320 112,761,952

The accompanying notes 1 to 39 are an integral part of these financial statements

These financial statements appearing on pages (7) to (41) were approved by the Board of Directors and were 
signed on its behalf by

Hassan Aqrouq 
  Chief Financial Officer

Solaiman Al-Twaijri 
Chief Executive Officer 

Abdulaziz Saleh Alrebdi 
Chairman 
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1.	 THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS
The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) (the “Company”) is a Saudi Joint Stock Company 
formed under the Royal Decree No. M/41 dated 17 Shawwal 1401H (corresponding to 17 August 1981). NADEC 
was formerly known as Haradh Agriculture and Livestock Company which was registered in Riyadh under Com-
mercial Registration No. 1010018795 dated 26 Dhul-Hijjah 1398H (corresponding to 26 November 1978).

The Company is engaged in agricultural and livestock production, reclamation of agricultural land, food pro-
cessing and marketing and distribution of its products. 

The Company’s financial year begins on January 1 and ends at the end of December of the same year.

The Company’s Head office is located at the following address:

Building No. 7049, 

Sub No. 2467, 

Prince Abdulrahman Bin Abdulaziz Road, Al Murabba District,

Riyadh 11461 – Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

2.	BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1	 Statement of Compliance 
These annual Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the International 
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (KSA) and other standards 
and pronouncements that are issued by the Saudi Organization for Chartered and Professional Accountants 
(“SOCPA”). Collectively referred as (International Financial Reporting Standards endorsed in the Kingdom of 
Saudi Arabia)

2.2	 Basis of Measurement
These annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with historical cost except for the fol-
lowing significant items included in the Statement of Financial Position

	� Equity Investments at FVOCI are valued at fair value in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 13 second 
level of valuation method.

	� Biological assets are measured at fair value less cost to sell except when fair value cannot be measured 
reliably. This assumption can be refuted by the lack of reliable declared market prices.

	� Derivative financial instruments are measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss. 

	� Employee defined benefit obligations is recognized at the present value of future obligations using the 
Projected Unit Credit method.

2.	BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

2.3	 Functional and Presentation Currency 
These annual Financial Statements have been presented in Saudi Riyal (“SAR”) unless otherwise stated, which 
is also the functional currency of the Company.

3.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
The material accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of these financial statements are 
set out below. 

Term Deposits
Time Deposits include placements with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments, with original 
maturities of more than three months but not more than one year from the date of placement. Time deposits 
are placed with financial institutions with investment grade rating which are considered to have low credit risk. 

Investment income in time deposits is accrued on a timely basis by reference to the principal outstanding and 
at the  applicable effective interest rate.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of Cash on hand, Cash with banks and other short-term liquid investments/ 
deposits with original maturities of three months or less which are available to use without any restrictions.  

Trade and Other Receivables 
Trade and Other receivables are stated at amortized cost less Expected Credit Loss as per IFRS 9. Bad debts 
once identified are written off against the related provisions.

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted 
average method. Inventory cost includes costs of purchase (including taxes, transport, and handling etc.) net 
of trade discounts received, costs of conversion (including fixed and variable manufacturing overheads) and 
any other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Provision is made, 
when necessary, for obsolete, slow moving and defective inventory. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The amount of any write-down of inventories 
to net realisable value and all losses of inventories shall be recognized as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in 
net realisable value, shall be recognized as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognized as an expense 
in the period in which the reversal occurs. The cost of items of inventory used is assigned by weighted average 
cost formula.

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023
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3.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment are recognized as assets if, and only if: 

	 a. It is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and

	 b. The cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Property, Plant and Equipment are initially recognized at cost and subsequently stated at cost, net of accumu-
lated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent and additional costs to existing 
asset are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, when it 
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of 
the item can be measured reliably. Finance costs on borrowings, to finance the construction of the qualifying 
assets, are capitalized during the period that is required to substantially complete and prepare the qualify-
ing asset for its intended use. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the 
carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria is satisfied. All other 
repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the profit or loss when incurred. The items of property, plant 
and equipment are subject to impairment test whenever there is a substantial evidence for impairment. The 
present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset after its use, is included in the cost of 
the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. 

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets (except for land 
and capital work in progress) as follows:

Description Number of years

Concrete Buildings 50  years

Pre-fabricated Building 5-10  years

Wells and Civil works 7-50  years

Machinery and Equipment 7-25  years

Tanks and Silos 7-30  years

Agricultural Equipment 8-25  years

Vehicles and Trucks 4-8  years

Tools 5-10  years

Office Furniture 5-10  years

Bearer Plants 20  years

Leasehold Improvements As per Lease Agreement

3.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property, Plant and Equipment are derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are ex-
pected from their use or disposal. The gain or loss arising on disposal of the asset (calculated as the differ-
ence between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss 
during the period when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed at 
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, where appropriate.

Capital Work in Progress is recorded according to acquisition cost plus all direct costs that are incurred on 
them to bring them to location and condition necessary to enable the Company to have these assets ready 
for intended use. These assets are transferred to relevant assets categories and are depreciated once they are 
available for their intended use.

Biological Assets 
Biological Assets are the herd of productive and non-productive cows as well as the Biological Assets acquired 
for sale, including crops in the growth stage that have not yet reached the harvest point. Each of these items 
is presented separately in the Statement of Financial Position.

Biological assets are measured at fair value less cost to sell except when fair value cannot be measured reli-
ably.

In case the fair value of biological assets cannot be measured reliably, it is measured at historical cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The Company’s management has not been 
able to obtain reliable data that can be relied upon as inputs or indicators that support the measurement of 
biological assets at fair value as per the Income, replacement cost or market approach of IFRS 13 – Fair Value 
Measurement. If such data are available in the future, the Company will adjust the measurement of the biolog-
ical assets to fair value rather than cost. Depreciation for biological assets (Cows) is calculated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of )5 years(.

Intangible Assets
Internally generated Intangible Assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the 
related expenditure is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss when it is incurred.

Intangible Assets are recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the 
asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Amortization is calculated 
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets 5 years.

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Nadec
Annual Report 2023

226  _ 227



3.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment 
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the 
amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at the end of each 
reporting year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future 
economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, 
as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible 
assets with finite lives is recognized in the Statement of Profit or loss in the expense category consistent with 
the function of the intangible assets. 

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit or 
loss when the asset is derecognized.

Investment joint ventures
A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement 
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of 
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent 
of the parties sharing control.

The Company’s investment joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, 
the investment in a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is ad-
justed to recognise changes in the Company’s share of net assets of joint venture since the acquisition date. 
Goodwill relating to the joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested 
for impairment separately. 

The statement of profit or loss reflects the Company’s share of the results of operations of the joint venture. 
Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Company’s OCI. In addition, when there has 
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture, the Company recognises its share of any 
changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity.

Trade and Other Payables
Trade and Other payables are recognized based on the net payable amount or the expected payment for goods 
and services received whether invoiced by supplier or not.

3.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provisions 
Provision is recognized if, and only if a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a 
past event (the obligating event), payment is probable (‘more likely than not’), and when the amount can be 
estimated reliably. An obligating event is an event that creates a legal or constructive obligation and, therefore, 
results in an entity having no realistic alternative but to settle the obligation. The amount recognized as a pro-
vision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date. 
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting year and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be 
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a Contingent Liability, unless the probability of outflow of 
economic benefits is unreliable. Contingent liabilities, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occur-
rence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the control of the Company, are not 
recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed as Contingent Liabilities unless the possibility of an 
outflow of economic resources is considered unreliable.

Leases
At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or 
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time 
in exchange for consideration.

As a lessee 

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for 
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an 
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site 
on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement 
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The es-
timated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equip-
ment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for 
certain remeasurements of the lease liability.
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3.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrow-
ing rate as the discount rate. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the 
following:

	� fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

	� variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at 
the commencement date;

	� amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

	� the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease 
payments in an optional renewal period if Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, 
and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to terminate 
early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when 
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the 
Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company 
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount 
of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been 
reduced to zero.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that 
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes the lease pay-
ments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying asset 
(an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale) form part 
of the cost of that asset. No borrowing costs are capitalized during idle periods. 

All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

3.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Segment Reporting
An operating segment is a group of assets and processes that deliver products or services that are subject to 
risks and rewards that differ from those of other operating segments. Operating segments are segmented ac-
cording to their geographical scope and each sector’s performance is reviewed by the chief decision makers. 
These sectors may operate within a specific economic environment that is subject to risks and rewards differ-
ent from those of sectors operating in other economic environments. 

Government Grants
Government grants, including non-monetary grants at fair value, shall not be recognized until there is rea-
sonable assurance that, the entity will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and the grants will be 
received. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss on a system-
atic basis over the periods that the costs which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant 
relates to an asset, it is recognized on Statement of Financial Position as Deferred Income and is amortized in 
equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset. 

The Company has elected to present the grant in the Statement of Financial Position as deferred income, which 
is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful life of the asset. 
When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value 
and released to Statement of Profit or Loss over the expected useful life of the asset, based on the pattern of 
consumption of the benefits of the underlying asset.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
Non-financial assets (other than biological assets measured at fair value, inventories) are reviewed by the 
Company at each reporting date to identify circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment loss or reversal 
of impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to 
determine the extent of the impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the 
higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, when it is not 
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable 
amount of the cash-generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. Where the carrying amount of an as-
set exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable 
amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a dis-
count rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. In determining fair value less costs of sell, recent market transactions are considered. If no such trans-
actions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. 
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3.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign Currency Transaction
Foreign currency transactions are translated to Saudi Riyal (‘SAR’) at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates 
of the respective transactions. At Statement of Financial Position date, balances of monetary assets and liabil-
ities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Saudi Riyal (‘SAR’) at the prevailing exchange rates on 
that date. Gains and losses resulting from changes in exchange rates are recognized in the Statement of Profit 
or Loss.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue represents the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods sold, net of returns, 
trade discounts and volume rebates. The Company recognizes revenue when a customer obtains control of the 
goods at a point in time on acknowledgement of goods. 

Products are sold principally on a sale or return basis. Allowances for expected sales returns are calculated 
based on the forecasted return of expired products. Expected sales returns are netted off against revenue with 
the corresponding impact in Trade and Other Payables for cash sales and Trade Receivables for credit sales.

The goods are often sold with retrospective volume discounts based on aggregate sales over a 12 months peri-
od. Revenue from these sales is recognized based on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated 
volume discounts. Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for the discounts and revenue is 
only recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur. A refund liabil-
ity (included in trade and other payables) is recognized for expected volume discounts payable to customers 
in relation to sales made during the year. 

Share Capital 
Shares are classified as equity and are recorded at their face value. Incremental costs, if any, directly attribut-
able to the issue of new shares, are recognized in Equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

Dividends
Dividends are recognized in the Financial Statements in the period in which it is approved by General Assem-
bly Meeting.

Expenses
Selling and marketing expenses are those expenses arising from the Company’s efforts underlying the market-
ing, selling and distribution functions. All other expenses, excluding Cost of Sales, Finance Cost and Zakat are 
classified as General and Administrative Expenses. Allocations between Cost of Sales, Selling and Distribution 
and General and Administration Expenses, when required, are made on a consistent basis.

3.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Zakat
The Company is subject to Zakat according to the regulations of the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority “ZATCA”. 
Zakat provision is estimated and charged to the Statement of Profit of Loss. Any differences in the estimates 
are recognized when the final assessment is approved by “ZATCA”, such differences are recognized in the State-
ment of Profit or Loss in the year in which the final assessment is approved by “ZATCA”.

Employee Benefits

a.	 Saudi Employees

Pension and other social benefits for the Company’s employees are covered by the applicable social insurance 
scheme of the countries in which they are employed and are considered as a defined contribution scheme. The 
employees and employer contribute monthly to the scheme on a fixed-percentage-of-salaries basis.

b.	 Foreign Employees

Foreign employees on limited-term contracts are entitled to end of service payments under the respective 
labour laws of the countries in which they are employed, based on length of service and final remuneration. 
Provision for this unfunded commitment has been made by calculating the full liability, had all employees left 
at the reporting date.

i. Defined Contribution Plan

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided and 
the contributions paid in advance are recognized as an asset to the extent that the cash is recovered, or future 
payments reduced. 

ii. Defined Benefit Plan

The net liability of the Company in respect of benefit plans is identified separately for each plan and is calcu-
lated by estimating the value of the future benefits realized by the employees in current and prior periods and 
determining that amount and the fair value discount on any of the plan’s assets. The defined benefit obliga-
tions are calculated 

annually by a qualified actuarial expert using the Projected Unit Credit method. Where the calculation results 
in potential assets of the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of the economic bene-
fits available in the form of any future recoveries from the benefit plan or reductions in future contributions to 
the plan. The calculation of the present value of economic benefits considers current financing requirements. 
The amounts of the net identifiable benefit obligations that include actuarial gains and losses, return on plan 
assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest) are recognized directly 
in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income. The Company determines the net interest expense (or income) 
on the Net Liabilities (Net Assets) determined for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure 
the obligation and benefits identified at the beginning of the annual period of the obligation (or the asset), 
considering any changes in net liabilities.
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3.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
b.	 Foreign Employees (Continued)

ii. Defined Benefit Plan (Continued)

Net interest expense and other expense related to benefit plans are recognized in the Statement of Profit or 
Loss. When the benefits of the plan change or when the plan is amortized, the change in the benefits relating 
to the past service or the gain or loss resulting from the reduction in profit or loss is recognized immediately. 
The Company recognizes the gain or loss arising from settlement of the defined benefits plan when the set-
tlement occurs.

iii. Other Long-Term Employee Benefits 

The net obligation of the Company in respect of other long-term employee benefits is the amount of future 
benefits to which the employees are entitled in return for their service in the current and prior periods. That 
benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Remeasurements are recognized in the Statement of Prof-
it or Loss in the period in which they arise. 

Financial instruments 

1.	 Non-Derivative Financial Instruments 

	 a. Non-Derivative Financial Assets

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

	 � Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through OCI or through profit or loss), and

	 � Those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contrac-
tual terms of the cash flows. 

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments 
in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Company has made an 
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through 
other comprehensive income (FVOCI). 

The Company initially recognizes financial assets on the date that they are originated. All other financial assets 
are recognized initially on the trade date at which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument.

3.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

1.	 Non-Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)

	 a. Non-Derivative Financial Assets (Continued)

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset ex-
pire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in 
which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest 
in the transferred financial asset that is created or retained by the Company is recognized as a separate asset 
or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is presented in the Statement of Financial Posi-
tion when, and only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on 
a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Company has the following non-derivative financial assets;

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

Financial assets held for collection of contractual cash flows, where those cash flows represent solely pay-
ments of principal and interest (SPPI), are measured at amortized cost. Gains or losses on debt investments 
are subsequently measured at amortized cost and are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the 
asset is derecognized or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income 
using the effective interest rate method. The Company classifies its Trade and Other receivables and Cash and 
Bank Balances under this category. 

Financial Assets at FVOCI

Financial assets held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the 
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. 

Debt investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the ef-
fective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the Statement of 
Profit or Loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulat-
ed in OCI are reclassified to the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

Equity investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in 
profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net 
gains and losses are recognized in OCI and are never reclassified to profit or loss. 

The Company has classified its Equity investment in other Companies as FVOCI. 
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3.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

1.	 Non-Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)

	 b. Non-Derivative Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date, which is the date that the Company becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or 
expired. Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the Statement of Finan-
cial Position when, and only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to 
settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Company classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities category. Such 
financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Sub-
sequent to initial recognition these financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method. 

Non-derivative financial liabilities of the Company comprise of bank borrowings, lease liabilities and trade and 
other payables.

2.	 Derivative Financial Instruments 

All derivatives do not qualify as hedging instruments and are therefore held and accounted for as trading deriv-
atives. These derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are 
measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

Standards issued but not yet effective
The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of 
issuance of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these new 
and amended standards and interpretations, if applicable, when they become effective.  

Amendments to IFRS 16: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 
In September 2022, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 16 to specify the requirements that a seller-lessee 
uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee 
does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. 

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and must be 
applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application of 
IFRS 16. Earlier application is permitted and that fact must be disclosed. 

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements. 

3.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 
In January 2020 and October 2022, the IASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 to specify the 
requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments clarify:  

	� What is meant by a right to defer settlement 

	� That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period 

	� That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right 

	� That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument would the terms 
of a liability not impact its classification  

In addition, a requirement has been introduced to require disclosure when a liability arising from a loan agree-
ment is classified as non-current and the entity’s right to defer settlement is contingent on compliance with 
future covenants within twelve months.  

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 20243 and must be 
applied retrospectively. The Company is currently assessing the impact the amendments will have on current 
practice and whether existing loan agreements may require renegotiation.  

Supplier Finance Arrangements - Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 
In May 2023, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: 

Disclosures to clarify the characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and require additional disclosure of 
such arrangements. The disclosure requirements in the amendments are intended to assist users of financial 
statements in understanding the effects of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows 
and exposure to liquidity risk. 

The amendments will be effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. Early 
adoption is permitted, but will need to be disclosed. 

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

New and amended standards and interpretations 
The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual pe-
riods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 (unless otherwise stated). The Company has not early adopted any 
other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective. 

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

The National Agricultural Development Company (NADEC) 

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Nadec
Annual Report 2023

236  _ 237



3.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering 
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 Insurance contracts. IFRS 
17 applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless 
of the type of entities that issue them as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discre-
tionary participation features; a few scope exceptions will apply. The overall objective of IFRS 17 is to provide 
a comprehensive accounting model for insurance contracts that is more useful and consistent for insurers, 
covering all relevant accounting aspects. IFRS 17 is based on a general model, supplemented by:   

	� A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach) 

	� A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts 

The new standard had no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to IAS 8 
The amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in ac-
counting policies and the correction of errors. They also clarify how entities use measurement techniques and 
inputs to develop accounting estimates. 

The amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial statements.  

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice 
Statement 2 
The amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements provide guidance and 
examples to help entities apply materiality judgements to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim 
to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for 
entities to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ account-
ing policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about 
accounting policy disclosures.  

The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the 
measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company’s financial statements.  

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single 
Transaction – Amendments to IAS 12 
The amendments to IAS 12 Income Tax narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception, so that it no longer 
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases and 
decommissioning liabilities.  

The amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

3.	MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

International Tax Reform—Pillar Two Model Rules – Amendments to IAS 12 
The amendments to IAS 12 have been introduced in response to the OECD’s BEPS Pillar Two rules and include: 

	� A mandatory temporary exception to the recognition and disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the 
jurisdictional implementation of the Pillar Two model rules; and 

	� Disclosure requirements for affected entities to help users of the financial statements better understand an 
entity’s exposure to Pillar Two income taxes arising from that legislation, particularly before its effective date. 

The mandatory temporary exception – the use of which is required to be disclosed – applies immediately. The 
remaining disclosure requirements apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, but 
not for any interim periods ending on or before 31 December 2023. 

The amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

4.	SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND 
ASSUMPTIONS
The preparation of the Company’s Financial Statements requires management to make judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of Revenues, Expenses, Assets and Liabilities, and the ac-
companying Disclosures, and the disclosure of Contingent Liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions 
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset 
or liability affected in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting 
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabili-
ties within the next financial years, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on 
parameters available when the Financial Statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions 
about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the 
control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

4.1	 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
A non-financial asset is impaired when the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit exceeds the 
asset’s recoverable amount (which represents the fair value of the asset less costs to sell or its value in use, 
whichever is greater). The fair value of the asset is estimated through sales that are on a purely commercial ba-
sis for similar assets. Market prices are observable minus the incremental costs of selling the asset. The value 
in use is calculated based on the present value of the expected cash flows of the asset over the next five years. 
These expected cash flows do not include restructuring activities for which the Company is not yet committed 
or significant future investments that enhance the asset performance of the cash-generating unit under consid-
eration. The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used to calculate the cash flows as well 
as the expected future cash flows and the growth rate used to estimate the value in use. 
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4.	SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND 
ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)

4.2	 Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments including derivative 
financial instruments
When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Statement of Financial Po-
sition cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is determined using 
valuation techniques including the DCF (discounted cash flows) model that includes the use of the present 
value of expected cash flows from such assets or using other methods as provided for in IFRS 13. The inputs 
to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree 
of judgement is required in establishing fair values. The judgements include considerations of inputs such 
as Liquidity risk, Credit risk and Volatility. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect the 
reported fair value of financial instruments.

4.3	 Impairment of Non-Derivative Financial Assets 
The Company recognizes loss allowances for ECLs (Expected Credit Loss) on Financial Assets measured at 
amortized cost i.e. Trade Receivables of the Company. The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis 
the Expected Credit Losses (“ECL”) associated with its financial assets carried at amortized cost. For trade 
receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach, which requires expected lifetime losses to be 
recognized from initial recognition of the receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, receivables 
have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. Expected loss rates 
were derived from historical information of the Company and are adjusted to reflect the expected future 
outcome which also incorporates forward looking information for macroeconomic factors such as inflation 
and gross domestic product growth rate. Other financial assets such as employees’ receivables, bank bal-
ances have low credit risk and the impact of applying ECL is immaterial.

4.	SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND 
ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)

4.4	 Provision for Slow Moving Inventory Items 
The management makes a provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory items. Estimates of net real-
izable value of inventories are based on the most reliable evidence at the time the estimates are made. 
These estimates take into consideration fluctuations of price or cost directly related to events occurring 
subsequent to the Statement of Financial Position date to the extent that such events confirm conditions 
existing at the end of year. (Note 19)

4.5	 Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment 
The management determines the estimated useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment for calculating 
depreciation. This estimate is determined after considering expected usage of the assets and physical wear 
and tear. Management reviews the residual value and useful lives annually and change in depreciation 
charges are adjusted in current and future periods, if any. 

4.6	 Judgements
The Company has evaluated its Biological Assets at cost as there is no active market to obtain the fair value 
of these assets and there are no indications that fair value can be reliably determined. Equity Investments 
are measured at fair value and any changes in fair value are recognized through OCI. The cumulative change 
in the fair value of those investments is reported under Other Reserves under Equity in Statement of Finan-
cial Position. (Note 15,17 and 18).
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5.	OPERATING SEGMENTS
IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified based on internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the 
Company’s chief operating decision makers and used to allocate resources to segments and assess their per-
formance. The operating segments described below has been prepared in accordance with IFRS 8. The Compa-
ny operates in two main business segments: Manufacturing of Dairy and Foods and Production of Agricultural 
Products. Most of the Company’s revenues, profits and assets relate to its operations in Saudi Arabia and arise 
from these reportable business segments. The chief operating decision makers monitors the operational re-
sults of these operating segments separately for making decisions about resource allocation and performance 
evaluation. The performance of the segment is evaluated on a profit or loss basis and is measured in a manner 
consistent with the profit or loss recognized in the Financial Statements.

The following is a summary of the operating segments as at and for the year ended 31 December 2023:

Dairy and Food Agriculture
Elimina-

tion of Inter- 
Segment Sales

Total

SAR SAR SAR SAR 

Revenue

External Revenue 3,080,102,397 116,864,140 - 3,196,966,537

Inter-Segment Revenue - 50,957,401 (50,957,401) -

Total Revenue 3,080,102,397 167,821,541 (50,957,401) 3,196,966,537

Expenses

Depreciation and Amortization (208,059,807) (26,404,692) - (234,464,499)

Provision for Other Receivables (40,500,000) - - (40,500,000)

Operating Profit 328,385,950 16,163,139 - 344,549,089

Finance Cost (72,449,237) (3,570,938) - (76,020,175)

Share of Results of Joint Venture - 21,735,857 - 21,735,857

Profit before Zakat 255,936,713 34,328,058 - 290,264,771

Zakat for current year (14,200,000) - - (14,200,000)

Zakat reversal related to previ-
ous years

26,000,000 - - 26,000,000

Profit for the year 267,736,713 34,328,058 - 302,064,771

Total Assets as at 31 December 
2023

4,648,665,088 461,094,834 - 5,109,759,922

5.	OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)
The following is a summary of the operating segments as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

Dairy and Food Agriculture
Elimina-

tion of Inter- 
Segment Sales

Total

SAR SAR SAR SAR 

Revenue

External Revenue 2,584,034,067 110,213,646 - 2,694,247,713

Inter-Segment Revenue 16,457,796 33,113,470 (49,571,266) -

Total Revenue 2,600,491,863 143,327,116 (49,571,266) 2,694,247,713

Expenses

Depreciation and Amortization (216,739,948) (21,648,022) - (238,387,970)

Provision for Other Receivables (7,100,197) - - (7,100,197)

Operating Profit/ (Loss)   202,914,353 (55,888,524) - 147,025,829

Finance Cost (45,051,669) (3,782,309) - (48,833,978)

Share of Results of Joint Ven-
ture

- 3,302,460 - 3,302,460

Profit/ (Loss) before Zakat 157,862,684 (56,368,373) - 101,494,311

Zakat for current year (6,000,000) (2,624) - (6,002,624)

Profit/ (Loss) for the year 151,862,684 (56,370,997) - 95,491,687

Total Assets as at 31 December 
2022

3,313,544,052 509,598,586 - 3,823,142,638

The following is the summary of revenue allocated to geographical segments:

31 December 2023
SAR

31 December 2022
SAR

Saudi Arabia 2,829,356,972 2,399,685,681

Other Countries 367,609,565 294,562,032

3,196,966,537 2,694,247,713
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6.	REVENUE
31 December 2023

SAR
31 December 2022

SAR

Dairy and food revenue 3,009,636,185 2,543,119,096

Agricultural products revenue 116,864,140 56,719,345

Sales of calves and bulls 70,466,212 94,409,272

3,196,966,537 2,694,247,713

The main sources of the Company’s revenues from contracts with customers include dairy and food sales as 
well as agricultural products, sales of calves and others. The control of the products is transferred to the cus-
tomer at actual time of delivery and upon acknowledgment. 

7.	COST OF SALES
31 December 2023

SAR
31 December 2022

SAR

Material consumed 1,563,180,889 1,483,277,247

Government subsidies * (18,917,583) (34,318,720)

1,544,263,306 1,448,958,527

Employee benefits 151,497,410 158,542,869

Depreciation of property plant and equipment (note 13) 126,555,860 131,941,601

Maintenance and repairs expenses 87,216,491 50,971,619

Depreciation of biological assets (note 15) 63,225,609 52,109,895

Fees and government expenses 12,942,355 21,032,306

Insurance expenses on property, plant and equipment 5,780,421 5,895,712

Rent and lease expenses 3,581,873 4,840,963

Utility expenses 3,032,734 2,485,680

Depreciation – right-of-use assets (note 14) 868,538 868,538

Amortization of intangible assets (note 16) 462,335 641,561

Other expenses 13,795,916 7,624,879

2,013,222,848 1,885,914,150

* Government subsidies receivables for the import of certain animal feed items which are supported by the 
Government of Saudi Arabia have been recognized against the cost of materials based on consumption.

8.	SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES
31 December 2023

SAR
31 December 2022

SAR

Employee benefits 226,656,284 221,360,758

Marketing and distribution expenses 183,032,153 125,753,874

Maintenance and repairs expense 42,615,091 19,727,994

Fees and government expenses 34,959,957 38,986,630

Depreciation of property plant and equipment (note 13) 19,782,234 24,766,003

Utility expenses 16,481,502 18,737,518

Depreciation – right-of-use assets (note 14) 13,470,744 17,214,967

Rent and lease expenses 6,124,546 6,574,723

Insurance expenses on property, plant and equipment 4,185,532 3,684,318

Amortization of intangible assets (note 16) 274,478 339,452

Other expenses 11,973,050 11,043,917

559,555,571 488,190,154

9.	GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
31 December 2023

SAR
31 December 2022

SAR

Employee benefits 124,090,031 82,454,418

Information technology expenses 35,197,745 31,751,447

Professional and consultancy expenses 29,547,062 5,824,301

Amortization of intangible assets (note 16) 7,917,672 9,146,932

Fees and government expenses 3,279,098 2,138,378

Utility expenses 2,595,581 2,040,672

Depreciation of property plant and equipment (note 13) 1,365,308 817,302

Insurance expenses on property, plant and equipment 288,146 644,152

Other expenses 8,813,976 4,134,461

213,094,619 138,952,063
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10.	 OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES), NET 
31 December 2023

SAR
31 December 2022

SAR

Sales of ancillary products/ service income * 30,163,918 24,068,476

Government grant subsidy ** 19,459,478 -

Scrap sales and other miscellaneous income 4,923,187 1,260,359

Interest income on bank deposits 3,912,778 -

Dividend income from equity investments at FVOCI 300,000 300,000

Net foreign exchange loss (3,901,350) (4,766,010)

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment and biologi-
cal assets, net 

(48,505,220) (33,389,787)

6,352,791 (12,526,962)

* During the current year, the Company received service income of SAR 8 million (31 December 2022: SAR 7 
million) for marketing and distribution of fresh vegetables.

** During the current year, the Company received a subsidy grant of SAR 19.5 million from General Food Securi-
ty Authority (GFSA). This grant is received for the animal feeds (Soya and corn) consumed in previous years and 
there are no conditions attached to it.  

11.	FINANCE COST
31 December 2023

SAR
31 December 2022

SAR

Interest expense on Murabaha loans 66,352,128 39,236,863

Interest expense on lease liabilities (note 14) 1,919,800 2,224,032

Other finance charges 7,748,247 7,373,083

76,020,175 48,833,978

12.	 EARNINGS PER SHARE
31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (SAR) 302,064,771 95,491,687 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (number of 
Shares)

171,049,994 157,635,915*

Earnings per share (SAR/Share) 1.77 0.61*

* Restated for right issues.

Earnings per share has been calculated by dividing profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company 
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
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13.	 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Description
Land

Concrete 

Buildings

Prefabricated 

Buildings

Wells and 

Civil works

Machinery and 

Equipment

Tanks and 

Silos

Agricultural 

Equipment

Vehicles and 

Trucks
Tools

Office Furni-

ture
Bearer Plants

Leasehold Im-

provements

Capital 

Parts

Capital Work 

in Progress
Total

SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR
Cost    
As at 1 January 2022 294,801,479 736,384,334 289,023,733 435,847,694 1,956,172,899 72,380,869 177,422,157 236,302,870 313,971,933 162,680,257 169,384,768 4,707,315 1,670,352 95,886,698 4,946,637,358
Addition - 859,766 3,353,770 861,873 11,660,673 3,270,477 2,223,142 599,077 3,560,698 4,513,616 20,460 284,108 - 56,587,839 87,795,499
Transfers - - - - 26,937,503 - - - - - 15,351,726 - - (42,289,229) -

Foreign currency translation differences (689) (2,307,098) (1,040,723)  (11,415,651)  (9,977,967) (481,177) (5,084,761)  (1,955,697)  (194,068) (211,988)  (2,347,160) (16) - - (35,016,995)

Disposals (-) - - - - - - -  (3,348,479) - (67,990)  (8,431,473) - - - (11,847,942)
As at 31 December 2022 294,800,790  734,937,002  291,336,780  425,293,916  1,984,793,108  75,170,169  174,560,538  231,597,771  317,338,563  166,913,895  173,978,321  4,991,407  1,670,352  110,185,308  4,987,567,920 
Additions (+) - -  1,687,220  3,657,785  42,406,152  834,028  11,794,803  461,026  25,358,645  17,564,308 - - -  8,848,716  112,612,683 
Transfers -  10,716,548  2,583,805 -  34,638,355 - - -  16,608,001 -  15,325,208 - -  (79,871,917) -
Disposals (-) -  (870,778)  (230,448)  (130,127)  (16,263,745)  (1,940,244)  (9,206,849)  (23,526,412)  (5,887,508)  (10,125,709) - - - -  (68,181,820)

Foreign currency translation differences -  (3,283,418)  (1,479,799)  (16,235,826)  (14,185,794)  (684,339)  (7,231,774)  (2,664,596)  (248,046)  (290,221)  (3,338,235) - - -  (49,642,048)

As at 31 December 2023 294,800,790  741,499,354 293,897,558  412,585,748  2,031,388,076 73,379,614  169,916,718 205,867,789  353,169,655 174,062,273 185,965,294  4,991,407  1,670,352  39,162,107 4,982,356,735 
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
As at 1 January 2022 -  261,472,134  221,807,688  334,899,140  1,300,911,718  68,325,173  159,452,876  218,732,414  279,518,869  136,361,916  54,232,647  4,693,951  611,399 -  3,041,019,925 
Depreciation during the year (+) -  13,032,125  12,132,733  7,233,491  73,728,833  2,767,952  7,110,170  10,126,248  15,987,977  10,988,336  6,751,810  89,769  212,212 -  160,161,656 
Disposals (-) - - - - - - -  (2,843,778) -  (67,990)  (5,947,505) - - -  (8,859,273)
Impairment *  2,522,830 - - - - - - - - -  4,350,000 - -  650,000  7,522,830 

Foreign currency translation differences -  (2,308,563)  (1,040,799)  (11,415,642)  (9,978,253)  (481,176)  (5,084,765)  (1,952,909)  (193,095)  (211,880)  (2,347,156)  (14) - -  (35,014,252)

As at 31 December 2022  2,522,830  272,195,696  232,899,622  330,716,989  1,364,662,298  70,611,949  161,478,281  224,061,975  295,313,751  147,070,382  57,039,796  4,783,706  823,611  650,000  3,164,830,886 
Depreciation during the year (+) -  13,251,754  11,067,828  7,245,220  76,338,860  1,424,527  4,793,371  3,223,004  14,356,536  10,020,676  7,356,021  145,512  212,212 -  149,435,521 
Disposals(-) -  (536,805)  (230,448)  (130,127)  (16,154,527)  (1,940,244)  (9,060,172)  (22,781,869)  (5,886,205)  (10,122,742) - - - -  (66,843,139)
Impairment ** -  3,690,486  6,495,290  77,192  10,700,000 - -  232,739 -  4,293 - - -  2,826,362  24,026,362 

Foreign currency translation differences -  (3,283,373)  (1,479,798) (16,235,827)  (14,186,016)  (684,340)  (7,231,773)  (2,664,562)  (246,787)  (290,051)  (3,338,236) - - -  (49,640,763)

As at 31 December 2023 2,522,830 285,317,758 248,752,494 321,673,447 1,421,360,615 69,411,892 149,979,707 202,071,287 303,537,295 146,682,558 61,057,581 4,929,218 1,035,823 3,476,362 3,221,808,867 
Net Book Value 
As at 31 December 2023 292,277,960 456,181,596 45,145,064 90,912,301 610,027,461 3,967,722 19,937,011 3,796,502 49,632,360 27,379,715 124,907,713 62,189 634,529 35,685,745 1,760,547,868 
As at 31 December 2022 292,277,960 462,741,306 58,437,158 94,576,927 620,130,810 4,558,220 13,082,257 7,535,796 22,024,812 19,843,513 116,938,525 207,701 846,741 109,535,308 1,822,737,034 
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The Company was granted a loan from the Saudi Agricultural Development Fund to finance and expand the 
olive trees and olive pressing plant in Al Jouf with the guarantee against the property and equipment of Al-Sali 
Center, including the land on which it is built and the additions and expansions thereof  as well as some of the 
vehicles, machinery and equipment owned by the Company, with a net book value of SAR 28 Million, as at 31 
December 2023 (31 December 2022: SAR 26.58  Million). (Note 27). 

* During 2022, the Company recognized an impairment provision for a portion of the land occupied by Sau-
di Aramco in amounted to SAR 2.5 million (Note 13-2). During 2022, the Company did not record any profits 
resulting from the dates business and there is no alternative use of date palm, accordingly, the management 
recognized an impairment provision of SAR 4.3 million. 

** During 2023, the Company recognized an impairment provision in amounted to SAR 24 million for Juice line, 
dairy farm assets and residential villa. 
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13.	 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

13.1	 Capitalization of Borrowing Cost
The value of borrowing costs capitalized during the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to SAR 22.17 
million (31 December 2022: SAR 14.34 million). Effective interest rate was used to determine the amount of 
borrowing cost eligible for capitalization. (note 27).

13.2	 Land 
The following matters related to Lands held by the Company at the reporting date:

Land Used by Saudi Arabian Oil (Saudi Aramco)
As per the Royal Order No. (151) dated 9/5/1401H, NADEC was granted the Haradh project, which was in-
vested by NADEC for Agricultural and Livestock Production, including agricultural land, facilities, fixed and 
movable assets, and energy sources, and it is considered among its properties starting from the date of 
issuance of Royal Decree No. (M/ 41) on 10/17/1401H approving its establishment.

The title deed was issued by Notary Public at Haradh with No. (87) on 5/15/1403H, with a length of sev-
enty-five kilometers from north to south and five kilometers from east to west, with an area of 375 square 
kilometers. 

NADEC entered into a legal dispute with Saudi Arabian Oil (Saudi Aramco) in respect of some portion of 
the land and the Supreme Court issued its final judgment on Rabi` al-Awwal 18, 1442H (corresponding to 
November 4, 2020) to cancel the title deed No. (87) issued to NADEC on 5/15/1403H, and this decision 
did not oblige the Company to leave or vacate the areas it revived and the areas in which its operational 
business is located, no essential operations of the Company are located on the disputed land, and NADEC 
has raised its objects to the decision of the supreme court to the concerned authorities and clarified its 
position towards the decision. 

Based on NADEC’s assessment of its legal status and based on discussions with the concerned authori-
ties, the management is largely believes that the ownership of the revived lands that are subject to the 
use and control of the Company is valid, and it is expected that anew title will be issued to the Company 
for the revived lands that is which are under the Company control and use after approval of the concerned 
government authorities. It is also expected that this will lead to a reduction in the land area, which is cur-
rently used by Saudi Arabian Oil (Saudi Aramco) and a small piece of land in the southern region that is not 
suitable for agricultural production and is not currently used by the Company. Accordingly, the Company 
recorded a provision of SR 2.5 million during the previous year. 

14.	 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

i.	 Right-of-Use Assets
Land & Buildings

SAR
Vehicles and Trucks

SAR
Machineries

SAR
Total
SAR

Carrying value as at 1 January 2022 14,434,148 48,401,934 8,636,155 71,472,237

Additions during 2022 2,559,682 157,148 - 2,716,830

Lease cancellations (237,159) - - (237,159)

Depreciation for 2022 (2,904,136) (14,330,915) (848,454) (18,083,505)

Carrying value as at 31 December 
2022

13,852,535 34,228,167 7,787,701 55,868,403

Additions during 2023 7,141,259 10,094,314 - 17,235,573

 Lease cancellations (1,057,192) - - (1,057,192)

Depreciation for 2023 (3,292,802) (10,198,052) (848,454) (14,339,308)

Carrying value as at 31 December 
2023

16,643,800 34,124,429 6,939,247 57,707,476

ii.	Lease liabilities
Total
SAR

Carrying value as at 1 January 2022 70,349,282

Additions of new leases in 2022 2,716,830

Interest expense for 2022 (note 11) 2,224,032

Lease cancellations (237,159)

Payment of lease liability during 2022 (19,681,703)

Carrying value as at 31 December 2022 55,371,282

Additions of new leases in 2023 17,235,573

Interest expense for 2023 (note 11) 1,919,800

Lease cancellations (1,057,218)

Payment of lease liability during 2023 (20,797,562)

Carrying value as at 31 December 2023 52,671,875

Lease liability – Current portion 17,894,034

Lease liability – Non-current portion 34,777,841
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15.	 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (NON-CURRENT)
The Company’s Biological Assets consist of the dairy herd, which are classified as milk producing cows or 
non-milk producing cows. The non-productive cows include milk cows, which are raised up to the production 
stage. Such herd on the production of raw milk are converted into the category of productive cows and are de-
preciated at an estimated useful life of five years. Their value increases as they age, based on milk production 
or production of offspring. The cattle breeding is exposed to disease risk. Therefore, the Company separates 
all the other farms and activities from cattle farms to prevent the transmission of diseases to the herd, and 
the herd is subject to very strict medical standards and precautionary measures are in place to prevent such 
diseases from transmission or infection.

The Company’s Biological Assets as at 31 December 2023 and their changes during the year, and the compara-
tive amounts are as follows;

Biological Assets
Cows
SAR

Heifers
SAR

Total
SAR

Cost as at 1 January 2023 431,276,765 377,664,241 808,941,006

Additions through Birth/ Conversion 237,591,938 180,260,458 417,852,396

Exclusions as a result of Sale or Death or Conversion (165,672,810) (237,591,938) (403,264,748)

Cost as at 31 December 2023 503,195,893 320,332,761 823,528,654

Accumulated depreciation as at 1 January 2023 73,718,252 - 73,718,252

Depreciation for the year 2023 63,225,609 - 63,225,609

Depreciation on disposals during the year 2023 (41,047,725) - (41,047,725)

Accumulated depreciation as at 31 December 2023 95,896,136 - 95,896,136

Net book value as at 31 December 2023 407,299,757 320,332,761 727,632,518

 

Cost as at 1 January 2022 384,349,210 371,114,235 755,463,445

Additions through Birth/ Conversion 186,213,919 192,763,925 378,977,844

Exclusions as a result of Sale or Death or Conversion (139,286,364) (186,213,919) (325,500,283)

Cost as at 31 December 2022 431,276,765 377,664,241 808,941,006

Accumulated depreciation as at 1 January 2022 69,905,137 - 69,905,137

Depreciation for the year 2022 52,109,895 - 52,109,895

Depreciation on disposals during the year 2022 (48,296,780) - (48,296,780)

Accumulated depreciation as at 31 December 2022 73,718,252 - 73,718,252

Net book value as at 31 December 2022 357,558,513 377,664,241 735,222,754

16.	 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Software and 

licenses
SAR

Capital work in 
progress

SAR

Total
SAR

Cost 

Cost as at 1 January 2022 47,845,957 84,572 47,930,529

Additions during the year - 2022 22,573,505 - 22,573,505

Cost as at 31 December 2022 70,419,462 84,572 70,504,034

Additions during the year - 2023 508,027 1,509,742 2,017,769

Transfers during the year - 2023 1,594,314 (1,594,314) -

Cost as at 31 December 2023 72,521,803 - 72,521,803

Accumulated Amortization 

Accumulated Amortization at January 1, 2022 29,887,711 - 29,887,711

Amortization for the year - 2022 10,127,945 - 10,127,945

Accumulated Amortization as at 31 December 2022 40,015,656 - 40,015,656

Amortization for the year - 2023 8,654,485 - 8,654,485

Accumulated Amortization as at 31 December 2023 48,670,141 - 48,670,141

Net Book Value:

As at 31 December 2023 23,851,662 - 23,851,662

As at 31 December 2022 30,403,806 84,572 30,488,378

17.	 INVESTMENTS

17.1	 INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE
31 December 2023

SAR
31 December 2022

SAR

Arabian Mills for Food Products Company 

(formerly: The Second Milling Company)*
116,222,014 54,191,236

116,222,014 54,191,236
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17.	 INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

17.1	 INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE (continued)
Movement of investment in joint venture:

31 December 2023
SAR

31 December 2022
SAR

Balance as at 1 January 54,191,236 50,888,776

Share of results for the year 21,735,857 3,302,460

Additions* 40,294,921 -

Balance as at 31 December 116,222,014 54,191,236

*During 2023, the Company has increased its ownership in the Arabian Mills for Food Products Company and 
signed an agreement to purchase 2,500,000 shares, representing 4.87% amounting to SR 36,990,691 wherein 
the Company paid SR 40,294,921, resulting in goodwill of SR 3,304,230. As of 31 December 2023, the ownership 
percentage is 14.87% (31 December 2022: 10%) of the capital of the Arabian Mills for Food Products Company. 

17.2	 EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FVOCI

Ownership  
(%)

Historical 
Cost
SAR

31 Decem-
ber 2023

SAR

31 Decem-
ber 2022

SAR

Change in 
Fair Value 

2023
SAR

Change in 
Fair Value 

2022
SAR

National Company for Seed 
Production (Seeds) 

13.99% 4,128,000 5,683,000 5,127,000 556,000 (1,994,000)

United Dairy Farms Compa-
ny

8.26% 600,000 3,266,000 3,219,000 47,000 (2,682,000)

United Poultry Marketing 
Company (under liquidation)

7.30% - - 500,000 - -

Total 4,728,000 8,949,000 8,846,000 603,000 (4,676,000)

Impairment of Equity Investments at 
FVOCI 

- (500,000) - -

Net Equity Investments at FVOCI 8,949,000 8,346,000 603,000 (4,676,000)

Equity Investments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) are measured in accordance 
with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement.  The Impairment of Equity Investments 
at FVOCI represents the value of the investment in United Poultry Marketing Company due to its liquidation 
status.

18.	 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (CURRENT)
31 December 2023

SAR
31 December 2022

SAR

Balance as at 1 January 28,050,004 24,118,793

Harvested during the year (28,050,004) (24,118,793)

Additions during the year 27,644,670 28,050,004

Balance as at 31 December 27,644,670 28,050,004

Current biological assets are representing crops which are measured at cost less Impairment if any.

19.	 INVENTORIES
31 December 2023

SAR
31 December 2022

SAR

Raw materials 311,176,096 260,080,911

Finished goods 114,822,082 120,100,090

Spare parts 97,066,515 97,923,832

Agricultural products inventory 50,328,779 26,007,116

Packaging materials 49,496,967 67,612,296

Animal products (Manure) 7,627,610 7,695,214

Fuel and oil 7,083,604 5,382,252

  637,601,653 584,801,711

Provision for slow moving inventory (77,852,238) (68,746,967)

  559,749,415 516,054,744

Movement in provision for slow moving inventory

31 December 2023
SAR

31 December 2022
SAR

Balance as at 1 January 68,746,967 82,990,955

Provision made during the year 31,546,653 17,376,685

Provision utilized for write offs (21,124,650) (29,281,848)

Foreign Currency Translation difference (1,316,732) (2,338,825)

Balance as at 31 December 77,852,238 68,746,967
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20.	 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS - AVAILABLE FOR SALE
31 December 2023

SAR
31 December 2022

SAR

Biological Assets - Available for Sale 28,929,505 30,232,197

28,929,505 30,232,197

The Company’s biological assets available for sale represents the bulls being sold within a period of one year 
from its birth. All the bulls are classified as available for sale as the Company requires only cows for producing 
milk in its normal course of business.

21.	 TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
31 December 2023

SAR
31 December 2022

SAR

Trade receivables, net 353,611,375 349,680,271

Advances to suppliers 108,329,318 39,705,891

Government subsidies due* 105,380,470 108,460,148

Prepaid expenses 33,243,705 34,390,161

Staff receivables 11,654,653 14,483,295

Receivable from a related party (note 36) 2,476,989 1,635,760

Other receivables 11,684,768 6,062,673

626,381,278 554,418,199

Impairment allowance for government subsidies due (94,719,292) (54,219,292)

Impairment allowance for trade receivables (49,994,188) (53,180,647)

Impairment allowance for prepayments (17,828,324) (17,828,324)

463,839,474 429,189,936

* Government subsidies due represents amounts claimed from the Government and are considered recoverable 
from Government as these meet the criteria provided by Government Agencies and the Company it is reason-
ably certain that the subsidies will be received.

21.	 TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

(CONTINUED)
Movement in impairment allowance for government subsidies due

31 December 2023
SAR

31 December 2022
SAR

Balance as at 1 January 54,219,292 47,119,095

Charge for the year 40,500,000 7,100,197

Balance as at 31 December 94,719,292 54,219,292

Movement in impairment allowance for trade receivables

31 December 2023
SAR

31 December 2022
SAR

Balance as at 1 January 53,180,647 48,658,152

Charge during the year 8,370,839 4,530,346

Written off during the year (11,549,858) -

Foreign Currency Translation difference (7,440) (7,851)

Balance as at 31 December 49,994,188 53,180,647

22.	 TERM DEPOSITS
31 December 2023

SAR
31 December 2022

SAR

Cash at banks – Term Deposits * 500,000,000 -

500,000,000 -

* The average rate on time deposit (Murabaha) for the period was 6.35% per annum with a maturity of more 
than three months and less than one year.
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23.	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
31 December 2023

SAR
31 December 2022

SAR

Cash at banks – Time Deposits * 500,000,000 -

Cash at banks - Current accounts 326,818,148 105,823,911

Cash in hand 7,868,172 6,938,041

834,686,320 112,761,952

* Time deposit represents short-term deposits with local banks with average original maturities of less than 
three months. The average rate on outstanding bank deposits as 31 December 2023 was between 6.15% and 
6.30% per annum for a period of three months or less. Bank deposits are placed in Islamic Murabha accounts.

24.	 SHARE CAPITAL
The Company has 301,640,000 shares as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: 101,640,000) issued and fully 
paid with a value of SAR 10 per share.

On 4 April 2023 (corresponding to 13 Ramadan 1444H), the Company announced the Board’s recommendation 
to the shareholders to increase the share capital by SAR 2 billion through a rights issue. On 5 October 2023 
(corresponding to 20 Rabi Al-Awwal 1445H), the Capital Market Authority (“CMA”) has approved the Company’s 
application for capital increase. The purpose of the capital increase is to fund the Company’s 2023–2027 strat-
egy, which aims to grow business operations, develop new markets, and expand the product range. The right 
issue is approved of the shareholders of the company in an extraordinary general assembly meeting dated 5 
November 2023 (corresponding to 21 Rabi’ Al-Thani 1444H). 

25.	 STATUTORY RESERVE 
In accordance with the new Company’s regulation and amended Company’s article of association, during the 
year, no transfer made to statutory reserve from retained earning of the company.

26.	 OTHER RESERVES

SAR 

Balance as at 1 January 2022 25,204,429

Changes  

Change in Fair value of Equity Investment at FVOCI (4,676,000)

Actuarial Valuation adjustments to Other Reserves 6,998,496 

Foreign currency translation differences 1,518,828

Total adjustments to Other Components of Equity 3,841,324

Balance as at 31 December 2022 29,045,753

Changes  

Change in Fair value of Equity Investment at FVOCI 603,000

Actuarial Valuation adjustments to Other Reserves 10,238,306

Foreign currency translation differences (901,603)

Total adjustments to Other Components of Equity 9,939,703

Balance as at 31 December 2023 38,985,456
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27.	 MURABAHA LOANS AND BORROWINGS 

Cur-
rency

Interest 
Rate

Due 
Date

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Nominal 
Value

Book 
Value

Nominal 
Value

Book 
Value

SAR’000 SAR’000 SAR’000 SAR’000

Islamic Banking Facili-
ties (Murabaha) (27.1)

SAR
SIBOR + 

bank margin
2024-
2028

366,737 372,903 1,416,151 1,427,740

Agricultural Develop-
ment Fund Loan (27.2)

SAR Fixed
2024-
2027

3,490 3,490 97,748 97,748

Total Loans       370,227 376,393 1,513,899 1,525,488

The weighted average interest rate on bank loans during the year 2023 was 6.46% (2022: 3.39%) on per annum 
basis, however, the rates varied between medium and short-term loans. Loans from local banks were granted 
against promissory note given by the Company. 

Loans are presented in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

 

31 December
2023

31 December
2022

SAR’000 SAR’000

Non-current liabilities

Loans secured by Guarantees 2,501 3,481

Loans not secured by any Guarantee or Security 95,238 889,425

  97,739 892,906

Current liabilities

Loans secured by Guarantees 989 94,267

Loans not secured by any Guarantee or Security 277,665 538,315

278,654 632,582

27.	 MURABAHA LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

27.1	 Islamic Banking Facilities (Murabaha) from Local Banks
The borrowing under Islamic banking facilities (Murabaha) have been granted against a promissory note issued 
by the Company. The maturity dates of these facilities are ranging between 2024 to 2028 as agreed with the 
respective banks and are mostly of a resolving nature. The amount of unused facilities as at 31 December 2023 
amounted to SAR 828 million (31 December 2022: SAR 1,145 million).

27.2	 Agricultural Development Fund Loan 
The Company was granted a loan from the Agricultural Development Fund under number 803405009 dated 24 
Jumada II 1433H (corresponding to 5 May 2012) with a total value of SAR 8.35 million. This loan is secured by a 
mortgage of specific land owned by the Company along with building on it and any new additions and expan-
sions. Annual installments started from 4 Muharram 1440H (corresponding to 14 September 2018) and ending 
on 4 Muharram 1449H (corresponding to 8 September 2027), the loan amount was used to finance the irriga-
tion netting pivots of olive seedlings. The Company paid SAR 5 million out of the total loan as at 31 December 
2023 (31 December 2022: SAR 4.16 million).

The Company was granted another loan on 1 Dhul Qa’da 1433H (corresponding to 17 September 2012 with a to-
tal value of SAR 1.6 million under Loan number 803805048. This loan is secured by mortgage on cars, machines 
and equipment owned by the Company. This loan is payable on annual installments basis starting from 1 Dhul 
al-Qa’da 1436H (corresponding to 15 August 2015) and ending on 1 Dhul al-Qa’da 1445H (corresponding to 8 May 
2024). This loan was fully utilized in Olive project.  The Company paid SAR 1.40 million out of the total loan as 
at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: SAR 1.25 million).

The balance of these loans from Agricultural Development Fund on 31 December 2023 amounted to SAR 3.5 
million (31 December 2022: SAR 97.7 million).

28.	 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATION
The entity operates a defined benefit plan (as defined in IAS 19) to provide a lump-sum compensation when 
the employee leaves the service, in line with the current labor law in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The plan 
and its obligations are therefore more sensitive to changes in future salary increases, future withdrawal rates 
and the discount rate used to assess commitments, and the Company is not required to finance the plan, the 
plan’s liabilities have been assessed using the projected credit unit method in accordance with IAS 19. Since 
the amount and timing of future maturities are not known currently, assumptions have been made to value the 
obligations relating to the past service. These assumptions have been derived using methodologies consistent 
with the requirements of IAS 19. Any changes in assumptions in financial, economic and demographic condi-
tions over time, where future experience does not match established assumptions, that change is included in 
Other Comprehensive Income in the future financial year.
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28.	 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATION (CONTINUED)
The movement in the present value of the liability for the benefits of the end of service plan of the enterprise 
is as follows:

 
31 December 2023

SAR
31 December 2022

SAR

Opening balance 152,770,825 163,003,443

Interest Cost 6,031,913 4,543,802

Current Service Cost 15,312,753 15,308,849

Past service cost 9,057,451 -

Benefits Paid (24,987,537) (23,086,773)

Actuarial gain in Other Comprehensive Income (10,238,306) (6,998,496)

Closing Balance 147,947,099 152,770,825

The value of the amounts that have been adjusted for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 
are as follows, according to the Actuarial study conducted

31 December 2023
SAR

31 December 2022
SAR

Current Service cost 15,312,753 15,308,849

Interest cost 6,031,913 4,543,802

Past service cost 9,057,451 -

Expense charged to Statement of Profit or Loss for the year 30,402,117 19,852,651

Other comprehensive income related to the Employee Benefits Plan for the years 2023 and 2022 consists of 
the following items:

31 December 2023
SAR

31 December 2022
SAR

Actuarial gain resulting from changes in financial assumptions (5,479,953) (737,149)

Actuarial gain resulting from experience adjustment (4,758,353) (6,261,347)

Actuarial gain in Other Comprehensive Income (10,238,306) (6,998,496)

28.	 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATION (CONTINUED)
The significant assumptions used to determine the defined benefit obligations of the employees’ end of ser-
vice plan are as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Discount rate 4.75% 4.30%

Expected salary increase rate 5.00% 5.00%

Withdrawal from work Age: Ratio Age: Ratio

(Average Ratio) 18-25:18.75% 18-25:18.75%

26-30:15.00% 26-30:15.00%

31-50:7.50% 31-50:7.50%

+51:3.75% +51:3.75%

29.	 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
31 December 2023

SAR
31 December 2022

SAR

Trade creditors 410,981,117 453,858,151

Accrued expenses  234,730,870 128,653,169

Employee benefits 87,901,393 60,910,897

Advances from customers 16,492,125 7,014,307

Payable to related parties (note 36) 1,578,865 11,266,109

Other payables 22,929,969 18,363,980

774,614,339 680,066,613

30.	 UNDISTRIBUTED RIGHTS ISSUE COMPENSATION
This represents the undistributed rights issue compensation to eligible investors who have not exercised their 
right to subscribe to new shares. The Company were unable to transfer these amount of compensation to the 
beneficiaries as a result of the lack of sufficient information about the beneficiaries’ account numbers. 
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31.	 DIVIDEND PAYABLES 
Below table represents the movement in the Dividend Payables.

SAR

Balance as at 1 January 2022 32,809,778

Paid during the year 2022 (229,455)

Balance as at 31 December 2022 32,580,323

Paid during the year 2023 (240,131)

Balance as at 31 December 2023 32,340,192

32.	 PROVISION FOR ZAKAT

 
31 December 2023

SAR
31 December 2022

SAR

Opening balance 77,161,135 72,250,415

Zakat provision for current year 14,200,000 6,000,000

Zakat reversal for previous years (26,000,000) -

Zakat on Crops (Sudan) - 2,624

Total charged to Statement of Profit or Loss 14,200,000 6,002,624

Zakat paid during the Year (19,667,614) (1,091,904)

Closing Balance 45,693,521 77,161,135

The Company filed its Zakat return for all years up to 2022 and obtained Zakat certificates for the years up to 
2022 from the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority (“ZATCA” or “the Authority”).

The Authority issued Zakat assessments for the years 2019-2020, the Company objected to some of its items 
with the Authority and presently these objections are pending for discussion. The Company has filed its Zakat 
return for years 2021 and 2022 and still under process with the Authority.  During the year, the Company re-
ceived final assessments for the years from 2014 to 2018 and based on these final assessments the Company 
has reversed provision of SAR 26 million.

33.	 COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENCIES

Capital commitments
Capital commitments amounted to SAR 55.6 million against contracts for the supply of property, plant and 
equipment as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: SAR 67.78 million) 

Letters of credit
The contingent liabilities against letters of credit are SAR 196.4 million as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 
2022: SAR 172.65 million).

Letters of guarantee
The contingent liabilities against letters of guarantee are SAR 47.2 million as at 31 December 2023 (31 Decem-
ber 2022: SAR 44.60 million).

34.	 FAIR VALUE
Financial Assets and Liabilities are measured at amortized cost except for Equity Investments at Fair value 
through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) which are measured at fair value. The fair value is the price that 
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market par-
ticipants at the measurement date under market conditions. In the absence of an active market, the asset or 
liability is measured in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability and relies on the perceptions of 
market participants to maximize the benefits of using the asset. The Company relied on valuation methods for 
Equity Investments at FVOCI based on the performance of similar financial assets in an active market consider-
ing the performance of the asset itself to maximize benefits from the asset. 

The book value and the fair value of all the disclosed financial assets and financial liabilities does not vary 
significantly.
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34.	 FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

31 December 2023

Carrying Amount
 

Fair Value

Amortized 
cost

Fair Value Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

SAR’000 SAR’000 SAR’000 SAR’000 SAR’000 SAR’000 SAR’000

Financial Assets

Equity Invest-
ment at FVOCI

- 8,949 8,949 - 8,949 - 8,949

Trade and Other 
Receivables

374,259 - 374,259 - - - -

Term deposit 500,000 - 500,000 - - - -

Cash and cash 
equivalent 

834,686 - 834,686 - - - -

1,708,945 8,949 1,717,894 - 8,949 - 8,949

Financial Liabilities

Trade and Other 
Payables

732,702 - 732,702 - - - -

Loans 376,259 - 376,259 - - - -

Lease Liabilities 52,672 - 52,672 - - - -

1,161,633 - 1,161,633 - - - -

34.	 FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

31 December 2022

Carrying Amount
 

Fair Value

Amortized 
Cost

Fair Value Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

SAR’000 SAR’000 SAR’000 SAR’000 SAR’000 SAR’000 SAR’000

Financial Assets

Equity Invest-
ment at FVOCI

- 8,346 8,346 - 8,346 - 8,346

Trade and Other 
Receivables

368,436 - 368,436 - - - -

Cash and cash 
equivalent 

112,762 - 112,762 - - - -

481,198 8,346 489,544 - 8,346 - 8,346

Financial Liabilities

Trade and Other 
Payables

636,194 - 636,194

Loans 1,525,488 - 1,525,488 - - - -

Lease Liabilities 55,371 - 55,371 - - - -

2,217,053 - 2,217,053 - - - -
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35.	 Financial Risk Management 
The Company is exposed to the following risks through its use of financial instruments:

	 A.	 Credit Risk.
	 B.	 Liquidity Risk.
	 C.	 Market Risk

This note provides information on the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s objec-
tives, policies and procedures for measuring and managing risks, and the Company’s capital management. Fur-
ther quantitative disclosures are included in these financial statements. The overall risk management program 
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize the potential negative impact on 
the financial performance of the Company. Financial instruments included in the Statement of Financial Posi-
tion include cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, receivables, short- and long-term loans, due 
to related parties and accrued expenses, as well as other current liabilities.

35.1	 Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that the counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or a busi-
ness contract resulting in a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities 
(mainly trade receivables) and from financing activities. The financial assets subject to credit risk are set out 
in table below:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

SAR’000 SAR’000

Term deposit 500,000 -

Cash and bank balances 834,686 112,761

Trade and other receivables 374,259 368,435

1,708,945 481,197

Trade Receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by each business segment in accordance with the Company’s business policy, 
procedures and control related to business risk management. The credit quality of the customer is assessed 
on the basis of an evaluation card for each customer based on the date of the customer’s dealings with the 
Company and the extent of his obligation to pay by setting a grace period and credit limit for each customer. 
The Company calculates impairment losses on the basis of its estimate of losses incurred in respect of trade re-
ceivables. The main components of this provision are the expected loss element of specific customers as well 
as the aggregate loss element that is estimated for a group of similar customers in respect of losses that may 
be incurred, and which have not yet been determined. The consolidated loss provision is determined based on 
historical data of collection statistics for similar customers. Management believes that there is no additional 
allowance for credit risk required in excess of the normal decrease in receivables.

Trade Receivables consist of 87% of the balances in Saudi Arabia and 13% of the outstanding balances in the 
GCC as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: 84% and 16% respectively).

Bank balances are kept with banks of BBB rating or higher rating banks. 

35.	 Financial Risk Management (CONTINUED)

35.2	 Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations associated with 
financial liabilities settled through the delivery of cash or other financial assets. The Company’s approach to li-
quidity management is to ensure, as far as possible, that it always has sufficient liquidity to meet its obligations 
when due in normal and difficult circumstances without incurring unacceptable losses or risking the Company’s 
reputation. Liquidity risk may result from the inability to sell the financial asset quickly near its fair value. A sig-
nificant portion of the Company’s funds are in Cash and Bank balances and are readily available to cover expected 
operating expenses, including servicing of financial obligations. In order to improve the liquidity of the Company, 
the Company will develop a plan to develop working capital performance and restructure its capital components.

Payable as of 31 December 2023

On Demand
Less than 3 

months
3 Months 
to 1 year

1 year to 5 
years

Greater than 
5 years

Total

SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR

Murabaha & 
Government Loans

- 239,522,875 51,035,972 85,834,454 - 376,393,301

Trade Payables - 410,981,117 - - - 410,981,117

Lease Liability 
repayment

- 4,466,420 9,352,760 36,219,461 2,633,234 52,671,875

Total - 654,970,412 60,388,732 122,053,915 2,633,234 840,046,293

Payable as of 31 December 2022

On Demand
Less than 3 

months
3 Months to 

1 year
1 year to 5 

years
Greater than 

5 years
Total

SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR

Murabaha & 
Government Loans

- 339,820,872 391,434,283 919,665,578 - 1,650,920,733

Trade Payables - 453,858,151 - - - 453,858,151

Lease Liability 
repayment

- 8,189,270 9,576,550 30,698,474 8,612,403 57,076,697

Total - 801,868,293 401,010,833 950,364,052 8,612,403 2,161,855,581
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35.	 Financial Risk Management (CONTINUED)

35.2	 Liquidity Risk (continued)

Capital Management
Equity includes the equity of the Company’s shareholders. The main objective of the Company’s Capital Man-
agement is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and decent capital ratios to support the Company’s 
business and increase the value of the Company. The Company manages and adjusts the capital structure in 
light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of financial commitments. To maintain or adjust 
the capital structure, the Company may amend dividend payments to shareholders, return capital to share-
holders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using the Lending Ratio (debt), which is Share-
holders’ Equity plus Net Debt divided by Net Debt. The Company’s policy is to maintain a debt ratio between 
1.8 and 2.5. The Company includes in its net debt interest bearing loans and borrowings and trade payables 
other credit balances less cash deposits.

31 December 2023
SAR

31 December 2022
SAR

Islamic and Government Murabaha Loans 376,393,301 1,525,487,745

Trade and Other Payables 774,614,339 680,066,613

Employee Benefit Obligations 147,947,099 152,770,825

Provision for Zakat 45,693,521 77,161,135

Dividend Payable 32,340,192 32,580,323

Lease Liabilities 52,671,875 55,371,282

Total Debt 1,429,660,327 2,523,437,923

Term deposit (500,000,000) -

Cash and cash equivalent (834,686,320) (112,761,952)

Net Debt 94,974,008 2,410,675,971

Shareholders’ Equity 3,592,844,105 1,295,145,709

Ratio of borrowing - indebtedness (Shareholder’s equity / 
net debt)

37.83 0.54

To achieve this objective, the Company’s capital management aims, among other things, to ensure that the 
financial commitments associated with interest bearing loans and advances that meet the requirements of the 
capital structure are met. 

35.	 Financial Risk Management (CONTINUED)

35.2	 Liquidity Risk (continued)

Capital Management (continued)
In the event of a breach of compliance with these financial commitments, banks may be allowed to claim 
loans and bank facilities granted to the Company. There have been no violations of the financial commitments 
contracted with banks that lend to those loans, and in the event of such irregularities, the Company gets ex-
emptions from banks for periods to be determined by those banks.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies and processes for capital management during the year end-
ed 31 December 2023 and the year ended 31 December 2022.

35.3	 Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk of changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, profit rates and equity prices. 
These risks affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective 
of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposure within acceptable limits, while im-
proving returns.

The Company’s exposure to market risk arises from:

	� Currency risk

	� Interest rate risk

Currency Risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign ex-
change rates

Currency Movement vs. Saudi Riyal (SAR)

Foreign Currency % Change
Average Fx Rate 

(Foreign Currency/ SAR)
Upward

Down-
ward

Upward
Down-
ward

2023 2022 2023 2022

Price for $1 1.00% 3.75 3.75 (867,624)  867,624 (352,164) 352,164

Price for € 1 1.00% 4.09 3.98  (41,635)  41,635 (73,372) 73,372

(909,259) 909,259 (425,536) 425,536

The Company mainly trades in Saudi Riyal and US Dollars. The exchange rate fluctuations are closely moni-
tored by management. Based on its experience, management does not believe it is necessary to hedge against 
the impact of foreign currency risk as most transactions are in Saudi Riyal and US Dollars. The Saudi Riyal is 
pegged to the US Dollar and there are no other significant foreign currency instruments other than the US Dol-
lar and thus foreign currency risk is mitigated.
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35.	 Financial Risk Management

35.3	 Market Risk (continued)

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate be-
cause of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to market risk of changes in interest rates 
mainly relates to the Company’s borrowed loans to finance working capital requirements and capital expen-
ditures. These loans are repriced periodically, and the Company is exposed to interest rate risk related to cash 
flows. The Company’s practice is to manage bank interest costs by improving available cash flow and reducing 
borrowing. When borrowing is necessary, the loan term is matched with the expected repayments. There is a 
regular review of bank interest rates to ensure that these risks are mitigated.

The following table shows the impact on finance cost of the Company based on interest rate movement: 

 Change
%

Interest Rate Upward 
Movement 

Interest Rate Downward 
Movement 

SAR SAR

31 December 2023 1% 13,702,481 (13,702,481)

31 December 2022 1% 15,809,954 (15,809,954)

36.	 KEY RELATED PARTIES, TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
Related parties in the Company include companies and business entities owned or managed by some of the 
Company’s Board of Directors. In the normal course of business, the Company deals with these companies 
through contracts approved by the management. Details of key transactions with related parties are as follows:

Receivables/ 
(Payables)
Balance

Sales/ (pur-
chases)

Payments/ 
(collections)

Receivables/
(Payables)
Balance

Company
Relationship 
with NADEC

Nature of Trans-
action

31 December 
2022
SAR

Movement during 2023
SAR

31 December 
2023
SAR

Minerva Foods Company 
Common 
Directorship

Purchase of 
meat

- (3,765,959) 6,242,949 2,476,989

Arabian Mills for Food Prod-
ucts Company (formerly: The 
Second Milling Company)

Joint Venture

Compensation 
for Cancelation 
of contract 1,635,760

10,000,000 (10,000,000)
(1,578,865)

Purchases of 
raw material

(27,511,137) 24,296,512

36.	 KEY RELATED PARTIES, TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 
(CONTINUED)

Receivables/ 
(Payables)
Balance

Sales/ (pur-
chases)

Payments/ 
(collections)

Receivables/
(Payables)
Balance

Company
Relationship 
with NADEC

Nature of Trans-
action

31 December 
2021
SAR

2022
SAR

31 December 
2022
SAR

Saudi Plastic Packaging 
Systems*

Common 
Directorship

Purchase of Plas-
tic Materials

(4,405,100) (28,217,191) 25,117,040 (7,505,251)

Integrated Packaging Indus-
tries Company (formerly: 
Al-Kifah Holding Company)*

Common 
Directorship

Purchase of 
Packing material

(1,837,650) (8,933,912) 8,622,821 (2,148,741)

Al Sharq Plastic Industries 
Co. LTD*

Common 
Directorship

Purchase of 
Packing material

(1,242,675) (7,182,593) 6,813,151 (1,612,117)

Al Watania Agriculture*
Common 
Directorship

Purchase of 
Olive oil

-
(7,821,290) 7,530,470

93,168
Sales of NADEC 
Products

383,988 -

Arabian Mills for Food 
Products Company (for-
merly: The Second Milling 
Company)

Joint Venture

Income for tech-
nical services

1,691,063
5,808,465 (5,808,465)

1,635,760
Purchases of raw 
material

(22,694,943) 22,639,640

* These companies are not related parties for the year ended 31 December 2023 as there is no common directorship.

Transactions with Key Management Personnel:
31 December 2023 

SAR
31 December 2022

SAR

Short term benefits 14,866,804 7,633,629

Long-term benefits 2,070,846 1,506,621

 Total Benefits of Senior Management Personnel 16,937,650 9,140,250

Board of Directors remuneration 
On 14th Jumada Al-Akhirah 1445H (corresponding to 27 December 2023), amount of Saudi Riyal Three Million 
and Eight Hundred and Twenty-Eight Thousand were paid as remuneration to the members of the Board of 
Directors. 
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37.	 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
In the opinion of the management, there have been no significant subsequent events since the year-end and 
up to the approval of these Financial Statements that require disclosure or adjustment in these Financial State-
ments.

38.	 RECLASSIFICATION IN COMPARATIVES  
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company reclassified some balances as shown below which 
management considers a more accurate presentation to reflect their related nature:

Balances of financial position statement have been reclassified:

31 December 2022
(before reclassifica-

tion)
SAR

Reclassified balanc-
es

SAR

31 December 2022
(after reclassifica-

tion)
SAR

Assets

Property, plant and equipment 1,713,201,726 109,535,308 1,822,737,034

Capital work in progress 109,619,880 (109,619,880) -

Intangible assets 30,403,806 84,572 30,488,378

Trade receivables, prepayments, 
and other receivables

371,286,448 57,903,488 429,189,936

Prepayments 56,267,728 (56,267,728) -

Liabilities 

Trade and other payables 678,430,853 1,635,760 680,066,613

38.	 RECLASSIFICATION IN COMPARATIVES (CONTINUED)
Amounts of statement of profit and loss been reclassified:

31 December 2022
(before reclassifica-

tion)
SAR

Reclassified 
amounts

SAR

31 December 2022
(after reclassifica-

tion)
SAR

Impairment losses for other re-
ceivables and prepayments

(7,100,197) 7,100,197 -

Impairment losses for trade receiv-
ables, and other receivables

(4,530,346) (7,100,197) (11,630,543)

Write off/ impairment losses on 
property, plant and equipment

(9,358,012) (650,000) (10,008,012)

Write off/ impairment losses on 
capital working in progress 

(650,000) 650,000 -

39.	 APPROVAL BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
These Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 were approved by the Board of Directors on                      
18 February 2024 corresponding to 8 Shaba’an 1445.
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